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Dear Fellow Stockholders,

During 2012 we made important progress toward strengthening our business and supporting our long-term
performance. While our financial results for the year were disappointing due to weakness in our North American
technology business, we executed on key strategic initiatives and proactively managed our strong balance sheet.
We increased our cash position and, in December, returned approximately $9 million to our shareholders through
a special $0.25 per share cash dividend.

Key initiatives undertaken this past year included consolidating our U.S. consumer technology brands under
TigerDirect, exiting our private label personal computer manufacturing business, opening a new distribution center
for the Industrial Products Group (IPG) and realigning our European operations, including establishing our new
shared services center in Hungary. These actions will help us optimize our business, sharpen our operational focus
and capitalize on the growth opportunities we see in Europe and our IPG business.

IPG delivered an outstanding year and led the way for our business-to-business (B2B) operations, posting its third
consecutive year with more than 25% organic revenue growth. Since 2009, we have doubled the size of this
business in both revenue and profitability as we gained market share in core categories and significantly expanded
our products and category offerings. IPG’s SKU count increased approximately 38% in 2012 and we continue to
make operational adjustments to fully capitalize on the capabilities of our new distribution center. Our outlook for
IPG remains strong and we are focused on aggressively driving the growth of this business in the year ahead.

In Europe, our B2B technology business had another solid year driven by our two largest markets, the UK and
France, which generated double digit revenue increases as we continued to gain market share and attracted new
customers in both markets. We have made a number of investments in this business as we position ourselves to
better capitalize on the opportunities we see in our existing markets and the region overall. We built out our
European team to support our growth and pursue a broader and more cohesive pan-European strategy, which
includes the opening of our European shared services center in Budapest, Hungary later this spring. This new
leased facility, our first in Central Europe, will drive operational efficiencies, support our continued growth and
eventually serve as the hub of our Central European sales and marketing operations.

In our North American technology business, which is comprised of both B2B and consumer operations, the year
was challenging. Our B2B operations softened after a solid first half of the year, reflecting a tepid personal
computer market. We are focused on the future and our management team is committed to improving our
performance. We continue to make investments in our sales teams and leverage our strong position within our
small and medium business customer target market.

On the North American consumer front, buying patterns remained challenged throughout the year. Maturation of
categories like televisions, consumer migration away from traditional PCs, and a highly competitive and disruptive
pricing environment are all contributing to difficult market conditions. We are focusing on improving the
operational performance of this business and strengthening our competitive position. We have recently placed our
North American Technology business under the leadership of Robert Leeds, the founding Chief Executive Officer
of our Technology Products business and the current Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors. He will work
closely with Systemax Vice Chairman Bruce Leeds and myself as we seek to restore performance in our web
business, prudently manage our retail store footprint, and diversify our vendor and category offerings in the TV
shopping channel.



Beyond the important strategic and operational initiatives in North American Technology, we are working across
the company to drive better top and bottom line results. A thorough review of our businesses from a strategic and
operating perspective is ongoing, and we will make additional investments to strengthen our position in order to
build upon our successes and drive future growth.

We believe we have a strong company, diverse both in product lines and geographic footprint. With ongoing efforts
to optimize our performance, we will become even stronger. We enjoy good market positions in our businesses, an
attractively growing B2B operation and a healthy balance sheet — these help comprise a solid foundation upon
which to build. I would like to thank all of our shareholders for their support, and our employees for their
dedication and commitment.

Sincerely,

B ohurd Ol

Richard Leeds
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
April 29, 2013
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Systemax Inc.
11 Harbor Park Drive
Port Washington, New York 11050

April 30, 2013
Dear Stockholders:

You are cordially invited to attend the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Systemax Inc. (the
“Company”) which will be held at the Company’s corporate offices, located at 11 Harbor Park Drive, Port
Washington, New York at 2:00 p.m. on Monday, June 10, 2013. | look forward to greeting those stockholders who
are able to attend. On the following pages you will find the formal Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement.

For the Annual Meeting, we are pleased to use the “Notice Only” rule adopted by the Securities and
Exchange Commission to furnish proxy materials to stockholders over the Internet. We believe this process will
provide you with an efficient and quick way to access your proxy materials and vote your shares, while allowing us
to reduce the environmental impact and the costs of printing and distributing the proxy materials. On or about April
30, 2013, we mailed to most stockholders only a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials that tells them
how to access and review information contained in the proxy materials and our annual report for fiscal year 2012
and vote electronically over the Internet. If you received only the Notice in the mail, you will not receive a printed
copy of the proxy materials in the mail unless you request the materials by following the instructions included in the
Notice.

At the Annual Meeting, you will be asked to: (1) elect seven Directors; and (2) ratify the appointment of
Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2013. Your Board of
Directors recommends that you vote your shares “FOR” proposals (1) and (2). These proposals are more fully
described in the accompanying proxy statement.

Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting in person, it is important that your shares be represented and
voted at the Annual Meeting. Accordingly, please vote your shares over the internet at www.proxyvote.com or by
telephone at (800) 690-6903 until 11:59 PM (EDT) on June 9, 2013, or if you received a paper proxy card, date, sign
and return the proxy card as soon as possible in the envelope provided or to the address set forth in the voting
instructions therein. Your cooperation will ensure that your shares are voted.

If your shares are held in “street name” in a stock brokerage account or by a bank or other nominee,
you must provide your broker with instructions on how to vote your shares in order for your shares to be
voted on important matters presented at the Annual Meeting. If you do not instruct your broker on how to
vote in the election of directors and on compensation matters, your shares will not be voted on these matters.

I hope that you will attend the Annual Meeting, and I look forward to seeing you there.
Sincerely,

RICHARD LEEDS
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Systemax Inc.
11 Harbor Park Drive
Port Washington, New York 11050

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To Be Held On June 10, 2013

Dear Stockholders:

The 2013 Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of Systemax Inc. (the “Company”) will be held at the
Company’s offices, 11 Harbor Park Drive, Port Washington, New York, on Monday June 10, 2013 at 2:00 p.m. for
the following purposes, as more fully described in the accompanying proxy statement:

1. Toelect the Company’s Board of Directors;

2. To consider and vote upon a proposal to ratify the appointment of Ernst &
Young LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accountants; and

3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting and
any and all adjournments or postponements thereof.

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on April 15, 2013 as the record date for the
determination of the stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting and at any adjournment or
postponement thereof.

Stockholders are invited to attend the meeting. Whether or not you expect to attend, we urge you to vote
your shares. YOU CAN VOTE YOUR SHARES OVER THE INTERNET AT www.proxyvote.com OR BY
TELEPHONE AT (800) 690-6903 UNTIL 11:59 PM (EDT) ON JUNE 9, 2013. IF YOU RECEIVED A PAPER
PROXY CARD BY MAIL, YOU MAY ALSO VOTE BY SIGNING, DATING, AND RETURNING THE PROXY
CARD IN THE ENVELOPE PROVIDED OR TO THE ADDRESS SET FORTH IN THE VOTING
INSTRUCTIONS CONTAINED THEREIN. If you attend the meeting, you may vote your shares in person, which
will revoke any previously executed proxy.

If your shares are held of record by a broker, bank or other nominee and you wish to attend the meeting you
must obtain a letter from the broker, bank or other nominee confirming your beneficial ownership of the shares and
bring it to the meeting. In order to vote your shares at the meeting, you must obtain from the record holder a proxy
issued in your name.

Regardless of how many shares you own, your vote is very important. PLEASE VOTE YOUR SHARES
OVER THE INTERNET OR BY TELEPHONE OR IF YOU RECEIVED A PAPER PROXY CARD BY MAIL,
SIGN, DATE, AND RETURN THE PROXY CARD IN THE ENVELOPE PROVIDED TODAY.

Sincerely,

ERIC LERNER
Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Port Washington, New York
April 30, 2013
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IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON JUNE 10, 2013.

Our Proxy Statement and Annual Report are available online at:

WWW.proxyvote.com



Systemax Inc.
11 Harbor Park Drive
Port Washington, New York 11050

PROXY STATEMENT

This proxy statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies on behalf of the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) of Systemax Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), for the 2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders of the Company to be held on June 10, 2013 (the “Annual Meeting”). The Company has made the
proxy materials available to stockholders of record as of the close of business on April 15, 2013 at
www.proxyvote.com beginning on April 30, 2013 and is first mailing such materials to stockholders that requested
printed copies of such materials on or about April 30, 2013.

You can ensure that your shares are voted at the meeting by voting your shares over the internet at
www.proxyvote.com or by telephone at (800) 690-6903 until 11:59 PM (EDT) on June 9, 2013 or by signing, dating
and promptly returning a proxy, if you received a proxy by mail, in the envelope provided or to the address
contained in the voting instructions therein. Voting your shares over the internet, by telephone or by sending in a
signed proxy will not affect your right to attend the meeting and vote in person. Stockholders of record may revoke
their proxy at any time before it is voted by notifying the Company’s Transfer Agent, American Stock Transfer &
Trust Company LLC, 6201 15" Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11219, Attention: Proxy Department, in writing, or by
executing and delivering a subsequently dated proxy to the address contained in the voting instructions in the proxy,
which revokes your previously executed proxy. Beneficial holders whose shares are held of record by a broker,
bank or other nominee may revoke their proxy at any time before it is voted by following the instructions of their
broker, bank or other nominee.

The Company’s principal executive offices are located at 11 Harbor Park Drive, Port Washington, New
York 11050.

Voting Procedures

Proxies will be voted as specified by the stockholders. Where specific choices are not indicated, proxies
will be voted, per the Board of Directors’ recommendations, FOR proposals 1 and 2. If any other matters properly
come before the Annual Meeting, the persons named in the proxy will vote at their discretion.

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law and the Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation and By-Laws, (1) the affirmative vote of a plurality of the outstanding shares of common stock of the
Company (the “Shares”) entitled to vote and present, in person or by properly executed proxy, at a meeting at which
a quorum is present will be required to elect the nominated directors of the Board (Proposal 1); and (2) the
affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding Shares entitled to vote and present, in person or by properly
executed proxy, at a meeting at which a quorum is present will be required to ratify the appointment of Ernst &
Young LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accountants (Proposal 2).

Richard Leeds, Bruce Leeds and Robert Leeds (each a director and officer of the Company), together with
trusts for the benefit of certain members of their respective families and other entities controlled by them, as
applicable, beneficially owned as of our record date more than 50% of the shares of common stock, and they have
each separately advised us that they intend to vote all of such shares of common stock they each have the power to
vote in accordance with the recommendations of the Board of Directors on each of the items of business identified
above, which will be sufficient to constitute a quorum and to determine the outcome of each item under
consideration.

A quorum is representation in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting of at least a majority of the
outstanding Shares. Abstentions will have no effect on the election of directors (Proposal 1). Abstentions on other
matters will be treated as votes cast on particular matters as well as shares present and represented for purposes of
establishing a quorum, with the result that an abstention has the same effect as a negative vote regarding such other



matters. Where nominee record holders do not vote on specific issues because they did not receive specific
instructions on such issues from the beneficial owners, such broker non-votes will not be treated as votes cast on a
particular matter, and will therefore have no effect on the vote, but will be treated as shares present or represented
for purposes of establishing a quorum.

If your shares are held through a broker, bank or other nominee, you must provide voting instructions to
such record holder in accordance with such record holder’s requirements in order to ensure that your shares are
properly voted. Please note that the rules regarding how brokers may vote your shares have recently changed.
Brokers may no longer vote your shares on the election of directors, or any other non-routine matters, in the absence
of your specific instructions as to how to vote. We encourage you to provide instructions to your broker regarding
the voting of your shares. If you do not provide your broker or other nominee with instructions on how to vote your
“street name” shares, your broker or nominee will not be permitted to vote them on such non-routine matters (a
broker “non-vote”). Please note that Item 1 (Election of Directors) is a non-routine matter, and so Shares subject to
a broker “non-vote” will not be considered entitled to vote with respect to Item 1 and will not affect the outcome of
the vote on that Item.

A list of stockholders of the Company satisfying the requirements of Section 219 of the Delaware General
Corporation Law shall be available for inspection for any purpose germane to the Annual Meeting during normal
business hours at the offices of the Company at least ten days prior to the Annual Meeting.

Revocability of Proxies

Any person signing a proxy in the form accompanying this proxy statement has the power to revoke it prior
to the Annual Meeting or at the Annual Meeting prior to the vote pursuant to the proxy. A proxy may be revoked by
any of the following methods:

e by writing a letter delivered to Eric Lerner, General Counsel of the Company, stating that the proxy is
revoked,;

e by submitting another proxy with a later date (i.e., by signing and submitting a new proxy card or by
re-voting by phone or by Internet as instructed above); only your latest proxy card, phone or Internet
vote will be counted; or

e Dby attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person.

Please note, however, that if a stockholder’s shares are held of record by a broker, bank or other nominee
and that stockholder wishes to vote at the Annual Meeting, the stockholder must bring to the Annual Meeting a letter
from the broker, bank or other nominee confirming that stockholder’s beneficial ownership of the shares.

On April 15, 2013, the record date, there were outstanding and entitled to vote (excluding Company
treasury shares) 36,679,472 Shares, entitled to one vote per Share. Only stockholders of record at the close of
business on the record date will be entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting and at any and all adjournments or
postponements thereof. Stockholders will not be entitled to appraisal rights in connection with any of the matters to
be voted on at the Annual Meeting.

Internet Posting of Proxy Materials

Why did I receive a notice regarding the internet availability of proxy materials instead of paper copies
of the proxy materials?

We have implemented the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, “Notice Only” rule that allows us
to furnish our proxy materials over the Internet to our stockholders instead of mailing paper copies of those
materials to each stockholder. As a result, beginning on or about April 30, 2013, we sent to most of our
stockholders by mail a “Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials” containing instructions on how to access
our proxy materials over the Internet and vote online. This notice is not a proxy card and cannot be used to vote
your shares. If you received a notice this year, you will not receive paper copies of the proxy materials unless you
request the materials by following the instructions on the notice or on the website referred to in the notice.



If you own shares of common stock in more than one account—for example, in a joint account with your
spouse and in your individual brokerage account—you may have received more than one notice. To vote all of your
shares by proxy, please follow each of the separate proxy voting instructions that you received for your shares of
common stock held in each of your different accounts.

How can | access the proxy materials over the Internet?

Your Notice of the Internet Availability of the proxy materials, proxy card or voting instruction card will
contain instructions on how to view our proxy materials for the Annual Meeting on the Internet. Our proxy
materials and annual report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2012, as well as the means to vote by Internet, are available
at www.proxyvote.com

How may | obtain a paper copy of the proxy materials?

If you receive a Notice of the Internet Availability of the proxy materials, you will find on your notice
instructions about how to obtain a paper copy of the proxy materials. If you did not receive the notice, you will
receive a paper copy of the proxy materials by mail.

What is “householding”?

SEC rules allow a single copy of the proxy materials or the Notice of Internet Availability of proxy
materials to be delivered to multiple stockholders sharing the same address and last name, or who we reasonably
believe are members of the same family in a manner provided by such rules. This practice is referred to as
“householding” and can result in significant savings of paper and mailing costs. In accordance with SEC rules,
stockholders sharing the same address and last name, or who we reasonably believe are members of the same
family, will receive one copy of the proxy materials or notice of internet availability of proxy materials.

How can I find voting results of the Annual Meeting?
We will announce preliminary voting results at the Annual Meeting and we will publicly disclose the

results on a Form 8-K within four business days of the Annual Meeting, as required by Securities and Exchange
Commission rules.



PROPOSAL NO. 1
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

At the Annual Meeting, seven Directors are to be elected to serve until their successors have been elected
and qualified. Information regarding such nominees is set forth below.

The accompanying proxy will be voted for the election of the Board’s nominees unless contrary
instructions are given. If any Board nominee is unable to serve, which is not anticipated, the persons named as
proxies intend to vote, unless the Board of Directors reduces the number of nominees, for such other person or
persons as the Board of Directors may designate.

Each of the nominees served as a director during fiscal year 2012. If voting by proxy with respect to the
election of Directors, stockholders may vote in favor of all nominees, withhold their votes as to all nominees or
withhold their votes for specific nominees.

There were no arrangements or understandings between any Director or nominee for Director and any other
person pursuant to which such person was selected as a Director or nominee for Director. There are no family
relationships among any of our Directors or executive officers or nominees for Director or executive officer, except
that Richard Leeds, Bruce Leeds and Robert Leeds are brothers.

Nominees

Name of Nominee Principal Occupation Age Director Since

Richard Leeds Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of 53 April 1995
the Company

Bruce Leeds Vice Chairman of the Company 57 April 1995

Robert Leeds Vice Chairman of the Company and Chief 57 April 1995

Executive of the Company’s North
American Technology Products Group

Lawrence Reinhold  Executive Vice President and Chief 53 March 2009
Financial Officer of the Company

Robert D. Rosenthal ~ Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of 64 July 1995
First Long Island Investors LLC

Stacy Dick Chief Financial Officer of Julian Robertson 56 November 1995
Holdings

Marie Adler-Kravecas Retired President of Myron Corporation 53 June 2009

Richard Leeds joined the Company in 1982 and has served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since April 1995. Mr. Leeds graduated from New York University with a B.S. degree in Finance. Mr.
Leeds, together with his brothers Bruce and Robert Leeds, are the majority stockholders of the Company and the
sons of one of the Company’s founders. Mr. Leeds was selected to serve as Chairman of our Board due to his
experience and depth of knowledge of the Company and the direct marketing, computer and industrial products
industries, his role in developing and managing the Company’s business strategies and operations, as well as his
exceptional business judgment and leadership qualities.

Bruce Leeds joined the Company in 1977 and has served as Vice Chairman of the Company since April
1995. Mr. Leeds graduated from Tufts University with a B.A. degree in Economics. Mr. Leeds, together with his
brothers Richard and Robert Leeds, are the majority stockholders of the Company and the sons of one of the
Company’s founders. Mr. Leeds was selected to serve as a director on our Board due to his experience and depth of
knowledge of the Company and the direct marketing, computer and industrial products industries, his role in
developing and managing the Company’s business strategies and operations, his experience in international business
as well as his exceptional business judgment.

Robert Leeds joined the Company in 1977 and has served as Vice Chairman of the Company since April
1995. From April 18, 2011 to October 2011, Mr. Leeds served as the Interim Chief Executive of the Company’s
North American Technology Products Group. On March 1, 2013, Mr. Leeds was selected to serve as the Chief
Executive of the Company’s North American Technology Products Group. Mr. Leeds graduated from Tufts
University with a B.S. degree in Computer Applications Engineering. Mr. Leeds, together with his brothers Richard

9



and Bruce Leeds, are the majority stockholders of the Company and the sons of one of the Company’s founders.
Mr. Leeds was selected to serve as a director on our Board because of his experience and depth of knowledge of the
Company and the direct marketing, computer and industrial products industries, his role in developing and managing
the Company’s business strategies and operations, his significant computer and technology industry experience as
well as his exceptional business judgment.

Lawrence Reinhold joined the Company in January 2007 and has served as Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer since that date. Additionally, Mr. Reinhold has served as a Director since March 2009. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Reinhold was the Chief Financial Officer of a publicly traded developer and
manufacturer of medical devices; the Chief Financial Officer of a publicly traded communications software
company; and a regional Managing Partner of a Big 4 International Public Accounting Firm. He received his
B.S.B.A. degree, summa cum laude, and M.B.A. degree from San Diego State University. Mr. Reinhold is a
Certified Public Accountant. He also serves on the board of directors and audit committee of Pulse Electronics, a
publicly traded electronics manufacturer. Mr. Reinhold was selected to serve as a director on our Board due to his
contributions since joining the Company and his extensive experience and expertise in business, strategy, finance,
accounting, SEC reporting, public company management, mergers and acquisitions and financial systems as well as
his serving as a CFO of other public technology companies and a partner with an international accounting firm.

Robert D. Rosenthal has served as an independent Director of the Company since July 1995. He has been
the lead independent director since October 2006. Mr. Rosenthal is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of First
Long Island Investors LLC, which he co-founded in 1983. Mr. Rosenthal is a 1971 cum laude graduate of Boston
University and a 1974 graduate of Hofstra University Law School. Mr. Rosenthal is the chairman and CEO of a
wealth management company that invests in numerous public companies and is also an attorney and member of the
bar of the State of New York. Mr. Rosenthal was selected to serve as a director on our Board due to his financial,
investment and legal experience and acumen.

Stacy S. Dick has served as an independent Director of the Company since November 1995. Mr. Dick has
served as Chief Financial Officer of Julian Robertson Holdings since November 2008 and, since 2011, as Chief
Financial Officer of Tiger Management Advisors LLC. Mr. Dick was a Managing Director of Rothschild Inc. from
2001 to 2008 and served as an executive of other entities controlled by Rothschild family interests. Mr. Dick
graduated from Harvard University with an A.B. degree magna cum laude and a Ph.D. in Business Economics. He
has served as an adjunct professor of finance at the Stern School of Business (NYU) since 2004. Mr. Dick was
selected to serve as a director on our Board due to his exceptional knowledge and experience in the areas of
business, finance and economics.

Marie Adler-Kravecas has served as an independent Director of the Company since June 2009. Ms. Adler-
Kravecas joined Myron Corporation, an international, business-to-business direct marketing company, in 1984 and
served as President from 1999 to 2004. In 2005, Ms. Adler-Kravecas founded Wellconnected, LLC, a consumer
direct marketing company which was sold in 2008. Ms. Adler-Kravecas is currently retired. Ms. Adler-Kravecas
received a B.S. degree in Marketing and Business Administration from George Washington University. She has
been a member of the Young President’s Organization since 2003 and The Executive Group from 2004 to 2008.
Ms. Adler-Kravecas has been on the Board of the Children’s Aid and Family Service since 2004. Ms. Adler-
Kravecas was selected to serve as a director on our Board due to her practical experience in direct marketing and
international business.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR THE ELECTION OF
ALL THE DIRECTOR NOMINEES, WHICH IS DESIGNATED AS PROPOSAL NO. 1.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Independence of Directors

In connection with its annual review of director independence, the Board has determined that each of the
following Directors or nominees of the Company meets the standards for independence required by the New York
Stock Exchange and Securities and Exchange Commission rules: Robert D. Rosenthal, Stacy S. Dick and Marie
Adler-Kravecas. The Board made this determination based on (a) the absence of any of the express disqualifying
criteria relating to director independence set forth in Section 303A of the Corporate Governance Rules of the New
York Stock Exchange and (b) the criteria for independence required of audit committee directors by Section
10A(m)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which we refer to as the Exchange Act.

Although the Board has not adopted categorical standards of materiality for independence purposes (other
than those set forth in the NYSE listing standards and the Exchange Act), information provided by the Directors to
the Company did not indicate any relationships (e.g., commercial, industrial, banking, consulting, legal, accounting,
charitable, or familial) which would impair the independence of any of the non-employee Directors. The Board has
determined that there is no material relationship between the Company and each of Mr. Rosenthal, Mr. Dick and
Ms. Adler-Kravecas (directly or as a partner, stockholder, or officer of an organization that has a relationship with
the Company) and that each of them is independent pursuant to the NYSE listing standards. In making its
determination, the Board took into consideration that a private partnership, in which Messrs. Richard, Bruce and
Robert Leeds are general partners, has invested funds with a private investment firm, of which Robert D. Rosenthal
is Chairman and CEO. The Board (in each case with Mr. Rosenthal and Messrs. Richard, Bruce and Robert Leeds
being recused) determined that such relationship was not material to Messrs. Richard, Bruce and Robert Leeds
individually or collectively or to Mr. Rosenthal.

As a “controlled company,” the Company is exempt from the New York Stock Exchange requirement that
listed companies have a majority of independent directors. A “controlled company” is defined by the New York
Stock Exchange as a company of which more than 50% of the voting power for the election of directors is held by
an individual, group or other company. The Company is a “controlled company” in that more than 50% of the
voting stock for the election of directors of the Company, in the aggregate, is owned by certain members of the
Leeds family (including Richard Leeds, Bruce Leeds and Robert Leeds, each of whom is an officer and Director of
the Company) and certain Leeds’ family trusts (collectively, the “Leeds Group™). The members of the Leeds Group
have entered into a Stockholders Agreement with respect to certain Shares they each own. See “Transactions With
Related Persons” below.

Meetings of Non-Management Directors

The New York Stock Exchange requires the “non-management directors” or independent directors of a
NYSE-listed company to meet at regularly scheduled executive sessions without management and to disclose in
their annual proxy statements (1) the name of the non-management director who is chosen to preside at all regularly-
scheduled executive sessions of the non-management members of the board of directors and (2) a method for all
interested parties to communicate directly with the presiding director or with the non-management directors as a
group (this method is described below under “Communications with Directors”). The Board’s non-management or
independent directors meet separately in executive sessions, chaired by the Lead Independent Director (currently
Robert D. Rosenthal), at least quarterly.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

The Company has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines, which are available on the Corporate
Governance page of our website at www.systemax.com. The Corporate Governance Guidelines were last amended
in April 2010.

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines establish our corporate governance principles and practices on a
variety of topics, including the responsibilities, composition and functioning of the Board. The
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee assesses the Guidelines annually and makes recommendations to the
Board on any changes to implement. Our Guidelines address, among other things:

o the role and functions of our Board of Directors and management;
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e director qualifications, including our director independence standards and director nomination and
selection;

e the requirement to hold separate executive sessions of the independent directors;
e the conduct of Board meetings;
e policies for setting director compensation;
o director orientation and continuing education;
e policies regarding director access to management, employees and independent advisors; and
o the annual self-assessment of the Board to evaluate its own effectiveness.
Corporate Ethics Policy

The Company has adopted a Corporate Ethics Policy that applies to all employees of the Company,
including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Controller, its principal accounting
officer. The Corporate Ethics Policy is designed to deter wrongdoing and to promote honest and ethical conduct,
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, full and accurate disclosure of information requiring public
disclosure and the prompt reporting of Policy violations. The Company’s Corporate Ethics Policy is available on
the Company’s website (www.systemax.com). We intend to disclose on our website, in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations, amendments to, or waivers from, our Corporate Ethics Policy. Our Corporate Ethics Policy
was last amended in August 2012.

Communications with Directors

Stockholders of the Company who wish to communicate with the Board or any individual Director can
write to Systemax Inc., Attention: Investor Relations, 11 Harbor Park Drive, Port Washington, NY 11050 or send an
email to investinfo@systemax.com. Your letter or email should indicate that you are a stockholder of the Company.
Depending on the subject matter of your inquiry, management will forward the communication to the Director or
Directors to whom it is addressed; attempt to handle the inquiry directly, as might be the case if you request
information about the Company or it is a stockholder related matter; or not forward the communication if it is
primarily commercial in nature or if it relates to an improper or irrelevant topic. Interested parties, including non-
stockholders wishing to communicate directly with the Lead Independent Director or the non-management members
of the Board as a group should address their inquiries by mail sent to the attention of Robert D. Rosenthal, Lead
Independent Director, at the Company’s principal executive office located at 11 Harbor Park Drive, Port
Washington, NY 11050. All communications will be promptly relayed to the appropriate recipient(s).

Interested parties, including non-stockholders wishing to communicate directly with the Chairman of the
Audit Committee or the Audit Committee as a group should address their inquiries by mail to the attention of Stacy
S. Dick, Audit Committee Chairman, at the Company’s principal executive office located at 11 Harbor Park Drive,
Port Washington, NY 11050. All communications will be promptly relayed to the appropriate recipient(s).

Director Attendance at Annual Meetings

At last year’s annual meeting, held on June 11, 2012, three Directors attended the meeting, including the
Chairman of the Board and the Lead Independent Director. The Company does not have a policy with regards to
Directors’ attendance at annual stockholder meetings.
Board Meetings

During fiscal year 2012, the Board of Directors held six meetings, the Audit Committee held nine meetings,
the Compensation Committee held six meetings, the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee held six

meetings, and the Executive Committee held six meetings. All of the Directors attended at least 75% of all of the
meetings of the Board and the respective committees of the Board of which they were members.
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Committees of the Board
The Board of Directors has the following standing committees:
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board to assist the Board with oversight of (i) the integrity of the
financial statements of the Company, (ii) the Company’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, (iii) the
independence and qualifications of the Company’s external auditors, and (iv) the performance of the Company’s
internal audit function and external auditors. It is the Audit Committee’s responsibility to retain or terminate the
Company’s independent registered public accountants, who audit the Company’s financial statements, and to
prepare the Audit Committee report that the Securities and Exchange Commission requires to be included in the
Company’s Annual Proxy Statement. (See “Report of the Audit Committee” below.) As part of its activities, the
Audit Committee meets with the Company’s independent registered public accountants at least annually to review
the scope and results of the annual audit and quarterly to discuss the review of the quarterly financial results. In
addition, the Audit Committee receives and considers the independent registered public accountants’ comments and
recommendations as to internal controls, accounting staff, management performance and auditing procedures. The
Audit Committee is also responsible for establishing procedures for (i) the receipt, retention and treatment of
complaints received by the Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls and auditing matters and
(i) the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the Company of concerns regarding questionable
accounting or auditing matters.

In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing, and discussing with management and
reporting to the Board regularly, the Company’s risk assessment and risk management processes. While it is the job
of senior management to assess and manage the Company’s exposure to risk under the oversight of the Board of
Directors, the Audit Committee reviews and discusses with management the Company’s risk management process.
In addition, the Audit Committee works together with the Compensation Committee regarding the Company’s
compensation policies for all of the Company’s employees as the policies relate to the Company’s risk management
goals and objectives. The Audit Committee also discusses with management the Company’s major financial risk
exposures and the steps management has taken to monitor and control such exposures.

The Audit Committee Charter was last amended in August 2012. A copy of the Audit Committee Charter is
available on the Company’s website, www.systemax.com.

The current members of the Audit Committee are Stacy S. Dick (chairman), Robert D. Rosenthal and Marie
Adler-Kravecas. None of the current members or nominees of the Audit Committee are officers or employees of the
Company. The Committee meets regularly both with and without management participation. As noted above, in the
judgment of the Board, each of the members of the Audit Committee meets the standards for independence required
by the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the New York Stock Exchange. In addition, the Board
has determined that Mr. Dick and Mr. Rosenthal are “audit committee financial experts” as defined by regulations of
the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Company does not have a standing policy on the maximum number of audit committees of other
publicly owned companies on which the members of the Audit Committee may serve. However, if a member of the
Audit Committee simultaneously serves on the audit committee of more than two other publicly-owned companies,
the Board must determine whether such simultaneous service would impair the ability of such member to effectively
serve on the Audit Committee. Any such determination will be disclosed in the Company’s annual proxy statement.

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee

The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee’s responsibilities include, among other things (i)
identifying individuals qualified to become Board members and recommending to the Board nominees to stand for
election at any meeting of stockholders, (ii) identifying and recommending nominees to fill any vacancy, however
created, in the Board, and (iii) developing and recommending to the Board a code of business conduct and ethics and
a set of corporate governance principles (including director qualification standards, responsibilities and
compensation) and periodically reviewing the code and principles. The current members of the
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee are Robert D. Rosenthal (Chairman), Stacy S. Dick and Marie Adler-
Kravecas. In nominating candidates to become Board members, the Committee shall take into consideration such

13



factors as it deems appropriate, including the experience, skill, integrity and background of the candidates. The
Committee may consider candidates proposed by management or stockholders but is not required to do so. The
Committee does not have any formal policy with regard to the consideration of any Director candidates
recommended by the security holders or any minimum qualifications or specific procedure for identifying and
evaluating nominees for Director as the Board does not believe that such a formalistic approach is necessary or
appropriate at this time.

The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for developing and recommending to the
Board a set of risk management policies and procedures, including the Company’s compensation policies for all its
employees as they relate to risk management, and to review these policies and procedures annually.

The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee, in seeking qualified Board members, does not have a
policy regarding utilizing diversity, however defined, in its selection process. The Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee looks for individuals who have very high integrity, significant business experience and a
deep genuine interest in the Company. We believe that each of the director nominees and other directors bring these
qualifications to our Board of Directors. Moreover, they provide our board with a diverse complement of specific
business skills, experience and perspectives.

The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee Charter was last amended in August 2012. The
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee Charter is available on the Company’s website (www.systemax.com).

Stockholder Nominations for Director

Stockholders may propose candidates for Board membership by writing to Systemax Inc., Attention:
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee, 11 Harbor Park Drive, Port Washington, NY 11050 so that the
nomination is received by the Company by December 31, 2013 to be considered for the 2014 annual meeting. Any
such proposal shall contain the name, Company security holdings (direct or indirect; of record and/or beneficially)
and contact information of the person making the nomination; a description of all direct and indirect related party
transactions, compensation and other material monetary arrangements, agreements or understandings during the past
three years, and any other material relationship, if any, between the stockholder and its respective affiliates or
associates, or others with whom they are acting in concert, on the one hand, and the nominee and his or her
respective affiliates, associates and others with whom they are acting in concert, on the other hand; the nominee’s
name, age, address and other contact information; any direct or indirect holdings, beneficially and/or of record, of
the Company’s securities by the nominee; any information regarding the nominee required to be disclosed about
directors under applicable securities laws and/or stock exchange requirements; information regarding related party
transactions with the Company and/or the stockholder submitting the nomination and/or the nominee; any actual or
potential conflicts of interest; the nominee’s biographical data, current public and private company affiliations,
employment history (including current principal employment) and qualifications and status as “independent” under
applicable securities laws and stock exchange requirements. Nominees proposed by stockholders will receive the
same consideration as other nominees.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee’s responsibility is to review and approve corporate goals relevant to the
compensation of the Chief Executive Officer and, after an evaluation of the Chief Executive Officer’s performance
in light of such goals, to set the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer. The Compensation Committee also
approves (a) the annual compensation of the other executive officers of the Company, (b) the annual compensation
of certain subsidiary managers, and (c) all individual stock-based incentive grants. The Committee is also
responsible for reviewing and making periodic recommendations to the Board with respect to the general
compensation, benefits and perquisite policies and practices of the Company including the Company’s incentive-
based and equity-based compensation plans. The Compensation Committee also prepares an annual report on
executive compensation for inclusion in the annual proxy statement. (See “Compensation Committee Report to
Stockholders” below.) The current members of the Compensation Committee are Robert D. Rosenthal (Chairman),
Stacy S. Dick and Marie Adler-Kravecas.

In addition, it is the Compensation Committee’s responsibility to consider, and work together with the

Company’s Audit Committee regarding, the Company’s compensation policies for all its employees in the context
of how such policies affect and promote the Company’s risk management goals and objectives.
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The Compensation Committee Charter was last amended in April 2010. The Compensation Committee
Charter is available on the Company’s website (www.systemax.com).

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee consists of the Chairman of the Board and any Vice Chairman and such other
Directors as may be named thereto by the Board. The current members of the Executive Committee are Messrs.
Richard Leeds, Bruce Leeds, Robert Leeds and Robert D. Rosenthal, the Lead Independent Director. Among other
duties as may be assigned by the Board from time to time, the Executive Committee is authorized to oversee the
operations of the Company, supervise the executive officers of the Company, review and make recommendations to
the Board regarding the strategic direction of the Company and review and make recommendations to the Board
regarding all possible acquisitions or other significant business transactions. The Executive Committee is also
authorized to manage the affairs of the Corporation between meetings of the Board; the Committee has all of the
powers of the Board not inconsistent with any provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law, the Company’s
Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws or other resolutions adopted by the Board, but does not generally exercise
such authority.

Board Leadership Structure

As noted above, our Board currently includes three independent Directors. Richard Leeds has served as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since April 1995. Our independent directors have designated, Robert D.
Rosenthal, one of the independent directors, to be the Lead Independent Director. We believe that the current mix of
employee directors and non-employee independent directors that make up our Board, along with the independent
oversight of our Lead Independent Director, benefits the Company and its stockholders.

Although the Board does not have an express policy on whether or not the roles of Chief Executive Officer
and Chairman of the Board should be separate and if they are to be separate, whether the Chairman of the Board
should be selected from the non-employee Directors or be an employee, the Board believes that it should have the
flexibility to make a determination from time to time in a manner that is in the best interests of the Company and its
stockholders at the time of such determination. At this time, the Board of Directors believes that Mr. Leeds’s
service as both Chairman of the Board and CEO is in the best interest of the Company and its stockholders. Mr.
Leeds possesses in-depth knowledge of the issues, opportunities and challenges facing the Company and its
businesses and is thus best positioned to develop agendas that ensure that the Board’s time and attention are focused
on the matters that are most critical to the Company and its stockholders. His combined role has produced decisive
leadership, ensures clear accountability, and enhances the Company’s ability to communicate its message and
strategy clearly and consistently to the Company’s stockholders, employees, customers and suppliers, particularly
during times of turbulent economic conditions.

The Board believes that the independent directors provide effective oversight of management. Moreover, in
addition to feedback provided during the course of Board meetings, the independent directors have regular executive
sessions. Following an executive session of independent directors, the Lead Independent Director acts as a liaison
between the independent directors and the Chairman regarding any specific feedback or issues, provides the
Chairman with input regarding agenda items for Board and Committee meetings, and coordinates with the Chairman
regarding information to be provided to the independent directors in performing their duties. The Board believes that
this approach appropriately and effectively complements the combined CEO/Chairman structure.

We recognize that different board leadership structures may be appropriate for companies in different
situations and believe that no one structure is suitable for all companies. We believe our current Board leadership
structure is optimal for us because it demonstrates to our employees, suppliers, customers, and other stakeholders
that the Company is under strong leadership, with a single person setting the tone and having primary responsibility
for managing our operations. Having a single leader for both the Company and the Board eliminates the potential for
confusion or duplication of efforts, and provides clear leadership for the Company. We believe the Company, like
many U.S. companies, has been well-served by this leadership structure.

Lead Independent Director

The independent Directors elect one independent Director to serve as a Lead Independent Director. In
addition to presiding at executive sessions of nonemployee Directors, the Lead Independent Director has the
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responsibility to coordinate the activities of the independent Directors, and to perform the following functions: (a)
advise the Chairman of the Board as to an appropriate schedule of Board meetings, seeking to ensure that the
independent Directors can perform their duties responsibly while not interfering with the flow of the Company’s
operations; (b) provide the Chairman with input as to the preparation of agendas for the Board and committee
meetings; (c) advise the Chairman as to the quality, quantity, and timeliness of the flow of information from the
Company’s management that is necessary for the independent directors to effectively and responsibly perform their
duties, and although the Company’s management is responsible for the preparation of materials for the Board, the
Lead Independent Director may specifically request the inclusion of certain material; (d) recommend to the
Chairman the retention of consultants who report directly to the Board; (e) assist the Board and the Company’s
officers in assuring compliance with and implementation of the corporate governance policies; and be principally
responsible for recommending revisions to the corporate governance policies; (f) coordinate and develop the agenda
for, and moderate executive sessions of, the independent directors of the Board, and act as principal liaison between
the independent directors and the Chairman on sensitive issues; and (g) recommend to the Chairman the
membership of the various Board committees.

Our Board conducts an annual evaluation in order to determine whether it and its committees are
functioning effectively. As part of this annual self-evaluation, the Board evaluates whether the current leadership
structure continues to be optimal for the Company and its stockholders. Our Corporate Governance Guidelines, as
amended in April 2010, provide the flexibility for our Board to modify or continue our leadership structure in the
future, as it deems appropriate.

Risk Oversight

Our Board as a whole is responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk management process. The Board
focuses on the Company’s general risk management strategy, the most significant risks facing the Company, and
seeks to ensure that appropriate risk mitigation strategies are implemented by management. Risk management is a
recurring Audit Committee and Board quarterly agenda item, and is considered part of strategic planning. The
Board is also apprised of particular risk management matters in connection with its general oversight and approval
of corporate matters and receives information relating to material Company risk from management and from the
Company’s Legal, Risk Management/Insurance and Internal Audit Departments.

The Board has delegated to each of its committees oversight of certain aspects of the Company’s risk
management process. Among its duties, the Audit Committee reviews with management (a) Company processes
with respect to risk assessment and management of risks that may be material to the Company, (b) the Company’s
system of disclosure controls and system of internal controls over financial reporting, and (c) the Company’s
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The Compensation Committee is responsible for considering
and working together with the Audit Committee regarding the Company’s compensation policies for all its
employees in the context of how such policies affect and promote the Company’s risk management goals and
objectives. The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for developing and recommending to
the Board a set of risk management policies and procedures, including the Company’s compensation policies for all
its employees as they relate to risk management, and to review these policies and procedures annually. All
committees report to the full Board as appropriate, including when a matter rises to the level of a material or
enterprise level risk.

The Company’s senior management is responsible for day-to-day risk management. Our Internal Audit
Department serves as the primary monitoring and testing function for company-wide policies and procedures, and
manages the day-to-day oversight of the risk management strategy for the ongoing business of the Company. This
oversight includes identifying, evaluating, and addressing potential risks that may exist at the enterprise, strategic,
financial, operational, compliance and reporting levels. The Internal Auditor reports directly to our Chief Financial
Officer and Audit Committee quarterly, and the Audit Committee considers risk management issues as part of its
quarterly agenda.

We believe the division of risk management responsibilities described above is an effective approach for
addressing the risks facing the Company and that our Board leadership structure supports this approach.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE*

The Audit Committee of the Board operates under its Charter, which was originally adopted by the Board
in 2000 and was most recently revised in August 2012. As set forth in its Charter, the Audit Committee’s job is one
of oversight. Management is responsible for the Company’s financial statements, internal accounting and financial
controls, the financial reporting process, the internal audit function and compliance with the Company’s policies and
legal requirements. The Company’s independent registered public accountants are responsible for performing an
independent audit of the Company’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) and for issuance of a report thereon, and for monitoring the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls; they also perform limited reviews of the Company’s unaudited
quarterly financial statements.

The Audit Committee’s responsibility is to engage the independent registered public accountants, monitor
and oversee these accounting, financial and audit processes and report its findings to the full Board. It also
investigates matters related to the Company’s financial statements and controls as it deems appropriate. In the
performance of these oversight functions, the members of the Audit Committee rely upon the information, opinions,
reports and statements presented to them by Company management and by the independent registered public
accountants, as well as by other experts that the Committee hires.

The Audit Committee met with the Company’s independent auditors to review and discuss the overall
scope and plans for the audit of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2012. The Audit Committee has considered and discussed with management and the independent auditors (both
alone and with management present) the audited financial statements as well as the independent auditors’ evaluation
of the Company’s internal controls and the overall quality of the Company’s financial reporting.

Management represented to the Audit Committee that the Company’s consolidated financial statements for
fiscal year 2012 were prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. In connection
with these responsibilities, the Audit Committee met with management and Ernst & Young LLP to review and
discuss the December 31, 2012 audited consolidated financial statements. The Audit Committee also discussed with
Ernst & Young LLP the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61
Communication with Audit Committees), as amended and as adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board in Rule 3200T. The Audit Committee also received written disclosures and the letter from Ernst & Young
LLP required by Rule 3526 of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Communications with Audit
Committees Concerning Independence), and the Audit Committee discussed with Ernst & Young LLP the firm’s
independence.

Based on the review of the representations of management, the discussions with management and the
independent registered public accountants and the review of the Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm, to the Committee, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board that the
financial statements of the Company for fiscal year 2012 as audited by Ernst & Young LLP be included in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Stacy S. Dick (Chairman)
Robert D. Rosenthal
Marie Adler-Kravecas

*  The information contained in this Audit Committee Report shall not be deemed to be “soliciting material” or to
be “filed” with the SEC, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into any filings under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, which we refer to as the Securities Act, or under the Exchange Act, except
to the extent that we specifically incorporate this information by reference into any such filing.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

There are no arrangements or understandings between any officer and any other person pursuant to which
such person was selected as an officer.

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the executive officers of the Company as of April
15, 2013.

Name Age  Position

Richard Leeds 53 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer; Director

Bruce Leeds 57 Vice Chairman; Director

Robert Leeds 57 Vice Chairman and Chief Executive of the Company’s
North American Technology Products Group; Director

Lawrence Reinhold 53 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer;
Director

Perminder Dale 52 Chief Executive of the Company’s European
Technology Products Group

Robert Dooley 57 President of the Company’s subsidiaries comprising
the Global Industrial business

Eric Lerner 55 Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Thomas Axmacher 54 Vice President and Controller

For biographical information about Richard Leeds, Bruce Leeds, Robert Leeds and Lawrence Reinhold, see pages 8
and 9 of this Proxy Statement.

Perminder Dale joined the Company in January 2012 as Chief Executive of the Company’s European
Technology Products Group. Mr. Dale has over 20 years of experience in the information technology industry: from
1996 to 2010 Mr. Dale held various significant executive positions with Dell Computer Corporation, including
Director of Server Business for Europe, Middle East and Africa, Director of UK Corporate Sales, Vice President and
General Manager of Emerging Markets (2000 to 2008) and Vice President and General Manager of Global
Distribution Channels (2008 to 2010). Mr. Dale also held various management positions with other well-known
technology companies, including Sun Microsystems, Siemins NixDorf and Hewlett Packard. Mr. Dale earned his
M.B.A. in international business and marketing from University of Bradford Business School.

Robert Dooley was appointed President of the Company’s subsidiaries comprising the Global Industrial
business in January 2012. Mr. Dooley originally joined the Company in 1982 and served in numerous roles until
March 2004, including Senior Vice President, Worldwide Computer Sales and Marketing. He also was a Director of
the Company from June 1995 through March 2004. Mr. Dooley left the Company in 2004 but returned in December
2007 as Vice President, Internet Marketing for the Global Industrial business. Mr. Dooley graduated from
Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute with a B.S. in Physics.

Eric Lerner was appointed Senior Vice President and General Counsel in May 2012. He was previously a
senior corporate partner at Kramer Levin Naftalis & Frankel, a corporate partner, Co-Chair of the National
Corporate Department and member of the Board of Directors of Katten Muchin Zavis Rosenman, and a corporate
partner and Chair of the Corporate Department of Rosenman & Colin. He received his JD degree from the
University of Chicago and his undergraduate degree from SUNY Binghamton.

Thomas Axmacher was appointed Vice President and Controller of the Company in October 2006. He was
previously Chief Financial Officer of Curative Health Services, Inc., a publicly traded health care company, and
Vice President and Controller of Tempo Instrument Group, an electronics manufacturer. Mr. Axmacher received his
B.S. degree in Accounting from Albany University and his M.B.A. from Long Island University.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL
OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table provides certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of the Shares as of
April 15, 2013, by (i) each of the Directors, (ii) each of the named executive officers listed in the summary
compensation table, (iii) all current Directors and executive officers as a group and (iv) each person known to the
Company to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of any class of the Company’s voting securities.

As used in this table “beneficial ownership” means the sole or shared power to vote or direct the voting or
to dispose or direct the disposition of any security. A person is deemed as of any date to have “beneficial
ownership” of any security that such person owns or has a right to acquire within 60 days after such date. Any
security that any person named above has the right to acquire within 60 days is deemed to be outstanding for
purposes of calculating the ownership percentage of such person, but is not deemed to be outstanding for purposes
of calculating the ownership percentage of any other person. Unless otherwise stated, each person owns the reported
shares directly and has the sole right to vote and determine whether to dispose of such shares.

A total of 36,679,472 Shares were outstanding as of April 15, 2013.

Amount
and Nature
of
Beneficial
Ownership Percent of
(a) Class
Richard Leeds (1) 12,643,830 34.5%
Bruce Leeds (2) 9,438,869 25.7%
Robert Leeds (3) 10,546,169 28.8%
Lawrence Reinhold (4) 327,920 *
Robert D. Rosenthal (5) 64,681 *
Stacy S. Dick(6) 37,557 *
Marie Adler-Kravecas (7) 20,453 *
All current Directors and executive officers of the Company (11 persons)(8) 25,874,838 70.5%
Other Beneficial Owners of 5% or More of the Company’s Voting Stock
Prescott General Partners LLC (9) 2,054,411 5.6%
€)] Amounts listed in this column may include shares held in partnerships or trusts that are counted in more

than one individual’s total.
* less than 1%

(1) Includes 2,091,087 shares owned by Mr. Richard Leeds directly, 1,647,908 shares owned by the Richard
Leeds 2011 GRAT and 1,613,081 shares owned by the Richard Leeds 2010 GRAT. Also includes 1,838,583
shares owned by a limited partnership of which Richard Leeds is the general partner, 235,850 shares owned
by a limited partnership of which a limited liability company controlled by Richard Leeds is the general
partner, 4,697,521 shares owned by trusts for the benefit of his brothers” children for which Richard Leeds
acts as co-trustee and 519,800 shares owned by a limited partnership in which Richard Leeds has an indirect
pecuniary interest. Richard Leeds’ mailing address is Richard Leeds, c/o Systemax Inc., 11 Harbor Park
Drive, Port Washington, NY 11050.

(2)  Includes 2,739,357 shares owned by Mr. Bruce Leeds directly, 1,005,753 shares owned by the Bruce Leeds
2011 GRAT and 1,041,952 shares owned by the Bruce Leeds 2010 GRAT. Also includes 4,132,007 shares
owned by trusts for the benefit of his brothers’ children for which Bruce Leeds acts as co-trustee and
519,800 shares owned by a limited partnership in which Bruce Leeds has an indirect pecuniary interest.
Bruce Leeds’ mailing address is Bruce Leeds, c/o Systemax Inc., 11 Harbor Park Drive, Port Washington,
NY 11050.
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3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

()

(8)

©)

Includes 137,168 shares owned by Mr. Robert Leeds directly, 1,219,590 shares owned by the Robert Leeds
2012 GRAT, 1,897,117 shares owned by the Robert Leeds 2011 GRAT and 2,086,838 shares owned by the
Robert Leeds 2010 GRAT. Also includes 4,685,656 shares owned by trusts for the benefit of his brothers’
children for which Robert Leeds acts as co-trustee and 519,800 shares owned by a limited partnership in
which Robert Leeds has an indirect pecuniary interest. Robert Leeds’ mailing address is Robert Leeds, c/o
Systemax Inc., 11 Harbor Park Drive, Port Washington, NY 11050.

Includes options to acquire a total of 262,500 shares that are currently exercisable or become exercisable
within 60 days pursuant to the terms of the Company’s 1999 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan and 17,500
restricted stock units granted pursuant to the Company’s 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan that will vest
within 60 days. Also includes 500 shares held by Mr. Reinhold’s spouse, of which Mr. Reinhold disclaims
beneficial ownership.

Includes options to acquire a total of 9,000 shares that are currently exercisable or become exercisable
within 60 days pursuant to the terms of the Company’s 1995 and 2006 Stock Incentive Plans for Non-
Employee Directors and 3,170 restricted stock units granted pursuant to the Company’s 2006 Stock
Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors that will vest within 60 days.

Includes options to acquire a total of 9,000 shares that are currently exercisable or become exercisable
within 60 days pursuant to the terms of the Company’s 1995 and 2006 Stock Incentive Plans for Non-
Employee Directors and 3,170 restricted stock units granted pursuant to the Company’s 2006 Stock
Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors that will vest within 60 days.

Includes options to acquire a total of 5,000 shares that are currently exercisable or become exercisable
within 60 days pursuant to the terms of the Company’s 2006 Stock Incentive Plan for Non-Employee
Directors and 3,170 restricted stock units granted pursuant to the Company’s 2006 Stock Incentive Plan for
Non-Employee Directors that will vest within 60 days.

Includes options to acquire a total of 85,625 shares that are currently exercisable or become exercisable
within 60 days and 5,000 restricted stock units granted pursuant to the Company’s 2010 Long-Term
Incentive Plan.

Based on information supplied by Prescott General Partners LLC, Thomas W. Smith and Scott J.
Vassalluzzo in a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 14, 2013. The address of the parties is
2200 Butts Road, Suite 320, Boca Raton, FL 33431. Prescott General Partners LLC and Messrs Smith and
Vassalluzzo have the shared power to vote or dispose or to direct the vote or the disposal of 2,054,411,
768,518 and 192,018, respectively. In addition, Prescott General Partners LLC has the sole power to vote or
to direct the vote of 0 shares and the sole power to dispose or to direct the disposition of O shares, Mr. Smith
has the sole power to vote or to direct the vote of 600,000 shares and the sole power to dispose or to direct
the disposition of 600,000 shares, and Mr. Vassalluzo has the sole power to vote or to direct the vote of 0
shares and the sole power to dispose or to direct the disposition of 0 shares. The 13G/A is Amendment No.
4 to the joint filing on Schedule 13G by Thomas W. Smith, Scott J. Vassalluzzo and Steven M. Fischer
originally filed with the SEC on July 13, 2009, as amended by Amendment No. 1 filed with the SEC on
February 16, 2010, Amendment No. 2 filed with the SEC on February 14, 2011 and Amendment No. 3 filed
with the SEC on January 12, 2012.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires the Company’s executive officers and Directors and persons

who own more than ten percent of a registered class of the Company’s equity securities to file reports of ownership
and changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Executive officers, Directors and ten-
percent stockholders are required by SEC regulation to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms
they file. Based solely on its review of the copies of Section 16(a) forms received by it, or written representations
from certain reporting persons, the Company believes its Executive Officers, Directors and ten-percent stockholders
complied with all such filing requirements for fiscal year 2012, except for the following filings made on behalf of
the named Directors that were inadvertently filed late by the Company: a Form 3 filing for Robert Dooley made on
February 2, 2012 and a Form 4 filing for Benjamin White made on March 5, 2012.
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS

Under the Company’s Corporate Ethics Policy, all officers, Directors and employees (collectively the
“Company Representatives”) are required to avoid conflicts of interest, appearances of conflicts of interest and
potential conflicts of interest. A “conflict of interest” occurs when a Company Representative’s private interest
interferes in any way with the interests of the Company. A conflict can arise when a Company Representative takes
actions or has interests that may make it difficult to perform his or her Company work objectively and effectively.
Conflicts of interest also arise when a Company Representative, or a member of his or her family, receives improper
personal benefits as a result of his or her position in the Company. Company Representatives cannot allow any
consideration such as the receipt of gifts or financial interests in other businesses or personal or family relationships
to interfere with the independent exercise of his or her business judgment and work activities to the benefit of the
Company. Loans to, or guarantees of obligations of, Company Representatives are prohibited unless permitted by
law and authorized by the Board or a Committee designated by the Board. If a Company Representative becomes
aware of a potential conflict of interest he or she must communicate such potential conflict of interest to the
Company.

The Company’s written corporate approval policy requires transactions with related persons, including but
not limited to leases with related persons and sales or purchases of Company assets by related persons, to be
reviewed and approved or ratified by the Company’s Audit Committee as well as by the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and General Counsel. In this regard, all such transactions are first discussed with
the Chief Financial Officer and are submitted to the General Counsel’s office, including for an initial determination
of whether such further related person transaction review is required. The Company utilizes the definition of related
persons under applicable SEC rules, defined as any executive officer, director or nominee for director of the
Company, any beneficial owner of more than 5% of the outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock, or any
immediate family member of any such person. In reviewing these transactions, the Company strives to assure that
the terms of any agreement between the Company and a related party is at arm’s length, fair and at least as
beneficial to the Company as could be obtained from third parties. The Audit Committee, in its discretion, may
consult with third party appraisers, valuation advisors or brokers to make such determination.

Leases

The Company has leased its facility in Port Washington, NY since 1988 from an entity owned by Richard
Leeds, Bruce Leeds and Robert Leeds, Directors of the Company. Rent expense under this lease totaled
approximately $937,123 for fiscal year 2012. The Company believes that these payments were no higher than
would be paid to an unrelated lessor for comparable space.

Stockholders Agreement

Certain members of the Leeds family (including Richard Leeds, Bruce Leeds and Robert Leeds) and family
trusts of Messrs. Leeds entered into a stockholders agreement pursuant to which the parties agreed to vote in favor
of the nominees for the Board designated by the holders of a majority of the Shares held by such stockholders at the
time of the Company’s initial public offering of the Shares. In addition, the agreement prohibits the sale of the
Shares without the consent of the holders of a majority of the Shares held by all parties to the agreement, subject to
certain exceptions, including sales pursuant to an effective registration statement and sales made in accordance with
Rule 144. The agreement also grants certain drag-along rights in the event of the sale of all or a portion of the
Shares held by holders of a majority of the Shares. As of the end of fiscal year 2012, the parties to the stockholders
agreement beneficially owned 25,286,700 Shares subject to such agreement (constituting approximately 69% of the
Shares outstanding).

Pursuant to the stockholders agreement, the Company granted to the parties demand and incidental, or
“piggy-back,” registration rights with respect to the Shares. The demand registration rights generally provide that
the holders of a majority of the Shares may require, subject to certain restrictions regarding timing and number of
Shares that the Company register under the Securities Act all or part of the Shares held by such stockholders.
Pursuant to the incidental registration rights, the Company is required to notify such stockholders of any proposed
registration of any Shares under the Securities Act and if requested by any such stockholder to include in such
registration any number of shares of Shares held by it subject to certain restrictions. The Company has agreed to
pay all expenses and indemnify any selling stockholders against certain liabilities, including under the Securities
Act, in connection with the registration of Shares pursuant to such agreement.
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Information for our equity compensation plans in effect as of the end of fiscal year 2012 is as follows:

(@) (b) (©
Number of
securities
remaining
available for
Number of future
securities to issuance
be issued Weighted-  under equity
upon average  compensation
exercise of exercise price plans
outstanding of outstanding (excluding
options, options, securities
warrants warrants and reflected in
and rights rights column (a))
Plan category
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 1,353,059 $15.88 6,512,500
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders — — —
Total

1,353,059 $15.88 6,512,500
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Compensation Discussion and Analysis

In this section, we discuss the material elements of our compensation programs and policies, including the
objectives of our compensation programs and the reasons why we pay each element of our executives’
compensation. Following this discussion, you will find a series of tables containing more specific details about the
compensation earned by, or awarded to, the following individuals, whom we refer to as the Named Executive
Officers or NEOs. This discussion focuses on compensation practices relating to the NEOs for our 2012 fiscal year.

Our NEOs in 2012 (based on total 2012 compensation earned) were as follows:

Name of NEO Title

Richard Leeds Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Bruce Leeds Vice Chairman

Robert Leeds Vice Chairman and Chief Executive of the

Company’s North American Technology
Products Group

Lawrence Reinhold  Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer

David Sprosty* Former Chief Executive of the North
American Technology Products Group

* Mr. Sprosty’s employment terminated in March 2013 at which time he was replaced by Robert
Leeds. Compensation information for Mr. Sprosty has been included, as he was a NEO as of
December 31, 2012.

Central Objectives and Philosophy of Our Executive Compensation Programs

The Company’s executive compensation programs are designed to achieve a number of important
objectives, including attracting and retaining individuals of superior ability and managerial talent, rewarding
individual contributions to the achievement of the Company’s short and long-term financial and business objectives,
promoting integrity and good corporate governance, and motivating our executive officers to manage the Company
in a manner that will enhance its growth and financial performance for the benefit of our stockholders, customers
and employees. Accordingly, in determining the amount and mix of compensation, the Compensation Committee
seeks both to provide a competitive compensation package and to structure annual and long-term incentive programs
that reward achievement of performance goals that directly correlate to the enhancement of sustained, long-term
stockholder value, as well as to promote executive retention.

Our Compensation Committee seeks to design compensation programs with features that mitigate risk
without diminishing the incentive nature of the compensation. The Company’s variable pay programs are designed
to reward outstanding individual and team performance while mitigating risk taking behavior that might affect
financial results. Risk taking behavior includes the risk that an executive will take action that is detrimental to the
Company’s long-term interest in order to increase the executive’s short-term performance-based compensation. We
believe our programs encourage and reward prudent business judgment and appropriate risk-taking over the long-
term. We believe the following factors are effective in mitigating risk relating to our compensation programs:

e Multiple Performance factors. We use multiple performance factors that encourage executives to focus on
the overall health of the business rather than a single financial measure.

e Award Cap. Our 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013 NEO Cash Bonus Plans each cap the maximum award
payable to any individual.
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e Clawback Provision. Our NEO Cash Bonus Plans provide the Company the ability to recapture all or a
portion of cash awards (i) from our executive officers to the extent a bonus resulted from reported financial
results that upon restatement of such results (other than as a result of changes in accounting principles)
would not have generated the bonus or would have generated a lower bonus or (ii) from an executive
officer if the Board learns of any misconduct by the executive officer that contributed to the Company
having to restate all or a portion of its financial statements. In addition, the Board may recapture cash
bonus awards from an executive if the Board determines that the executive engaged in serious ethical
misconduct.

e Management Processes. Board and management processes are in place to oversee risk associated with the
Company’s operations. Our Board as a whole is responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk
management process. The Board focuses on the Company’s general risk management strategy, the most
significant risks facing the Company, and seeks to ensure that appropriate risk mitigation strategies are
implemented by management. The Company has enhanced its risk management processes, and risk
management is now a recurring Audit Committee and Board quarterly agenda item, and is considered part
of strategic planning. The Board is also apprised of particular risk management matters in connection with
its general oversight and approval of corporate matters and receives information relating to material risks
affecting the Company from management and from our Legal, Risk Management/Insurance and Internal
Audit departments.

e Long-Term Equity Compensation. A number of factors mitigate risks inherent in long-term equity
compensation, specifically the vesting period for stock options and restricted stock unit grants, which we
believe causes our executives to focus on long-term achievements and on building stockholder value.

We believe that our compensation policies for employees generally throughout our organization are not
reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on our company. From time to time a limited number of key
managers are eligible to receive stock options and/or restricted stock units in varying amounts based on the
judgment of the Compensation Committee. However, all awards are subject to years long vesting periods.

Elements of Our Executive Compensation Programs

To promote the objectives described above, our executive compensation programs consist of the following
principal elements:

e Base salary;

e Non-equity incentive cash compensation, referred to for discussion purposes as bonuses;
e Stock-based incentives and

o Benefits, perquisites and other compensation.

The Committee does not maintain formal policies for specifically allocating compensation among current
and long-term compensation or among cash and non-cash compensation elements. Instead, the Committee
maintains flexibility and adjusts different elements of compensation based upon its evaluation of the Company’s key
compensation goals set forth above. The Company does not have a formal policy regarding internal pay equity.

Base Salary - Salary levels are subjectively determined based on individual and Company performance as
well as an objective assessment of prevailing salary levels for comparable companies, derived from widely available
published reports of the average of prevailing salary levels for comparable companies (based on industry, revenues,
number of employees, location and similar factors) in the Company’s geographic regions. Such reports do not
identify the component companies. Mr. Reinhold’s and Mr. Sprosty’s minimum salary is set pursuant to their
respective employment agreements.

Cash Bonuses - Incentive cash compensation of the Company’s NEOs under the 2010, 2011, 2012 and
2013 NEO Cash Bonus Plans described below (and implemented under our 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan,
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described below) is based primarily upon an evaluation of Company performance as it relates to three general
business areas:

e Operational and Financial Performance (utilizing standard metrics such as net sales, operating income,
consolidated net income, earnings before interest and taxes (“EBIT”), gross margin, operating margin,
earnings per share, working capital, return on invested capital, stockholder equity and peer group
comparisons);

e Strategic Accomplishments (including growth in the business, implementation of systems, process and
technology improvements, and growth in the value of the Company’s assets, including through strategic
acquisition transactions); and

e Corporate Governance and Oversight (encompassing legal and regulatory compliance and adherence to
Company policies including the timely filing of periodic reports with the SEC, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act,
environmental, employment and safety laws and regulations and the Company’s corporate ethics policy).

Pursuant to SEC rules, the Company is not disclosing the specific performance targets and actual
performance measures for the goals used in its 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013 Bonus Plans because they represent
confidential financial information that the Company does not disclose to the public, and the Company believes that
disclosure of this information would cause us competitive harm. The Company believes that these performance
goals were reasonably challenging to achieve. Targets are set such that only exceptional performance will result in
payouts above the target incentive and poor performance will result in no incentive payment. We set the target
performance goals at a level for which there is a reasonable chance of achievement based upon forecasted
performance. Scenarios were developed based upon a range of assumptions used to build our annual budget. We
did not perform specific analysis on the probability of the achievement of the target performance goals given that the
market is difficult to predict. Rather, we relied upon our experience in setting the goals guided by our objective of
setting a reasonably attainable and motivationally meaningful goal.

In determining the compensation of a particular executive, consideration is given to the specific corporate
responsibilities that such executive is charged with as they relate to the foregoing business areas.

Stock-Based Incentives - Stock-based incentives, at the present time consisting of (a) non-qualified stock
options granted at 100% of the stock’s fair market value on the grant date (based on the NYSE closing price of the
Company’s common stock on that date) and/or (b) restricted stock units granted subject to certain conditions,
constitute the long-term portion of the Company’s executive compensation package. Stock based compensation
provides an incentive for executives to manage the Company with a view to achieving results which would increase
the Company’s stock price over the long-term and, therefore, the return to the Company’s stockholders. Stock
option, restricted stock and restricted stock unit grants must be approved by the Compensation Committee; however,
the Compensation Committee is permitted to delegate this authority to officers of the Company regarding awards to
employees who are not officers or directors of the Company and who are not, and are not expected to become,
“covered employees” under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). We
do not use any specific allocation percentage or formula in determining the size of the cash and equity based
components of compensation in relation to each other.

The Compensation Committee is cognizant of the timing of the grant of stock based compensation in
relation to the publication of Company earnings releases and other public announcements. Stock based
compensation grants will not be made effective generally, until after the Company has disclosed, and the market has
had an opportunity to react to, material, potentially market-moving, information concerning the Company.

Richard Leeds, Bruce Leeds and Robert Leeds have not historically received stock options or other stock-
based incentives as part of their compensation since the Company’s initial public offering, and did not receive any
such compensation in 2010, 2011 or 2012. As described below, Mr. Reinhold received stock options in 2009 and
2011 and restricted stock units in 2010 and 2011. As described below, Mr. Sprosty received stock options and
restricted stock units in 2011 in connection with his hiring.

Benefits, Perquisites and Other Compensation - The Company provides various employee benefit programs
to its employees, including NEOs. These benefits include medical, dental, life and disability insurance benefits and
our 401(k) plan, which includes Company contributions. The Company also provides Company-owned or leased
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cars or automobile allowances and related reimbursements to certain NEOs and certain other Company managers
which are not provided to all employees. Certain Company executives also have or are entitled to receive severance
payments, and/or change of control payments pursuant to negotiated employment agreements they have with the
Company (see below). The Company does not provide to executive officers any (a) pension benefits or (b) deferred
compensation under any defined contribution or other plan on a basis that is not tax-qualified.

Tax Deductibility Considerations. It is our policy generally to qualify compensation paid to executive
officers for deductibility under section 162(m) of the Code. Section 162(m) generally prohibits deducting the
compensation of executive officers that exceeds $1,000,000 unless that compensation is based on the satisfaction of
objective performance goals. Our long-term incentive plans (the 1995 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan, the 1999
Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan, as amended, the 1995 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors, the 2006
Stock Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors, and the 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan) and the Systemax
Executive Incentive Plan are structured to permit awards under such plans to qualify as performance-based
compensation and to maximize the tax deductibility of such awards. However, we reserve the discretion to pay
compensation to our executive officers that may not be deductible.

Role of the Compensation Committee and CEO in Compensation Decisions

The Compensation Committee’s responsibility is to review and approve corporate goals relevant to the
compensation of the Chief Executive Officer and, after an evaluation of the Chief Executive Officer’s performance
in light of such goals, to set the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer. The Compensation Committee also
approves, upon the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer (following consultation with the two Vice
Chairmen, the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Executives of the North American and European Technology
Products Groups and the President of the subsidiaries comprising the Global Industrial business), (a) the annual
compensation of the other executive officers of the Company, (b) the annual compensation of certain subsidiary
managers, and (c) all individual stock incentive grants to other executive officers. The Compensation Committee is
also responsible for reviewing and making periodic recommendations to the Board with respect to the general
compensation, benefits and perquisite policies and practices of the Company, including the Company’s stock-
incentive based compensation plans. The Compensation Committee has the authority to retain third party
compensation consultants to provide assistance with respect to compensation strategies, market practices, market
research data and the Company’s compensation goals. The Compensation Committee did not retain any such
consultant in 2010, 2011 or 2012,

“Say on Pay” Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation

We provided stockholders a “say on pay” advisory vote on executive compensation at our 2011 annual
meeting of stockholders on June 10, 2011, as required under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer
Protection Act of 2010 (the “Dodd-Frank Act”). Our 2011 “say on pay” proposal to approve the compensation of
the Company’s NEOs, as disclosed in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting, received 87%
approval from stockholders. We take this strong stockholder support as an assurance that our executive pay program
and practices are reasonable and well-aligned with stockholder expectations. The Compensation Committee and
management considered the results of that vote, and given the high approval level, our executive compensation
program for fiscal 2013 will be consistent with our 2011 program. Further, and in response to our stockholders vote
on the frequency of say on pay advisory votes, we will hold an advisory vote on executive compensation every three
years. The next such vote will be held at the 2014 annual meeting. We are committed to being responsive to
stockholder feedback, and the results of our say on pay votes help inform the Committee’s discussions about the
executive pay program.

2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan

In 2010, the Board of Directors approved, and the stockholders of the Company approved at the 2010
Annual Meeting, the 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan in order to promote the interests of the Company and its
stockholders by (i) attracting and retaining exceptional executive personnel and other key employees, including
consultants and advisors to the Company and its affiliates; (ii) motivating such employees, consultants and advisors
by means of performance-related incentives to achieve longer-range performance goals; and (iii) enabling such
employees, consultants and advisors to participate in the long-term growth and financial success of the Company.
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The 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan provides for the granting of incentive stock options, non-qualified
stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance awards (which may be
in the form of cash) or other stock-based awards. Any of the foregoing is referred to as an “Award.” Subject to
adjustment in the case of certain corporate changes, Awards may be granted under the 2010 Long-Term Incentive
Plan with respect to an aggregate of 7,500,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock. During a calendar year,
Awards may be granted to any individual with respect to a maximum of 1,500,000 shares (or $10,000,000 in the
case of cash performance awards).

Any employee of the Company or of any affiliate and any individual providing consulting or advisory
services to the Company or an affiliate, is eligible to receive an award under the 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan.
The Compensation Committee administers the Plan and determines, in its sole discretion, the terms and conditions
of any Award. The Compensation Committee or the Board of Directors may delegate to one or more officers or
managers of the Company the authority to designate the individuals who will receive Awards under the Plan
provided that the Compensation Committee shall itself grant all Awards to those individuals who could reasonably
be considered to be subject to the insider trading provisions of Section 16 of the 1934 Act or whose Awards could
reasonably be expected to be subject to the deduction limitations of Section 162(m) of the Code.

The Compensation Committee determines the persons who will receive Awards, the type of Awards
granted, and the number of shares subject to each Award. The Compensation Committee also determines the prices,
expiration dates, vesting schedules, forfeiture provisions and other material features of Awards. The Compensation
Committee has the authority to interpret and construe any provision of the Plan and to adopt such rules and
regulations for administering the Plan as it deems necessary or appropriate. All decisions and determinations of the
Compensation Committee are final, binding and conclusive on all parties.

The 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan provides that granting or vesting of restricted stock, restricted stock
units and performance awards may be conditioned on the achievement of specified performance goals. These goals
must be established by the Compensation Committee within 90 days of the beginning of the year (or other period to
which the performance goals relate) or, if shorter, within the first 25% of the performance period.

The performance goals may be based on one or more of: share price, revenues, earnings (including but not
limited to EBITDA), earnings per share, return on equity, expenses, and objective strategic and governance business
goals. Each such performance goal may (1) be expressed with respect to the Company as a whole or with respect to
one or more divisions or business units, (2) be expressed on a pre-tax or after-tax basis, (3) be expressed on an
absolute and/or relative basis, (4) employ comparisons with past performance of the Company (including one or
more divisions) and/or (5) employ comparisons with the current or past performance of other companies, and in the
case of earnings-based measures, may employ comparisons to capital, stockholders’ equity and shares outstanding.

To the extent applicable, the measures used in performance goals set under the 2010 Long-Term Incentive
Plan are determined in a manner consistent with the methods used in the Company’s Forms 10-K and 10-Q, except
that adjustments will be made for certain items, including special, unusual or non-recurring items, acquisitions and
dispositions and changes in accounting principles.

2013 NEO Cash Bonus Plan

In March 2013, pursuant to the 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan previously adopted by the Board of
Directors and by the stockholders at the 2010 Annual Meeting, our Compensation Committee, with input from our
Chief Executive Officer, established our 2013 NEO Cash Bonus Plan (“2013 Bonus Plan”) providing for target cash
bonuses for the NEOs based on the achievement of certain financial and non-financial performance-based criteria in
2013. The 2013 Bonus Plan implements for 2013 the 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan and pertains specifically to
the payment of non-equity incentive compensation to NEOs for 2013. The following discussion applies to 100% of
the 2012 total non-equity incentive compensation for each of Mr. Richard Leeds, Mr. Bruce Leeds, Mr. Robert
Leeds and Mr. Reinhold, and to the 25% portion of Mr. Dooley’s 2013 total non-equity incentive compensation that
is based on the 2013 Bonus Plan. (Mr. Dooley is anticipated to be a Named Executive Officer for 2013).

For 2013, such financial and non-financial goals, the percentage of the executive’s entire cash bonus tied to
such goals and the weighting of each component under such goal, are as follows:

e Financial Goals (80% of total cash bonus target)
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— Adjusted Operating Income Growth (60%): the Compensation Committee believes this is the most
important individual component and aligns the interests of our executives with those of our
stockholders, in addition to building long-term value. Adjusted Operating Income is defined as
operating income adjusted for unusual or nonrecurring items as determined by our Compensation
Committee.

—  Sales Growth (20%): the Compensation Committee believes top line sales growth is key to our
Company achieving the scale necessary to remain competitive with larger companies. Sales are
defined as sales revenue net of returns on a constant currency basis.

e Non-Financial Goals for 2013 (20% of total cash bonus target)

— Strategic Accomplishments (seven specific goals weighted at an aggregated 80% of the total non-
financial goal): These goals relate to various strategic initiatives including enhancing both the North
American and European Technology Product Group’s information technology systems, reducing our
costs in Europe, including implementing our shared services center in Hungary, expanding the
Industrial business through foreign sales initiatives and the commercial launch of a new online
revenue channel for the Industrial business and the implementation of website enhancements and retail
strategy initiatives to enhance North American Technology sales. The Compensation Committee
believes these initiatives will enhance the Company’s operational infrastructure and efficiency.

— Corporate Governance Goals for 2013 (three specific goals weighted at 20% of the total non-financial
goal): These goals relate to continuing improvements in our internal control processes, ethics
compliance procedures and safety protocols that the Compensation Committee believes will generally
benefit stockholders.

Achievement of each of the target financial goals generates a variable target bonus payment (base case);
reduced bonuses are payable on a pro rata basis for each financial goal component. The bonus for the sales target
financial component is payable starting at achievement of in excess of 80% of the sales target financial goal
component amount up to 140% of the sales target financial goal component amount. Each 1% variance in actual
achievement from the 100% level generates a 5% variance in the target bonus amount. No bonus is payable in
respect of this component if achievement is 80% or less of the sales target while increased bonuses (up to 300% of
the target bonus amount) are payable on a pro rata basis for over achievement of the sales target financial goal
component. The adjusted operating income financial goal component is payable at a level of 100% if the target is
achieved. Each $1 million variance in actual achievement below the 100% level will generate a 5% negative
variance in the target bonus amount. Each $750 thousand variance in actual achievement above the 100% level will
generate a 5% positive variance in the target bonus amount up to 300% of the target bonus for this target financial
component. The non-financial goals are measured based on whether or not the goal is either accomplished or not
accomplished during the fiscal year.

Under the 2013 Bonus Plan, the Compensation Committee set the following cash bonus target amounts for
each of Mr. Richard Leeds, Mr. Bruce Leeds, Mr. Robert Leeds and Mr. Reinhold, assuming achievement of the
2013 Cash Bonus Plan financial and non-financial goals at 100% base case target levels, and in the case of Mr.
Dooley (anticipated to be a Named Executive Officer for 2013) achievement of such 2013 Bonus Plan goals at
100% base case target levels (25% of the bonus) as well as achievement of the financial and non-financial goals of
the Industrial Products Group at 100% base case target levels (75% of the bonus), as discussed above:

Richard Leeds $1,100,000
Bruce Leeds $ 750,000
Robert Leeds $ 750,000
Lawrence Reinhold $ 825,000
Robert Dooley $ 414,000

The Compensation Committee believes these bonus levels are appropriate for each of our named executive
officers; these bonus levels are the same as those that were set for the named executive officers in 2012 (other than
for Mr. Dooley). The 2013 salary increases reflect the Compensation Committee’s view that such increases are
appropriate in light of 2013 NEO bonuses being set at the same level as 2012.
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The 2013 Bonus Plan imposes a cap on the total bonus that could be payable to any executive at 260% of
the target base case bonus. The Compensation Committee has the discretion to adjust financial targets based on
such events as acquisitions or other one-time charges or gains, or other unforeseen circumstances that can skew
normal operating results. Targets and bonuses are also subject to adjustment to prevent unreasonable results in the
strict application of these formulas. Executives must generally be employed with the Company at the time the
bonuses are paid out to receive the bonus.

In addition, the Board can demand repayment to the Company of any cash bonuses paid in the event that (i)
the executive’s misconduct caused the Company to restate its reported financial results; (ii) the reported results
created a bonus that would not have been paid based on the restated results, or (ii) the executive engages in serious
ethical misconduct.

2012 NEO Cash Bonus Plan

In March 2012, pursuant to the 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan previously adopted by the Board of
Directors and by the stockholders at the 2010 Annual Meeting, our Compensation Committee, with input from our
Chief Executive Officer, established our 2012 NEO Cash Bonus Plan (2012 Bonus Plan”) providing for target cash
bonuses for the NEOs based on the achievement of certain financial and non-financial performance-based criteria in
2012. The 2012 Bonus Plan implemented for 2012 the 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan and pertains specifically to
the payment of non-equity incentive compensation to NEOs for 2012. The following discussion applies to 100% of
the 2012 total non-equity incentive compensation for each of Mr. Richard Leeds, Mr. Bruce Leeds, Mr. Robert
Leeds and Mr. Reinhold, and to the 25% portion of Mr. Sprosty’s 2012 total non-equity incentive compensation that
is based on the 2012 NEO Cash Bonus Plan, as discussed below.

For 2012, such financial and non-financial goals, the percentage of the executive’s entire cash bonus tied to
such goals and the weighting of each component under such goal, were as follows:

e Financial Goals (80% of total cash bonus target)

— Adjusted Operating Income Growth (60%): the Compensation Committee believes this is the most
important individual component and aligns the interests of our executives with those of our
stockholders, in addition to building long-term value. Adjusted Operating Income is defined as
operating income adjusted for unusual or nonrecurring items as determined by our Compensation
Committee.

—  Sales Growth (20%): the Compensation Committee believes top line sales growth is key to our
Company achieving the scale necessary to remain competitive with larger companies. Sales are
defined as sales revenue net of returns on a constant currency basis.

e Non-Financial Goals for 2012 (20% of total cash bonus target)

—  Strategic Accomplishments (eight specific goals weighted at an aggregated 80% of the total non-
financial goal): These goals relate to various strategic initiatives including enhancing both the North
American and European Technology Product Group’s information technology systems, reducing our
costs in Europe, expanding the Industrial business’s distribution capacity through the operation of our
new distribution center, the development of a new online revenue channel for the Industrial business
and the creation and implementation of a long-term incentive compensation program for the
Company’s senior management . The Compensation Committee believes these initiatives will enhance
the Company’s operational infrastructure and efficiency.

— Corporate Governance Goals for 2012 (three specific goals weighted at 20% of the total non-financial
goal): These goals relate to continuing improvements in our internal control processes, ethics
compliance procedures and safety protocols that the Compensation Committee believes will generally
benefit stockholders.

Achievement of each of the target financial goals generates a variable target bonus payment (base case);

reduced bonuses are payable on a pro rata basis for each financial goal component, starting at achievement of in
excess of 80% of the target financial goal component amount up to 140% of the target financial goal component
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amount. Each 1% variance in actual achievement from the 100% level generates a 5% variance in the target bonus
amount for that component, and no bonus is payable in respect of these components if achievement is 80% or less of
the target financial component goal amount. Increased bonuses (up to 300% of the target bonus amount for each
component) are payable on a pro rata basis for each financial goal component amount achieved. The non-financial
goals are measured based on whether or not the goal is either accomplished or not accomplished during the fiscal
year.

Under the 2012 Bonus Plan, the Compensation Committee set the following cash bonus target amounts for
each of Mr. Richard Leeds, Mr. Bruce Leeds, Mr. Robert Leeds and Mr. Reinhold, assuming achievement of the
2012 NEO Cash Bonus Plan financial and non-financial goals at 100% base case target levels, and in the case of Mr.
Sprosty, achievement of such 2012 NEO Cash Bonus Plan goals at 100% base case target levels (25% of the bonus)
as well as achievement of the financial and non-financial goals of the North American Technology Products Group
at 100% base case target levels (75% of the bonus), as discussed above:

Richard Leeds $1,100,000
Bruce Leeds $ 750,000
Robert Leeds $ 750,000
Lawrence Reinhold $ 825,000
David Sprosty $ 700,000

The Compensation Committee believes these bonus levels are appropriate for each of our named executive
officers; these bonus levels are the same as those that were set for the named executive officers in 2011. The 2012
salary increases reflect the Compensation Committee’s view that such increases are appropriate in light of 2012
NEO bonuses being set at the same level as 2011.

The 2012 Bonus Plan imposed a cap on the total bonus that could be payable to any executive at 260% of
the target base case bonus. The Compensation Committee has the discretion to adjust financial targets based on
such events as acquisitions or other one-time charges or gains, or other unforeseen circumstances that can skew
normal operating results. Targets and bonuses are also subject to adjustment to prevent unreasonable results in the
strict application of these formulas. Executives must generally be employed with the Company at the time the
bonuses are paid out to receive the bonus.

In addition, the Board can demand repayment to the Company of any cash bonuses paid in the event that (i)
the executive’s misconduct caused the Company to restate its reported financial results; (ii) the reported results
created a bonus that would not have been paid based on the restated results, or (ii) the executive engages in serious
ethical misconduct.

2011 NEO Cash Bonus Plan

In March 2011, pursuant to the 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan previously adopted by the Board of
Directors and by the stockholders at the 2010 Annual Meeting, our Compensation Committee, with input from our
Chief Executive Officer, established our 2011 NEO Cash Bonus Plan (“2011 Bonus Plan”) providing for target cash
bonuses for the NEOs based on the achievement of certain financial and non-financial performance-based criteria in
2011. The 2011 Bonus Plan implemented for 2011 the 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan and pertains specifically to
the payment of non-equity incentive compensation to NEOs for 2011.

For 2011, such financial and non-financial goals, the percentage of the executive’s entire cash bonus tied to
such goals and the weighting of each component under such goal, were as follows:

e Financial Goals (80% of total cash bonus target)

— Adjusted Operating Income Growth (60%): the Compensation Committee believes this is the most
important individual component and aligns the interests of our executives with those of our
stockholders, in addition to building long-term value. Adjusted Operating Income is defined as
operating income adjusted for unusual or nonrecurring items as determined by our Compensation
Committee.
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—  Sales Growth (20%): the Compensation Committee believes topline sales growth is key to our
Company achieving the scale necessary to remain competitive with larger companies. Sales are
defined as sales revenue net of returns on a constant currency basis.

e Non-Financial Goals for 2011 (20% of total cash bonus target)

— Strategic Accomplishments (seven specific goals weighted at an aggregated 70% of the total non-
financial goal): These goals relate to various strategic initiatives relating to enhancing our management
and business information systems, and implementing distribution/warehouse system improvements.
The Compensation Committee believes these initiatives will enhance the Company’s operational
infrastructure and efficiency.

— Corporate Governance Goals for 2011 (three specific goals weighted at 30% of the total non-financial
goal): These goals relate to continuing improvements in our internal processes and procedures that the
Compensation Committee believes will generally benefit stockholders.

Under the 2011 Bonus Plan, the Compensation Committee set the following cash bonus target amounts for
each of the following NEOs, assuming achievement of the 2011 financial and non-financial goals at 100% base case
target levels:

Richard Leeds $1,100,000
Bruce Leeds $ 750,000
Robert Leeds $ 750,000
Lawrence Reinhold $ 825,000

The Compensation Committee believes these bonus levels are appropriate for each of our named executive
officers; these bonus levels are the same as those that were set for the named executive officers for 2010, and take
into account the 2011 base salary increases. The 2011 salary increases reflect the Compensation Committee’s view
that such increases were appropriate in light of 2011 NEO bonuses being set at the same level as 2010 and 2010
NEO base salary having been held at the same level as 2009.

David Sprosty, a former named executive officer, joined the Company in October, 2011, and left the
Company’s employ in March 2013. See “Employment Arrangements with Named Executive Officers” and
“Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control.”

Under the 2011 Bonus Plan, achievement of each of the target financial goals generates a variable target
bonus payment (base case); reduced bonuses are payable on a pro rata basis for each financial goal component,
starting at achievement of in excess of 80% of the target financial goal component amount up to 140% of the target
financial goal component amount. Each 1% variance in actual achievement from the 100% level generates a 5%
variance in the target bonus amount for that component, and no bonus is payable in respect of these components if
achievement is 80% or less of the target financial component goal amount. Increased bonuses (up to 300% of the
target bonus amount for each component) are payable on a pro rata basis for each financial goal component amount
achieved. The non-financial goals are measured based on whether or not the goal is either accomplished or not
accomplished during the fiscal year.

The 2011 Bonus Plan imposed a cap on the total bonus that could be payable to any executive at 260% of
the target base case bonus. The Compensation Committee had the discretion to adjust financial targets based on
such events as acquisitions or other one-time charges or gains, or other unforeseen circumstances that can skew
normal operating results. Targets and bonuses are also subject to adjustment to prevent unreasonable results in the
strict application of these formulas. Executives must generally be employed with the Company at the time the
bonuses are paid out to receive the bonus.

In addition, under the 2011 Bonus Plan, the Board can demand repayment to the Company of any cash
bonuses paid in the event that (i) the executive’s misconduct caused the Company to restate its reported financial
results; (ii) the reported results created a bonus that would not have been paid based on the restated results, or (ii) the
executive engages in serious ethical misconduct.
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2010 NEO Cash Bonus Plan

In March 2010, pursuant to the 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan, our Compensation Committee, with input
from our Chief Executive Officer, established our 2010 NEO Cash Bonus Plan (“2010 Bonus Plan™) providing for
target cash bonuses for the NEOs based on the achievement of certain financial and non-financial performance-
based criteria in 2010. The 2010 Bonus Plan implemented for 2010 the 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan and
pertains specifically to the payment of non-equity incentive compensation to NEOs for 2010.

For 2010, such financial and non-financial goals, the percentage of the executive’s entire cash bonus tied to
such goals and the weighting of each component under such goal, were as follows:

e Financial Goals (80% of total cash bonus target)

— Adjusted Operating Income Growth (50%): the Compensation Committee believes this is the most
important individual component and aligns the interests of our executives with those of our
stockholders, in addition to building long-term value. Adjusted Operating Income is defined as
operating income adjusted for unusual or nonrecurring items as determined by our Compensation
Committee.

—  Sales Growth (20%): the Compensation Committee believes top line sales growth is key to our
Company remaining competitive with larger companies. Sales are defined as sales revenue net of
returns on a constant currency basis.

— Return on Invested Capital Growth (10%): the Compensation Committee believes this will encourage
management to pursue operational efficiencies in establishing strategic goals and planning for growth.
Return on Invested Capital is defined as adjusted operating income divided by the sum of (i) the book
value of stockholders’ equity plus the book value of interest-bearing obligations minus total cash and
cash equivalents.

¢ Non-Financial Goals for 2010 (20% of total cash bonus target)

—  Strategic Accomplishments (six specific goals weighted at an aggregated 80% of the total non-
financial goal): These goals relate to various strategic initiatives that the Compensation Committee
believes will enhance the Company’s operational infrastructure.

— Corporate Governance Goals for 2010 (two specific goals weighted at 20% of the total non-financial
goal): These goals relate to continuing improvements in our internal processes that the Compensation
Committee believes will generally benefit stockholders.

Under the 2010 Bonus Plan, the Compensation Committee set the following cash bonus target amounts for
each of the following NEOSs, assuming achievement of the 2010 financial and non-financial goals at 100% base case
target levels:

Richard Leeds $1,100,000
Bruce Leeds $ 750,000
Robert Leeds $ 750,000
Lawrence Reinhold $ 825,000

Under the 2010 Bonus Plan, achievement of each of the target financial goals generates a variable target
bonus payment (base case); reduced bonuses are payable on a pro rata basis for each financial goal component,
starting at achievement of in excess of 80% of the target financial goal component amount up to 140% of the target
financial goal component amount. Each 1% variance in actual achievement from the 100% level generates a 5%
variance in the target bonus amount for that component, and no bonus is payable in respect of these components if
achievement is 80% or less of the target financial component goal amount. Increased bonuses (up to 300% of the
target bonus amount for each component) are payable on a pro rata basis for each financial goal component amount
achieved. The non-financial goals are measured based on whether or not the goal is either accomplished or not
accomplished during the fiscal year.
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The 2010 Bonus Plan imposed a cap on the total bonus that could be payable to any executive at 260% of
the target base case bonus. The Compensation Committee had the discretion to adjust financial targets based on
such events as acquisitions or other one-time charges or gains, or other unforeseen circumstances that can skew
normal operating results. Targets and bonuses are also subject to adjustment to prevent unreasonable results in the
strict application of these formulas. Executives must generally be employed with the Company at the time the
bonuses are paid out to receive the bonus.

In addition, under the 2010 Bonus Plan, the Board can demand repayment to the Company of any cash
bonuses paid in the event that (i) the executive’s misconduct caused the Company to restate its reported financial
results; (ii) the reported results created a bonus that would not have been paid based on the restated results, or (ii) the
executive engages in serious ethical misconduct.

Compensation of NEOs in 2012

In determining the compensation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer for fiscal year 2012 and
approving the compensation of the Company’s other NEOs, the Committee considered, among the other factors
discussed above, the achievement of the performance based criteria established under the 2012 Bonus Plan.

The Compensation Committee determined that the Company and management had performed adequately,
particularly given trends in the general economic environment that had affected the Company’s business throughout
fiscal 2012, and that management had executed acceptably on strategic business initiatives to position the Company
for growth while managing risk. Based on Company and individual performance, the Compensation Committee
believes that compensation levels for fiscal year 2012 were consistent with the philosophy and objectives of the
Company’s compensation programs. The Company met certain of its 2012 corporate governance non-financial
goals described above; however, the Compensation Committee exercised discretion under the 2012 Bonus Plan to
defer or eliminate certain of the original strategic goals to take account of the difficulties faced by the North
American Technology Products Group business in 2012 in order to focus management on other initiatives, resulting
in full payout of the portion of the bonus allocated to non-financial goals. Furthermore, the Company did not
achieve its 2012 minimum adjusted operating income and/or its target sales growth financial goals. Accordingly,
pursuant to the 2012 Bonus Plan formulas, 2012 non-equity incentive plan/bonus compensation for each named
executive officer was paid at only 36% of the target level.

The 2012 threshold, target and maximum bonus amounts for each of our named executive officers are
found in the “Grants of Plan-Based Awards” table on page 36.

Employment Arrangements of the Named Executive Officers
Richard Leeds

Richard Leeds has no employment agreement and is an “at will” employee. Base salary accounted for 61%
and bonus accounted for 39% of Mr. Leeds total cash compensation for 2012. Mr. Leeds salary for 2013 is set at
$667,000. See the discussion of our 2011 Bonus Plan and 2012 Bonus Plan regarding Mr. Leeds non-equity
incentive awards for 2011 and 2012.

Bruce Leeds

Bruce Leeds has no employment agreement and is an “at will” employee. Base salary accounted for 66%
and bonus accounted for 34% of Mr. Leeds total cash compensation for 2012. Mr. Leeds salary for 2013 is set at
$543,000. See the discussion of our 2012 Bonus Plan and 2013 Bonus Plan regarding Mr. Leeds non-equity
incentive awards for 2012 and 2013.

Robert Leeds
Robert Leeds has no employment agreement and is an “at will” employee. Base salary accounted for 66%
and bonus accounted for 34% of Mr. Leeds total cash compensation for 2012. Mr. Leeds salary for 2013 is set at

$555,000. See the discussion of our 2012 Bonus Plan and 2013 Bonus Plan regarding Mr. Leeds non-equity
incentive awards for 2012 and 2013.
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Lawrence Reinhold

The Company entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Reinhold on January 17, 2007. The
agreement provides for a minimum base salary of $400,000 (which may be increased at the discretion of the
Company) and a bonus (which the agreement states is expected to be at least equal to 50% of the base salary)
assuming Mr. Reinhold meets certain performance objectives (including the Company’s financial performance
objectives) established for him by the Company. He is entitled to receive a car allowance or a Company-leased car.

Mr. Reinhold’s bonus for 2012 was determined as described above under the heading 2012 Named
Executive Officer Cash Bonus Plan. Mr. Reinhold received a grant of equity compensation in 2011 in the form of
stock options. The decision by the Compensation Committee to award Mr. Reinhold stock options was based on Mr.
Reinhold’s significant accomplishments in 2011 as well as a desire to further align his interests with those of the
Company’s stockholders. Base salary accounted for 67% and bonus accounted for 33% of Mr. Reinhold’s total cash
compensation for 2012. In 2010, Mr. Reinhold received a grant of 175,000 restricted stock units under the 2010
Long-Term Incentive Plan. The restricted stock units vest in ten equal annual installments of 17,500 units each,
beginning on May 15, 2011. In 2011, Mr. Reinhold received a grant of 100,000 restricted stock units that vest in ten
equal installments beginning on November 14, 2012. The Compensation Committee decided to make these equity
awards in recognition of Mr. Reinhold’s accomplishments in 2010 and 2011 and in order to further align his
interests with those of our stockholders. His salary for 2013 is set at $628,000.

Compensation that may become payable following the termination of his employment or a change in
control of the company, and other terms of the employment agreement related to such events, are discussed below
under “—Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control.”

David Sprosty

The Company entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Sprosty on October 3, 2011, whose
employment with the Company terminated on March 1, 2013. The agreement provided for a base salary of
$700,000 and cash bonuses. Under the employment agreement, Mr. Sprosty was eligible for (i) a target cash bonus
of $700,000 during each year of employment (prorated for the first year and based on assumed achievement at target
level) assuming Mr. Sprosty met certain performance objectives established for him by the Company; 75% of the
bonus was based on performance objectives of the North American Technology Products Group for the applicable
year and 25% of the bonus was based on certain Company financial performance objectives under the Company’s
Named Executive Officer Cash Bonus Plan for the applicable year; and (ii) a special one-time cash bonus of
$2,000,000 upon the North American Technology Products Group’s achievement of profitability targets, as
determined pursuant to the agreement, for two consecutive full fiscal years, with the first year being no later than
December 31, 2014. Of the 75% portion of Mr. Sprosty’s bonus that was based on performance objectives of the
North American Technology Products Group, 60% (45% of the total bonus) was based on achieving financial goals
for increasing operating income and sales, and 40% (30% of the total bonus) was based on non-financial goals
involving implementing various information technology enhancements and retail store improvements. Achievement
of the target financial goals set for Mr. Sprosty generated a variable target bonus payment (base case); a reduced
bonus was payable for the financial goal component, starting at achievement of in excess of 70% of the target
financial goal component amount up to 150% of the target financial goal component amount. No bonus was payable
in respect of these components if achievement was 70% or less of the target financial component goal amount. An
increased bonus (up to 200% of the target bonus amount for each component) was payable for each financial goal
component amount achieved. The non-financial goals were measured based on whether or not the goal was either
accomplished or not accomplished during the fiscal year.

In 2012 Mr. Sprosty received a one-time cash relocation bonus of $300,000 upon his relocation to Miami,
Florida, plus $250,000 of additional reimbursements for his relocation to Miami. Mr. Sprosty has also been granted
an option to purchase 100,000 shares of common stock pursuant to the Company’s Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan
(vesting over a period of four years with 25% of the options vesting on the first, second, third and fourth anniversary
dates of the grant date; only the first installment vested prior to his termination), and a grant of 100,000 restricted
stock units of the Company’s common stock in accordance with the Company’s 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan
(vesting over ten years in equal installments on each of the first ten anniversaries of the grant date; as of the date of
Mr. Sprosty’s termination, Mr. Sprosty became immediately vested in all non-vested restricted stock units and
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became immediately entitled to a distribution of that number of shares of common stock of the Company that was
represented by those vested restricted stock units). He was also entitled to receive a car allowance or a Company-
leased car.

Base salary accounted for 85% and bonus accounted for 15% of Mr. Sprosty’s total cash compensation for
2012. Mr. Sprosty was not employed by the Company in 2010.

Compensation became payable to Mr. Sprosty following the termination of his employment in March 2013,
as described below under “—Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control.”

Compensation Committee Report to Stockholders*

The Compensation Committee of the Board has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and
Analysis required by Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K, which appears in this proxy statement, with our management.
Based on this review and discussion, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board that the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement on Schedule 14A.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Robert D. Rosenthal (Chairman)
Stacy S. Dick
Marie Adler-Kravecas

*  The information contained in this Compensation Committee Report shall not be deemed to be “soliciting
material” or to be “filed” with the SEC, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into any
filings under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, which we refer to as the Securities Act, or under the
Exchange Act, except to the extent that we specifically incorporate this information by reference into any
such filing.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The members of the Company’s Compensation Committee for fiscal year 2012 were Marie Adler-
Kravecas, Robert D. Rosenthal and Stacy S. Dick. The Company does not employ any member of the
Compensation Committee and no member of the Compensation Committee has ever served as an officer of the
Company. In addition, none of our directors serving on the Compensation Committee has any relationship that
requires disclosure under SEC regulations.
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The following t able s ets forth t he co mpensation ear ned by t he Chief E xecutive Officer (“CEQO”, o ur

principal ex ecutive o fficer), Chief F inancial O fficer (“CFO”, our p rincipal financial o fficer), and the three most
highly compensated executive officers other than the CEO and CFO (collectively the “Named Executive Officers”)
for fiscal years 2010, 2011 and 2012:

Non-Equity

Name and Stock Option  Incentive Plan  All Other
Principal Salary Bonus Awards Awards  Compensation Compensation  Total
Position Year ($) $) $) $) @ $) (2 $ $)
Richard Leeds 2012 648,000 396,000 21,477(3) 1,065,477
Chairmanand 2011 609,000 781,000 18,958 1,408,958
Chief Executive 2010 567,000 462,000 23,704 1,052,704
Officer
Bruce Leeds 2012 526,000 270,000 21,600(3) 817,600
Vice Chairman 2011 499,000 533,000 21,600 1,053,600

2010 470,000 315,000 20,349 798,291
Robert Leeds 2012 538,000 270,000 21,600(3) 829,600
Vice Chairman and2011 506,000 533,000 21,600 1,060,600
Chief Executive- 2010 470,000 315,000 19,064 797,006
North American
Technology
Products Group
Lawrence 2012 608,000 297,000 82,850(4) 987,850
Reinhold 2011 500,000 1,430,000 489,025 586,000 29,709 3,031,996
Executive Vice 2010 471,912 2,168,250 346,500 23,776 3,010,438
President and
Chief Financial
Officer
David Sprosty 2012 718,000 124,000 47,850(4) 889,850
Former Chief 2011  145,385(6) 1,164,000 1,018,210 175,000 5,953 2,517,522
Executive
— North American
Technology
Products Group(5)
(1) This column represents the fair value of the stock option on the grant date determined in accordance with the

@)

3)
(4)

®)

(6)

provisions of ASC 718. As per SEC rules relating to e xecutive c ompensation disclosure, the amounts s hown
exclude the impact of forfeitures related to service based v esting conditions. T hese a mounts w ere cal culated
using the B lack-Scholes opt ion-pricing m odel. F or a dditional i nformation r egarding a ssumptions m ade i n
calculating the am ount r eflected in this co lumn, p lease refer to Note 9 t o our audited c onsolidated financial
statements, included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2012.

The 2010 figures in this column represent the amount earned in fiscal year 2010 (although paid in fiscal year
2011) pursuant to the 2010 Bonus Plan, the 2011 figures in this column represent the amount earned in fiscal
year 2011 ( although paid in fiscal year 2012) pursuant to the 2011 B onus Plan and the 20 12 figures in this
column represent the amount earned in fiscal year 2012 (although paid in fiscal year 2013) pursuant to the 2012
Bonus Plan. For more information, see the Grants of Plan-Based Awards table below. Because these payments
were based on predetermined performance metrics, these amounts are reported in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan
column.

Auto-related expenses.

Includes auto-related e xpenses, Company 401(k) contributions and dividend equivalent payments on r estricted
stock awards.

Mr. Sprosty’s employment commenced in October 2011 and terminated on M arch 1, 2013. See “Employment
Arrangements of the Named Executive Officers — David Sprosty” and “Potential Payments Upon Termination or
Change in Control.”

The amount presented for 2011 is Mr. Sprosty’s $700,000 base salary pro-rated for 2011.
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GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS

The following table sets forth the estimated possible payouts under the cash incentive awards granted to our
named executive officers in respect of 2012 performance.

All Other  All Other Exercise or Grant Date

Stock Option  Base Price Fair Value
Awards:  Awards:  of Option  of Stock
Number of Number of  Awards Award

Shares of ~ Securities ($/sh)
Stock or  Underlying
Grant Estimated Future Payouts Under Non- Units Options
Name Date Equity Incentive Plan Awards (1) # #
Threshold Target Maximum - - - -
®) $) (%)
Richard Leeds 264,000 1,100,000 2,860,000 - - - -
Bruce Leeds 180,000 750,000 1,950,000 - - - -
Robert Leeds 180,000 750,000 1,950,000 - - - -
Lawrence Reinhold 198,000 825,000 2,145,000 - - - -
David Sprosty(2) 168,000 700,000 1,295,000 - - - -
1) Amounts presented assume payment of threshold, target and maximum awards at the applicable level.
@) Mr. Sprosty’s employment with the Company terminated on March 1, 2013.
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR END 2012

The following table sets forth information regarding stock option and restricted stock awards previously

granted which were outstanding at the end of fiscal year 2012.

The market value of the stock award is based on the closing price of one share of our common stock as of

December 31, 2012, which was $9.65.

Option Awards Stock Awards

Number of ~ Number of Number of

Securities Securities Shares Market Value
Underlying  Underlying or Units of  of Shares or
Unexercised Unexercised  Option Stock That  Units of Stock

Options Options Exercise ~ Option  Have Not That Have Not
# #) Price  Expiration  Vested Vested
Name Exercisable Unexercisable (€] Date #) €]

@) (b) (© (e) (f) (9) (h)
Lawrence 100,000 - $20.15 1/17/17 - -
Reinhold

50,000 $11.51 3/13/18 - -
75,000 25,000(1) $13.19 5/18/19  140,000(2)  $1,351,000
12,500 37,500(1) $14.30 11/14/21 90,000 (3) $868,500
David Sprosty 25,000 75,000(4) $11.64 10/3/21 90,000(5) $868,500
1) Options vest 25% per year over four years from date of grant.

2 Restricted stock units vest in ten equal annual installments of 17,500 beginning May 5, 2011.

(3) Restricted stock units vest in ten equal annual installments of 10,000 beginning November 14, 2012.

4) Options vest 25% per year over four years from date of grant. Mr. Sprosty’s employment terminated on
March 1, 2013, with the first installment being vested and the remainder being forfeited.

5) Restricted stock units vest in ten equal annual installments of 10,000 commencing on October 3, 2012. Mr.
Sprosty’s employment terminated on March 1, 2013, and vesting of all restricted stock units accelerated on

such date.
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OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

The following table sets forth information regarding exercise of options to purchase shares of the
Company’s common stock and vesting of restricted stock units by the named executive officers that exercised
options or whose restricted stock units vested during fiscal year 2012:

Option Awards Restricted Stock Units Awards
Number of Shares Value Realized on Number of Shares Value Realized

Acquired on Exercise Exercise Acquired on Vesting on Vesting

Name (#) $) #) $) @)

(@) (b) (© (d) (€)
Lawrence Reinhold - - 17,500(2) $232,050
10,000(3) $105,500
David Sprosty 10,000(4) $119,900
(&) The amount in this column reflects the aggregate dollar amount realized upon the vesting of the restricted

stock unit, determined by the market value of the underlying shares of common stock on the vesting date.

2 Pursuant to a grant of restricted stock units on August 25, 2010, the restricted stock units vest in ten equal
annual installments of 17,500 units each, beginning on May 15, 2011.

3) Pursuant to a grant of restricted stock units on November 14, 2011, the restricted stock units vest in ten
equal annual installments of 10,000 units each, beginning on November 14, 2012.

4) Pursuant to a grant of restricted stock units on October 3, 2011, the restricted stock units vest in ten equal
annual installments of 10,000 units each, beginning on October 3, 2012. Mr. Sprosty’s employment
terminated on March 1, 2013, and vesting of all restricted stock units accelerated on such date.

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN CONTROL
Lawrence Reinhold

Mr. Reinhold’s employment agreement is terminable upon death or total disability, by the Company for
“cause” (as defined) or without cause, or by Mr. Reinhold voluntarily for any reason or for “good reason” (as
defined). In the event of termination for death, disability, cause or voluntary termination by Mr. Reinhold, the
Company will owe no further payments other than accrued but unpaid base salary as applicable under disability or
medical plans and any accrued but unused vacation time (up to four weeks). In the event of termination for disability
or death, Mr. Reinhold would also receive the pro rata portion of any bonus which would otherwise be paid based on
the average annual bonus received for the prior two years. If Mr. Reinhold resigns for good reason or if the
Company terminates him for any reason other than disability, death or cause, he shall also receive in addition to the
payments paid for other terminations, severance payments equal to 12 months’ base salary (or 24 months’ base
salary if termination is within 60 days prior to or one year following a “change of control,” as defined), one year’s
bonus based on his average annual bonus for the prior two years and a reimbursement of costs for COBRA
insurance coverage. A “Change in Control” means: (i) approval by the stockholders of the Company of (I) a
reorganization, merger, consolidation or other form of corporate transaction or series of transactions, in each case,
with respect to which the Majority Stockholders (as defined) cease to own, directly or indirectly, in the aggregate at
least forty percent (40%) of the then outstanding shares of the Parent’s common stock or the combined voting power
entitled to vote generally in the election of directors of the reorganized, merged or consolidated company’s then
outstanding voting securities, in substantially the same proportions as their ownership immediately prior to such
reorganization, merger, consolidation or other transaction, or (I1) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Company; (ii) the acquisition by any person, entity or “group”, within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or
14(d)(2) of the Securities Exchange Act, of beneficial ownership within the meaning of Rule 13-d promulgated
under the Securities Exchange Act which would result in the Majority Stockholders ceasing to own, directly or
indirectly, in the aggregate, at least forty percent (40%) of the then outstanding shares of the Company’s common

39



stock; or (iii) the approval by the stockholders of the Company of the complete liquidation or dissolution of the
Company.

If Mr. Reinhold is terminated for cause, any unvested portion of his restricted stock units will terminate and
be forfeited. In the event of a change in control, Mr. Reinhold will become immediately vested in all of the restricted
stock units held by him as of the date of the change in control. If Mr. Reinhold’s employment is terminated without
cause or for good reason, he will become immediately vested in all non-vested units and will become immediately
entitled to a distribution of that number of shares of common stock of the Company that are represented by those
vested restricted stock units. If Mr. Reinhold’s employment is terminated due to disability or death, his estate or
designated beneficiary(ies), whichever is applicable, will become immediately vested in 50% of the non-vested
restricted stock units.

Pursuant to the Company’s standard option agreements, in the event Mr. Reinhold’s employment is
terminated for any reason other than death, disability or cause, the vested portions of his options will be exercisable
for up to three months, and the unvested portion will be forfeited. In the event of death or disability, the vested
portion of his option will be exercisable for up to one year, and the unvested portion will be forfeited. In the event
of termination for cause, all unexercised options (vested and unvested) will be forfeited.

David Sprosty

Mr. Sprosty’s employment agreement is terminable upon “death” or “total disability” (as defined), by the
Company for “cause” or “without cause” (as defined), or by Mr. Sprosty voluntarily for any reason or for “good
reason” (as defined). As a result of the termination of Mr. Sprosty’s employment in March 2013 “without cause”, as
of the date of termination, the Company became obligated to pay Mr. Sprosty all accrued but unpaid base salary to
the date of termination, and any accrued but unused vacation time (up to four weeks) and severance payments
(contingent upon and as express consideration for compliance with his non-compete, non-solicitation and other
confidentiality obligations) equal to (a) twelve (12) months’ base salary; (b) an amount equal to the annual target
amount of the annual bonus; and (c) a reimbursement of costs for COBRA insurance coverage.

As a result of the termination of Mr. Sprosty’s employment in March 2013 “without cause”, as of the date
of termination, Mr. Sprosty became immediately vested in all non-vested restricted stock units and became
immediately entitled to a distribution of that number of shares of common stock of the Company that was
represented by those vested restricted stock units.

As a result of the termination of Mr. Sprosty’s employment in March 2013 “without cause” he may

exercise (to the extent exercisable) his vested options in whole or in part at any time within three months after the
date of termination. All unvested options at the time of such termination were forfeited.
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Termination of Employment Without Change In Control

The table below sets forth the severance payments that would have been made had the employment of Mr.
Reinhold or Mr. Sprosty been terminated by the Company without cause or by them for “good reason” in a situation
not involving a change in control, based on a hypothetical termination date of December 31, 2012, the last day of the
Company’s fiscal year 2012, and using the closing price of our common stock on December 31, 2012. These
amounts are estimates and the actual amounts to be paid can only be determined at the time of the termination of the
officer’s employment.

Value of Accelerated

Cash Compensation Vesting Medical and

(Salary and Bonus)  of Stock Awards Other Benefits Total
Name ®) ®) $) $)
Lawrence Reinhold 1,049,500 (1) 2,219,500 (2) 20,091(6) 3,289,091
David Sprosty(3) 1,418,000 (4) 868,500 (5) 30,966 (6) 2,317,466

1) Represents one year’s salary of $608,000 and an average yearly cash bonus of $441,500 paid to Mr.
Reinhold for fiscal years 2011 and 2012. Mr. Reinhold would also receive the bonus amount in the event of
his death or disability.

(2) Represents accelerated vesting of 230,000 unvested restricted stock units granted to Mr. Reinhold if
terminated without cause or for good reason. In the event of Mr. Reinhold’s death or disability, 115,000
restricted stock units (50% of the unvested restricted stock units at December 31, 2012) would vest, having
a value of $1,109,750, based on a termination date of December 31, 2012 and using a closing price of our
stock on December 31, 2012.

3) Mr. Sprosty’s employment commenced in October 2011 and terminated on March 1, 2013.

(@) Represents one year’s salary of $718,000 and a target cash bonus amount of $700,000 (as Mr. Sprosty was
employed for less than two years).

5) Represents accelerated vesting of 90,000 unvested restricted stock units granted to Mr. Sprosty if he is
terminated without cause or resigns for good reason. In the event of Mr. Sprosty’s death or disability,
45,000 restricted stock units (50% of the unvested restricted stock units at December 31, 2012) would vest,
having a value of $435,600, based on a termination date of December 31, 2012 and using a closing price of
our stock on December 31, 2012.

(6) Represents reimbursement of medical and dental insurance payments under COBRA for one year.
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Change In Control Payments

The table below sets forth the change in control payments that would have been made based on a
hypothetical change of control date of December 31, 2012, the last day of the Company’s fiscal year 2012, and using
the closing price of our common stock on December 31, 2012. These amounts are estimates and the actual amounts
to be paid can only be determined at the time of the change of control.

Value of
Cash Compensation Accelerated Vesting Medical and
(Salary and Bonus) of Stock Awards Other Benefits Total
Name ®) ®) ®) ®)
Lawrence Reinhold 1,657,500 (1)(2) 2,219,500 (4) 30,136 (8) 3,907,136
David Sprosty(3) 1,418,000 (5)(6) 868,500 (7) 46,450 (8) 2,332,950

Q) Represents two years’ salary of $608,000 per year and an average yearly cash bonus of $441,500 paid to
Mr. Reinhold for the fiscal years 2011 and 2012.

2 Payments are to Mr. Reinhold only if he is terminated without “cause” or resigns for “good reason” within
60 days prior to, or one year following, a Change of Control.

3) Mr. Sprosty’s employment commenced in October 2011 and terminated on March 1, 2013.
4 Represents accelerated vesting of 230,000 unvested restricted stock units.

(5) Represents one year’s salary of $718,000 and a target cash bonus amount of $700,000 (as Mr. Sprosty was
employed for less than two years).

(6) Payments are to Mr. Sprosty only if terminated without “cause” or resigns for “good reason” within six
months following a Change of Control.

@) Represents accelerated vesting of 90,000 unvested restricted stock units and accelerated vesting of 75,000
unvested stock options.

(8) Represents reimbursement of medical and dental insurance payments under COBRA for 18 months.
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The Company’s policy is not to pay compensation to Directors who are also employees of the Company or
its subsidiaries. Each non-employee Director receives annual compensation as follows: $65,000 per year as base
compensation, $10,000 per year for each committee chair, except for the Audit Committee Chair who receives
$20,000, and a grant each year of shares of Company stock (restricted for sale for two years) in an amount equal to
$40,000 divided by the fair market value of such stock on the date of grant. The Lead Independent Director,
currently Robert D. Rosenthal, also receives an additional $20,000 per year. The restricted stock grants are made
pursuant to the Company’s 2006 Stock Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors, which was approved by the
Company’s stockholders at the 2006 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. Directors are reimbursed for reasonable travel
and out-of-pocket expenses incurred for attending Board and Committee meetings and are covered by our travel
accident insurance policy for such travel.

Director Compensation For Fiscal Year 2012

The following table sets forth compensation information regarding payments in 2012 to our non-employee
Directors:

Fees Earned

Name or Paid in Stock Awards Total
(@ Cash % (1) %)
$) (© (h)
(b)
Robert D. Rosenthal 105,000 40,000 145,000
Stacy S. Dick 98,350 40,000 138,500
Marie Adler-Kravecas 65,000 40,000 105,000
Q) This column represents the fair value of the stock award on the grant date determined in

accordance with the provisions of ASC 718. As per SEC rules relating to executive compensation
disclosure, the amounts shown exclude the impact of forfeitures related to service based vesting
conditions. For additional information regarding assumptions made in calculating the amount
reflected in this column, please refer to Note 9 to our audited consolidated financial statements,
included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2012.

The following table presents the aggregate number of outstanding stock awards and stock option awards
held by each of our non-employee Directors at the end of fiscal year 2012:

Name : Stock Awards Option Awards
Marie Adler-Kravecas 8,035 5,000
Robert D. Rosenthal 12,263 9,000
Stacy S. Dick 12,263 9,000
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PROPOSAL NO. 2
RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Action is to be taken at the Annual Meeting to ratify the selection of Ernst & Young LLP as independent
registered public accountants for the Company for fiscal year 2013.

Representatives of Ernst & Young LLP are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting and to be
available to respond to appropriate questions. They will have an opportunity to make a statement if they so desire.

Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The following are the fees billed by Ernst & Young LLP for services rendered during fiscal years 2011 and
2012:

Audit and Audit-related Fees

Ernst & Young billed the Company $1,605,238 for professional services rendered for the audit of the
Company’s annual consolidated financial statements for fiscal year 2012 and its reviews of the interim financial
statements included in the Company’s Forms 10-Q for that fiscal year and $1,771,069 for such services rendered for
fiscal year 2011.

In accordance with the SEC’s definitions and rules, “audit fees” are fees that were billed to the Company
by Ernst & Young for the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements, to be included in the Form 10-K, and
review of financial statements included in the Form 10-Qs; for the audit of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting with the objective of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects; for the attestation of management’s report on the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting; and for services that are normally provided by the auditor
in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements. “Audit-related fees” are fees for assurance and
related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of the company’s financial
statements and internal control over financial reporting, including services in connection with assisting the company
in its compliance with its obligations under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and related regulations.

Tax Fees

Tax fees included services for international tax compliance, planning and advice. Ernst & Young LLP
billed the Company for professional services rendered for tax compliance, planning and advice in 2011 and 2012 an
aggregate of $0 and $0, respectively.

All Other Fees

Other fees (i.e., those that are not audit fees, audit related fees, or tax fees) of $2,167 and $2,665 were
billed by Ernst & Young LLP for fiscal years 2011 and 2012.

The Audit Committee is responsible for approving every engagement of the Company’s independent
registered public accountants to perform audit or non-audit services on behalf of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries before such accountants can be engaged to provide those services. The Audit Committee does not
delegate its pre-approval authority. The Audit Committee has reviewed the services provided to the Company by
Ernst & Young LLP and believes that the non-audit/review services it has provided are compatible with maintaining
the auditor’s independence.

Stockholder ratification of the selection of Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s independent registered
public accountants is not required by the Company’s By-Laws or other applicable legal requirement. However, the
Board is submitting the selection of Ernst & Young LLP to the stockholders for ratification as a matter of good
corporate practice. If the stockholders fail to ratify the selection, the Audit Committee will reconsider whether or
not to continue to retain that firm. Even if the selection is ratified, the Audit Committee at its discretion may direct
the appointment of different independent registered public accountants at any time during the year or thereafter if it
determines that such a change would be in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders.
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Vote Required for Approval

Ratification of the selection of Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s independent registered public
accountants will require the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the Shares present in person or by proxy
and entitled to vote on the issue. There are no rights of appraisal or dissenter’s rights as a result of a vote on this
issue.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR THE RATIFICATION
OF THE APPOINTMENT OF ERNST & YOUNG AS THE COMPANY’S INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS FOR FISCAL 2013, WHICH IS DESIGNATED AS PROPOSAL NO. 2.

ADDITIONAL MATTERS
Solicitation of Proxies

We are using the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, Notice and Access rule that allows us to
furnish our proxy materials over the internet to our stockholders instead of mailing paper copies of those materials to
each stockholder. As a result, beginning on or about April 30, 2013, we sent to most of our stockholders by mail a
notice containing instructions on how to access our proxy materials over the internet and vote online. This notice is
not a proxy card and cannot be used to vote your shares. If you received only a notice this year, you will not receive
paper copies of the proxy materials unless you request the materials by following the instructions on the notice or on
the website referred to in the notice.

The proxy statement and annual report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2012 are available at
WWW.proxyvote.com.

The cost of soliciting proxies for the Annual Meeting will be borne by the Company. In addition to
solicitation by mail and over the internet, solicitations may also be made by personal interview, fax and telephone.
Arrangements will be made with brokerage houses and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries to send proxies
and proxy material to their principals, and the Company will reimburse them for expenses in so doing. Consistent
with the Company’s confidential voting procedure, Directors, officers and other regular employees of the Company,
as yet undesignated, may also request the return of proxies by telephone or fax, or in person.

Stockholder Proposals

Stockholder proposals intended to be presented at the Annual Meeting, including proposals for the
nomination of Directors, must be received by December 31, 2013, to be considered for the 2014 annual meeting
pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act. Stockholders proposals should be mailed to Systemax Inc.,
Attention: Investor Relations, 11 Harbor Park Drive, Port Washington, NY 11050.

Other Matters

The Board does not know of any matter other than those described in this proxy statement that will be presented
for action at the meeting. If other matters properly come before the meeting, the persons named as proxies intend to
vote the Shares they represent in accordance with their judgment.

A COPY OF THE COMPANY’S FORM 10-K FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012 IS INCLUDED AS PART OF THE
COMPANY’S ANNUAL REPORT ALONG WITH THIS PROXY STATEMENT, WHICH ARE
AVAILABLE AT www.proxyvote.com.

Available Information

The Company maintains an internet web site at www.systemax.com. The Company files reports with the
Securities and Exchange Commission and makes available free of charge on or through this web site its annual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K, including all amendments
to those reports. These are available as soon as is reasonably practicable after they are filed with the SEC. All
reports mentioned above are also available from the SEC’s web site (www.sec.gov). The information on the
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Company’s web site or any report the Company files with, or furnishes to, the SEC is not part of this proxy
statement.

The Board has adopted the following corporate governance documents (the “Corporate Governance
Documents”):

e Corporate Ethics Policy for officers, Directors and employees;

e  Charter for the Audit Committee of the Board,;

e  Charter for the Compensation Committee of the Board;

e  Charter for the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee of the Board; and

e Corporate Governance Guidelines and Principles.

In accordance with the corporate governance rules of the New York Stock Exchange, each of the Corporate
Governance Documents is available on the Company’s Company web site (www.systemax.com).
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SYSTEMAX INC. VOTE BY INTERNET -www.proxyvote.com

11 HARBOR PARK DRIVE Use the Internet to transmit your voting instructions and for electronic

PORT WASHINGTON, NY 11050 delivery of information up until 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time the day
before the cut-off date or meeting date. Have your proxy card in hand
when you access the web site and follow the instructions to obtain your
records and to create an electronic voting instruction form.

VOTE BY PHONE -1-800-690-6903

Use any touch-tone telephone to transmit your voting instructions up
until 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time the day before the cut-off date or
meeting date. Have your proxy card in hand when you call and then
follow the instructions.

VOTE BY MAIL

Mark, sign and date your proxy card and return it in the postage-paid
envelope we have provided or return it to VVote Processing, c/o
Broadridge, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, NY 11717.

TO VOTE, MARK BLOCKS BELOW IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS FOLLOWS:
KEEP THIS PORTION FOR YOUR RECORDS

DETACH AND RETURN THIS PORTION ONLY
THIS PROXY CARD IS VALID ONLY WHEN SIGNED AND DATED.

For  Withhold For All To withhold authority to vote for any
All All Except individual nominee(s), mark “For All
Except” and write the number(s) of the
nominee(s) in the line below
The Board of Directors recommends ] ] ]
that you vote FOR the following:
1.  Election of Directors
Nominees

01 Richard Leeds 02 Bruce Leeds 03 Robert Leeds 04 Lawrence Reinhold
05 Stacy S. Dick 06 Robert D. Rosenthal 07 Marie Adler-Kravecas

The Board of Directors recommends you vote FOR the following proposal:
For Against Abstain

2. AProposal to ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s  [] O O
Independent registered public accountants for fiscal year 2013

NOTE: The shares represented by this proxy when properly executed will be voted in the manner directed herein by the undersigned
Stockholder(s). If no direction is made, this proxy will be voted FOR items 1 and 2. If any other matters properly come before the meeting, or if
cumulative voting is required, the person named in this proxy will vote in their discretion. This proxy is solicited on behalf of the Board of
Directors and may be revoked.

For address change/comments, mark here. (see reverse for instructions OO

Please sign exactly as your name(s) appear(s) hereon. When signing as attorney,
executor, administrator, or other fiduciary, please give full title as such. Joint
owners should each sign personally. All holders must sign. If a corporation or
partnership, please sign in full corporate or partnership name, by authorized
officer.

Signature [PLEASE SIGN WITHIN BOX] Date Signature Joint Owners Date



Important Notice Regarding Internet Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting: The Proxy Statement
& Annual Report is/are available at www.proxyvote.com

SYSTEMAX INC.

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS - JUNE 10, 2013

The stockholder(s) hereby appoint(s) Eric Lerner and Thomas Axmacher, or either of them, as proxies, each with the power to appoint
his substitute, and hereby authorizes them to represent and to vote, as designated on the reverse side of this ballot, all of the shares of
Common Stock of SYSTEMAX INC. that the stockholder(s) is/are entitled to vote at the Annual meeting of Stockholder(s) to be held
at 2:00 PM, EDT on June 10, 2013, at the Company’s Corporate Offices 11 Harbor Park Drive, Port Washington, NY 11050, and any
adjournment or postponement thereof.

THIS PROXY, WHEN PROPERLY EXECUTED, WILL BE VOTED AS DIRECTED BY THE STOCKHOLDERS, IF NO
SUCH DIRECTIONS ARE MADE, THIS PROXY WILL BE VOTED FOR ITEMS 1 AND 2.

PLEASE MARK, SIGN, DATE AND RETURN THIS PROXY CARD PROMPLY USING THE ENCLOSED REPLY
ENVELOPE

Address change/comments:

(If you noted any Address Changes/Comments above, please mark corresponding box on the reverse side

(Continued, and to be marked, dated and signed, on the other side)
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Table of Content
PART |

Unless otherwise indicated, all references hereiSystemax Inc. (sometimes referred to as “Systérieex“Company” or “we”) include its
subsidiaries.

Forward Looking Statements

This report contains forward looking statementsimithe meaning of that term in the Private Se@&sit itigation Reform Act of 1995
(Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 andi@etLE of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934jditfonal written or oral forward looking
statements may be made by the Company from titiredadn filings with the Securities and Exchanger@assion or otherwise. Statements
contained in this report that are not historicatfa are forward looking statements made pursuattiécsafe harbor provisions of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forwéwdking statements may include, but are not limitggrojections of revenue, income or |
and capital expenditures, statements regardingréutyperations, expansion or restructuring plansaficing needs, compliance with financial
covenants in loan agreements, plans for reorgagipiar European operations, including timely openémgl integration of our new shared
services center in Hungary, plans for acquisitiorsale of assets or businesses and consolidatiapefations of newly acquired businesses,
and plans relating to products or services of tt@pany, assessments of materiality, predictiorigtafe events and the effects of pending
possible litigation, as well as assumptions relgtia the foregoing. In addition, when used in tieigort, the word“anticipates,” “believes,”
“estimates,”
statements.

expects,” “intends,” and “plans” andvariations thereof and similar expressions are itked to identify forward looking

Forward looking statements are inherently subjectisks and uncertainties, some of which canngprieelicted or quantified based on curr
expectations. Consequently, future events andtsesould differ materially from those set forth aontemplated by, or underlying the forw
looking statements contained in this report. Steets in this report, particularly in “Iltem 1. Bungiss,” “ltem 1A. Risk Factors,” Item 3
Legal Proceeding” “Item 7. Management's Discussion and AnalysisFafiancial Condition and Results of Operationgid the Notes
Consolidated Financial Statements describe cerf@iors, among others, that could contribute taause such differences.

Other factors that may affect our future resultspdrations and financial condition include, b aot limited to, unanticipated developments
in any one or more of the following areas, as &slbther factors which may be detailed from timen@ in our Securities and Exchange
Commission filings:

« risks involved with e-commerce, including possilolss of business and customer dissatisfactiontdgrs or other computer-
related problems should preclude customer accemsrtproducts and servic

. the Company’s management information systems dmet ¢¢chnology platforms supporting our sales, prement and other
operations are critical to our operations and gisoms would have a material adverse effect o

« general economic conditions, such as decreasedim@nsonfidence and spending, reductions in matwifag capacity and
inflation could result in our failure to achieverdustorical sales growth rates and profit le

» the markets for our products and services are meiyecompetitive and if we are unable to succeblsfespond to our
competitor’ strategies our sales and gross margins will beradieaffectec

- sales tax laws or government enforcement prioritiag be changed which could result in ecommercedaedt mail retailers
having to collect sales taxes in states where st laws and interpretations do not requireousa sc

- goodwill and intangible assets may become impaiesdlting in a charge to earnings

» our substantial international operations are suliferdsks such as fluctuations in currency rateseign regulatory requirements,
political uncertainty and the management of ouraexfing international operations infrastructure|uding our ability to timely
and effectively open and transition certain suppp#rations to our new shared services center imgbity and effectively
implement distribution logistics initiatives in Eape

« managing various inventory risks, such as beindglent profitably resell excess or obsolete inventnd/or the loss of product
return rights and price protection from our venc

- effective management of our retail stores in Néutherica

« meeting credit card industry compliance standandsdler to maintain our ability to accept creditdsa

- significant changes in the computer products ratdilistry, especially relating to the distributiamnd sale of such products

» timely availability of existing and new products

» risks associated with delivery of merchandise ttamers by utilizing common delivery services

» borrowing costs or availability

« pending or threatened litigation and investigations

» the availability of key personnel

» the continuation of key vendor relationships

« the ability to maintain satisfactory credit arranggnts
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Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliamesy forward looking statements contained in ta@rt, which speak only as of the date of
this report. We undertake no obligation to pullielease the result of any revisions to these dodviooking statements that may be made to
reflect events or circumstances after the datedfiereto reflect the occurrence of unexpected esient

Item 1. Business.
General

Systemax is primarily a direct marketer of brantheaand private label products. Our operations egargzed in two reportable business
segments — Technology Products and Industrial Raitsdu

Our Technology Products segment sells computenspater supplies and consumer electronics whichrendeted in North America and
Europe. Most of these products are manufacturemthgr companies; however, we do offer a selectf@raducts that are manufactured for us
to our own design and marketed on a private laasisb Technology Products accounted for 89%, 918/48f6 of our net sales in 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectively.

Our Industrial Products segment sells a wide asfagdustrial products and supplies which are mgadtén North America. Most of these
products are manufactured by other companies. $oatkicts are manufactured for us to our own deaighmarketed on a private label basis
Industrial products accounted for 11%, 9%, and T%uo net sales in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respewtivel

Recent developmer

The Company conducted an evaluation of its TectgyoRroducts multbrand United States consumer strategy and thegitti@nassets used
that strategy and concluded that the Compafyture North American consumer business wouldgdignized by consolidating its United Ste
consumer operations under TigerDirect, its leadind largest brand. This brand consolidation whectsfd in the fourth quarter of 2012
resulting in a write off of the intangible assetsl goodwill of CompUSA and Circuit City of approxately $35.3 million.

The Company exited the PC manufacturing busineseglthe fourth quarter of 2012 after conductingealuation of its operations and
concluded that the Company’s North American tecbgplresults will be enhanced by exiting the compatanufacturing business. The exit
resulted in a fourth quarter of 2012 asset writerdof the carrying cost of the Company’s computanafacturing facilities, related equipment
and inventory of approximately $4.6 million.

The Company is opening a shared services cenBudapest, Hungary in 2013 to facilitate the corgohigrowth of its European Technology
business. This new facility will provide certaidnainistrative and back office services for the g European business and will help drive
operational efficiencies and better serve the Camwggpan-European operating strategy and will saxvéhe sales location for future business
in Eastern Europe. Exit, severance and startup tosinplement the facility together with other taduction initiatives in Europe, aggregated
$4.7 million in the fourth quarter of 2012.

The Company exited the Software Solutions segnmedaime 2009. One customer remained being servdteb@ompany until the second
quarter of 2012. The termination of this custoimes resulted in all current and prior period resfdt this business segment being classified &
discontinued operations. Balance sheet amouretiey this change are not shown due to their itennality.

See Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statesniraluded in Item 15 of this Form 10-K for additad financial information about our
business s as well as information about our gedgeagperations.

The Company was incorporated in Delaware in 19@5taih predecessor businesses which now conspituteof the Company have been in
business since 1949. Our headquarters office &ddcat 11 Harbor Park Drive, Port Washington, Nenk.

Products

We offer hundreds of thousands of brand name amdtprlabel products. We endeavor to expand and &egent the breadth of our product
offerings in order to fulfill the increasingly widange of product needs of our customers.

Products offered by our Technology Products seginehtde individual technology products in the éolling categories: computers; computel
parts; Tablets; TV and video; audio; cameras amgedllance; car and GPS; cell phones; softwaree@igames and toys; home and electronics
accessories.
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Products offered by our Industrial Products segrnreaitide individual industrial products in the fmNing categories: material handling;
storage and shelving; workbench and shop deskkagawy and supplies; furniture and office; foodsssand appliances; janitorial and
maintenance; tools and instruments; fasteners ardare; motors and power transmission; HVAC/R famgd; electrical and bulbs; plumbing
supplies; and safety and medical items.

Sales and Marketing

We market our products to both individual consunaers business customers. Our business customéudénorprofit businesses, educatior
organizations and government entities. We haveldped numerous proprietary customer and prospéabdaes.

To reach our individual consumer customers, weoméiee methods such as website campaigns, banearatle-mail campaigns. We are able
to monitor and evaluate the results of our varadsgertising campaigns to enable us to execute thehe most cost-effective manner. We
combine our use of e-commerce initiatives with lcatanailings, which generate online orders andsdallinbound sales representatives. Thes
sales representatives use our information andlaligion systems to fulfill orders and explore agigl customer product needs. Sales to
individual consumers are generally fulfilled fromrawn stock, requiring us to carry more inventtirgn we would for our business custom
We also periodically take advantage of attractirepct pricing by making opportunistic bulk invent@urchases with the objective of turning
them quickly into sales. We have also successfallieased our sales to individual consumers bygusgtail outlet stores.

We have established a multi-faceted direct margetystem to business customers, consisting priynafribur relationship marketers, catalog
mailings and proprietary internet websites, the loio@tion of which is designed to maximize salest @lationship marketers focus their
efforts on our business customers by establishipgrsonal relationship between such customers &yst@max account manager. The goal of
the relationship marketing sales force is to inseethe purchasing productivity of current custonaers to actively solicit newly targeted
prospects to become customers. With access tetioeds we maintain, our relationship marketerspasenpted with product suggestions to
expand customer order values. In certain countwesalso have the ability to provide such customeétis electronic data interchange (“EDI")
ordering and customized billing services, custosaatings reports and stocking of specialty itemgiipally requested by these customers.
relationship marketers’ efforts are supported legfient catalog mailings andh&il campaigns, both of which are designed to ggrenbounc
telephone sales, and our interactive websites,wdllow customers to purchase products directly tive Internet. We believe that the
integration of our multiple marketing methods eeshls to more thoroughly penetrate our businesgatidnal and government customer b
We believe increased internet exposure leads te imternet-related sales and also generates miooeia telephone sales; just as we believe
catalog mailings and email campaigns which feaburewebsites results in greater internet-relatéessa

E-commerce
The worldwide growth in active internet users hagleme-commerce a significant opportunity for sglesvth.

The increase in our internet-related sales enalslés leverage our advertising spending. We cugr@perate multiple e-commerce sites,
including:

North America Europe
www.tigerdirect.corr WWW.MISCO.co.uk
www.tigerdirect.ce www.misco.de
www.infotelusa.con www.misco.fr
www.globalcomputer.cor www.misco.nl
www.globalgoved.con WWW.Mmisco.it
www.globalindustrial.con WWW.MISco.es
www.globalindustrial.ci WWW.MISCO.S€
www.nexelwire.con WWW.misco.al

www.misco.ch
WWW.Mmisco.be
WWW.MIsco.ie
WWw.inmac-wstore.corr
www.dealopro.con

We are continually upgrading the capabilities aadgrmance of these websites. Our internet siteife on-line catalogs of hundreds of
thousands of products, allowing us to offer a widamiety of computer and industrial products thanprinted catalogs. Our customers have
around-the-clock, on-line access to purchase pitedud we have the ability to create targeted ptioms for our customers’ interests.
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In addition to our own e-commerce websites, we hgarénering agreements with several of the lariggstnet shopping and search engine
providers who feature our products on their weksiteprovide “click-throughs” from their sites ditly to ours. These arrangements allow us
to expand our customer base at an economical cost.

Catalogs

We currently produce a total of 13 full-line orelit mail publications in North America and Europeler distinct titles. Our portfolio of
catalogs includes such established brand nameégaDirect.com™, Global Computer Supplies™, Tigeebt.ca™, Misco®, Global
Industrial™, Nexel™ and Inmac WSt®. We mail catalogs to both businesses and indiViderasumers. In the case of business mailings,
we mail our catalogs to many individuals at a srglisiness location, providing us with multiplerstof-contact. Our in-house staff designs
all of our catalogs, which reduces overall cataggense and shortens catalog production time.c@tatogs are printed by third parties under
fixed pricing arrangements. The commonality otaiercore pages of our catalogs also allows fonenues of scale in catalog production.

Continuing our focus on internet advertising, tisribution of our catalogs decreased to 18.5 onillin 2012, which was 39.5% less than in
prior year. In 2012, we mailed approximately 13lion catalogs in North America, a 46.4% decrefiee last year and approximately 5.5
million catalogs in Europe, or 13.9% fewer than lethin 2011.

Customer Service, Order Fulfilment and Support

We receive orders through the Internet, by telephefectronic data interchange and by fax. We gdlgeorovide toll-free telephone number
access for our customers in countries where tigsarnary. Certain domestic call centers are lirthegrovide telephone backup in the event o
a disruption in phone service.

Certain of our products are carried in stock, arters for such products are fulfilled on a timeasis directly from our distribution centers,
typically within one day of the order. We utilimemerous sales and distribution facilities in Noktherica and Europe. Orders are generally
shipped by third-party delivery services. We maimtrelationships with a number of large distriatmm North America and Europe that also
deliver products directly to our customers.

We provide extensive technical telephone suppaosutgprivate label PC customers. We maintain allge of commonly asked questions for
our technical support representatives, enablingntteerespond quickly to similar questions. We aartdegular on-site training seminars for
our sales representatives to help ensure thatateeyell trained and informed regarding our lapestiuct offerings.

Suppliers

We purchase substantially all of our products amdmonents directly from manufacturers and largeledade distributors. In 2012, no vendor
accounted for 10% of more of our purchases. Onédateaccounted for 11.5% and 10.0% of our purchias2811 and 2010, respectively. 1
loss of these vendors, or any other key vendordddumave a material adverse effect on us.

Most private label products are manufactured bydtharties to our specifications.
Competition and Other Market Factors
Technology Products

The North American and European technology proctharkets are highly competitive, with many U.S.,aksand European companies vying
for market share. There are few barriers to emtith these products being sold through multiplaratels of distribution, including direct
marketers, local and national retail computer stocemputer resellers, mass merchants, over teenktitand by computer and office supply
superstores.

Timely introduction of new products or product fer&s are critical elements to remaining competit@#er competitive factors include
product performance, quality and reliability, terah support and customer service, marketing asttidution and price. Some of our
competitors have stronger brand-recognition, bropdeduct lines and greater financial, marketingnoifacturing and technological resources
than us.

Conditions in the market for technology productaae highly competitive, resulting in our frequaligcounting of product sales price as well
as offering free or highly discounted freight. $aections have and may continue to adverselytafteaevenues and profits. Additionally,
we rely in part upon the introduction of new teclogges and products by other manufacturers in ai@lsustain long-term sales growth and
profitability. There is no assurance that thedapie of such technological advances and prodaatldpment will continue.
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Current economic conditions in the United Statesluiding eroding consumer demand, as well as oggtifficulties in the various European
countries where we operate, raise additional corscas we believe the loss of consumer confidentieilCompanys markets together with tl
effects of the fiscal cliff and budget discussiam¢he U.S. has resulted in a decrease of speridithge categories of products we sell. It is alsc
possible that as manufacturers react to the mddostphey may reduce manufacturing capacity anaterghortages of product.

Industrial Products

The market for the sale of industrial products orth America is highly fragmented and is charaztstiby multiple distribution channels such
as small dealerships, direct mail distributiongeinet-based resellers, large warehouse storestaitlautlets. We also face competition from
manufacturers’ own sales representatives, wharshlistrial equipment directly to customers, andrfn@gional or local distributors. Many
high volume purchasers, however, utilize catal@griiutors as their first source of product. In ihgustrial products market, customer
purchasing decisions are primarily based on ppoeduct selection, product availability, level efgice and convenience. We believe that
direct marketing via sales representatives, catafmhthe Internet are effective and convenientiligion methods to reach mid-sized facilities
that place many small orders and require a widectieh of products. In addition, because the itrthlproducts market is highly fragmented
and generally less brand oriented, it is well sutteprivate label products.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012, we employed a total of@amately 5,300 employees, of whom 3,800 were anthl America and 1,500 were in
Europe and Asia.

Seasonality

As the Company has a significant portion of itesah the North America consumer business matetidurth quarter has represented the
greatest portion of annual sales. Net sales haterically been modestly weaker during the secamd third quarters as a result of lower
business activity during those months. See ItefM@nagement’s Discussions and Analysis of Findn€andition and Results of Operations;
Seasonality”.

Environmental Matters

Under various national, state and local environ@aldatvs and regulations in North America and Westurope, a current or previous owner
or operator (including the lessee) of real propery become liable for the costs of removal or miatén of hazardous substances at suct
property. Such laws and regulations often impaaaillty without regard to fault. We lease mosbof facilities. In connection with such
leases, we could be held liable for the costs mioreal or remedial actions with respect to hazardlstances. Although we have not been
notified of, and are not otherwise aware of, anyemal real property environmental liability, claion non-compliance, there can be no
assurance that we will not be required to incurediation or other costs in connection with realpgamty environmental matters in the future.

Financial Information About Foreign and Domestic Ogerations

We currently sell our products in North Americag(tinited States, Puerto Rico and Canada) and Eurpproximately 37.8%, 36.0%, and
35.1% of our net sales during 2012, 2011 and 2@Kpectively were made by subsidiaries locateddritsf the United States. For
information pertaining to our international opeoat, see Note 12, “Segment and Related Informétiorthe Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Item 15 of this Form 10-Ke Tollowing sets forth selected information wi#spect to our operations, excluding
discontinued operations, in those two geographidketa (in millions):

North
America Europe Total

2012

Net sales $ 2,417¢ $ 1,126.° $ 3,544.¢
Operating (loss) incom $ (63.€) $ 237 % (39.9
Identifiable asset $ 642.¢ $ 319.¢ $ 962.°
2011

Net sales $ 2,580.¢ % 1,099.¢ $ 3,680.¢
Operating incomi $ 45.C $ 35.6 % 80.¢
Identifiable asset $ 643.¢ $ 2456 % 889.7
2010

Net sales $ 2542 % 1,047.C $ 3,589.:
Operating incomi $ 476 $ 21C % 68.¢
Identifiable asset $ 665.7 $ 228.¢ % 894.1
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See Item 7, “Management’s Discussions and Anabyfsignancial Condition and Results of Operatiorisf,further information with respect to
our operations.

Available Information

We maintain an internet website at www.systemax.dbfa file reports with the Securities and Excha@genmission and make available free
of charge on or through this website our annuabmspon Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10A@ aurrent reports on Form 8-K,
including all amendments to those reports. Thes@waailable as soon as is reasonably practicdtgethey are filed with the SEC. All reports
mentioned above are also available from the SE@bsite (www.sec.gov). The information on our sitehis not part of this or any other reg
we file with, or furnish to, the SEC.

Our Board of Directors has adopted the followingpcoate governance documents with respect to tmep@ay (the “Corporate Governance
Documents”):

. Corporate Ethics Policy for officers, directors ardployees

. Charter for the Audit Committee of the Board of ézitors

. Charter for the Compensation Committee of the Beaéidirectors

. Charter for the Nominating/Corporate Governance @dtee of the Board of Directors
. Corporate Governance Guidelines and Principles

In accordance with the listing standards of the Newk Stock Exchange, each of the Corporate Govera@®ocuments is available on our
Company website (www.systemax.com).

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

There are a number of factors and variables destiielow that may affect our future results of afiens and financial condition. Other
factors of which we are currently not aware or thatcurrently deem immaterial may also affect @sutts of operations and financial positi

Risks Related to the Economy and Our Industries

. General economic conditions, such as decreaseducosisconfidence and spending, reductions in manwifi,ag capacity, and
inflation could result in our failure to achieve whistorical sales growth rates and profit leve

Current economic conditions may cause the losew$umer confidence in the Company’s domestic atedriational markets
which may result in a decrease of spending in #tegories of products we sell, as occurred in 2@igh conditions in the mark
for technology products remaining highly compestiveductions in our selling prices, as we havesggpced in recent years,
have adversely affected our revenues and profdscanld continue to do so in the future. It iogh®ssible that as manufacturers
react to the marketplace they may reduce manufagteapacity or allocations to their customers tingashortages of

product. Both we and our customers are subjegiatoal political, economic and market conditiomgluding inflation, interest
rates, energy costs, the impact of natural disssteititary action and the threat of terrorism. r@ansolidated results of
operations are directly affected by economic caomaiit in North America and Europe. We may expegeadecline in sales as a
result of poor economic conditions and the lackisibility relating to future orders, as occurred2012. Our results of operatic
depend upon, among other things, our ability tonta@n and increase sales volumes with existingorasts, our ability to limit
price reductions and maintain our margins, ouritgltib attract new customers and the financial dor of our customers. A
decline in the economy that adversely affects ogtamers, causing them to limit or defer their sjpeg, would likely adversely
affect our sales, prices and profitability as wa#l,occurred in 2012. We cannot predict with ayainty whether we will be able
to maintain or improve upon historical sales volsmath existing customers, or whether we will béeab attract new customers.

In response to economic and market conditions, tiora to time we have undertaken initiatives touaaour cost structure whe
appropriate. These initiatives, as well as anyrivorkforce and facilities reductions, may notshéicient to meet current and
future changes in economic and market conditiomisadliow us to continue to achieve the growth rates re-attain the levels of
profitability we experienced prior to the recentrke downturns. In addition, costs actually inearin connection with our
restructuring actions, including launching and gnéting the new shared services facility in Hungamgy be higher than our
estimates of such costs and/or may not lead tarttieipated cost savings.
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. The markets for our products and services are exttg competitive and if we are unable to succdgsfespond to our
competitor’ strategies our sales and gross margins will be esblg affected

We may not be able to compete effectively with entror future competitors. The markets for ourdpieis and services are
intensely competitive and subject to constant tetdgical change. We expect this competition taHfer intensify in the future.
Competitive factors include price, availabilityrgee and support. We compete with a wide varadtgther resellers and retaile
including internet marketers, as well as manufaegir Many of our competitors are larger compawidls greater financial,
marketing and product development resources thesy dthe market for the sale of industrial produtsiorth America is highly
fragmented and is characterized by multiple distidn channels such as small dealerships, diretdiséribution, internet-based
resellers, large warehouse stores and retail sutMte also face competition from manufacturersh®ales representatives, who
sell industrial equipment directly to customers] émom regional or local distributors. In additiolew competitors may enter our
markets. This may place us at a disadvantagesporaling to competitors’ pricing strategies, tedbgizal advances and other
initiatives, resulting in our inability to increaser revenues or maintain our gross margins irfuhee.

In most cases our products compete directly witisé¢hoffered by other manufacturers and distributtfrany of our competitors
were to develop products or services that are moseeffective or technically superior, demanddur product offerings could
decrease.

Our gross margins are also dependent on the npxoafucts we sell and could be adversely affected bgntinuation of our
customers’ shift to lower-priced products.

. Sales tax laws may be changed or interpreted @iffidy which could result in ecommerce and directl megailers having to
collect sales taxes in states where the currens ldevnot require us to do so. This could reduceated for our products in such
states and could result in us having substantialli@bilities for past sales

Our United States subsidiaries collect and renhétsstax in states in which the subsidiaries hawesighl presence or in which we
believe sufficient nexus exists which obligatesasollect sales tax. Other states may, from tiongme, claim that we have state-
related activities constituting physical nexusdquire such collection. Additionally, many oth&ates seek to impose sales tax
collection or reporting obligations on companieat thell goods to customers in their state, or tird¢o the state and its political
subdivisions, regardless of physical presence.h &fforts by states have increased recently, &ssst@ek to raise revenues
without increasing the income tax burden on red&léie rely on United States Supreme Court decsidrich hold that, without
Congressional authority, a state may not enforsales tax collection obligation on a company ttzst o physical presence in the
state and whose only contacts with the state aoaigih the use of interstate commerce such as tiimgnaf catalogs into the ste
and the delivery of goods by mail or common carridfe cannot predict whether the nature or levelaritacts we have with a
particular state will be deemed enough to requsréolcollect sales tax in that state nor can wadserred that Congress or
individual states will not approve legislation amtizing states to impose tax collection or repgtiiligations on all e-commerce
and/or direct mail transactions. A successful diegeby one or more states that we should collatds tax on the sale of
merchandise could result in substantial tax litibgirelated to past sales would result in conaleleradministrative burdens and
costs for us and may reduce demand for our prodikarts customers in such states when we charge messofor such taxes.

. Events such as acts of war or terrorism, naturabgters, changes in law, or large losses could esd¥ye affect our insuranc
coverage and insurance expense, resulting in aemsdvaffect on our profitability and financial catidn.

We insure for certain property and casualty riskssisting primarily of physical loss to propertysiness interruptions resulting
from property losses, worker's compensation, coimgnsive general liability, and auto liability. Umance coverage is obtained
for catastrophic property and casualty exposuresedisas those risks required to be insured bydawontract. Although we
believe that our insurance coverage is reasonsigieificant events such as acts of war and temgreconomic conditions,
judicial decisions, legislation, natural disastensl large losses could materially affect our insceaobligations and future
expense.




Table of Content

Risks Related to Our Company

. W e rely to a great extent on our information and teleenunications systems, and significant systenrésilar outages, or our
failure to properly evaluate, upgrade or replace aystems, or the failure of our security/safetyasuges to protect our systel
and websites, could have an adverse affect onenults of operation:

We rely on a variety of information and telecomnuartions systems in our operations. Our succedspisndent in large part on
the accuracy and proper use of our informationesgst including our telecommunications systemsméoage our growth, we
continually evaluate the adequacy of our existiygjems and procedures. We anticipate that wereglilarly need to make
capital expenditures to upgrade and modify our gameent information systems, including software badiware, as we grow
and the needs of our business change. The occerdgéra significant system failure, electrical @etommunications outages or
our failure to expand or successfully implement rsgstems could have a material adverse effect onesults of operations.

Our information systems networks, including our gsitds, and applications could be adversely affeloyedruses or worms and
may be vulnerable to malicious acts such as hacKiige availability and efficiency of sales via auebsites could also be
adversely affected by “denial of service” attackd ather unfair competitive practices. Althoughtake preventive measures,
these procedures may not be sufficient to avoidhttarour operations, which could have an adverseiedn our results of
operations.

. The establishment and integration of our new shamgice center in Hungary exposes us to variodisrielogy, regulatory and
economic risks

We have announced that we will be launching our sleared services center in Budapest, Hungary dtinemgecond quarter of
2013. The new facility will provide certain admitretive and back office services to our Europeasiri@ss and will help drive
operational efficiencies and better serve the Catyiggpan-European operating strategy. Our effortgperate our European
business in a more centralized manner, ratherdhaan individual country by country basis, will uge us to implement changes
in our business processes, eliminate redundamnelesate and/or hire new personnel, transitioniof@rmation management
systems, and integrate the new operation into xigtieg business seamlessly and without disruptioour operations, customers
and vendors. However, changes in economic, regylatopolitical conditions in Hungary, delays iruteching or integrating the
facility, a lower than expected impact of the faigibn the Company’s European operations, costscapial expenditures, the
ability to timely hire and train new employees inridary, and delays, impediments or other problesas@ated with its
establishment, could all have a material adverszebn our European operations and our resultpefations.

. We rely on third party suppliers for most of oup@ucts and services. The loss or interruption ekéhrelationships could impact
our sales volumes, the levels of inventory we arsy, and/or result in sales delays and/or higherentory costs from new
suppliers. Co-operative advertising and other safeentives provided by our suppliers could deseeia the future thereby
increasing our expenses and adversely affectingesults of operations and cash flo\

We purchase substantially all of our technologydpias from major distributors and directly fromgarmanufacturers who may
deliver those products directly to our customérlese relationships enable us to make availabdeit@ustomers a wide selection
of products without having to maintain large amsuwitinventory. The termination or interruptionaxfr relationships with any
these suppliers could materially adversely affectlusiness.

We purchase a number of our products from vendaiside of the United States. Difficulties encoueteby one or several of
these suppliers could halt or disrupt productiod delay completion or cause the cancellation ofavders. Delays or
interruptions in the transportation network cowddult in loss or delay of timely receipt of produequired to fulfill customer
orders. Our ability to find qualified vendors wheet our standards and supply products in a tieuedyefficient manner is a
significant challenge, especially with respect éods sourced from outside the U.S. Political wafficial instability, merchandise
quality issues, product safety concerns, tradeicdens, work stoppages, tariffs, foreign curremsghange rates, transportation
capacity and costs, inflation, civil unrest, outike of pandemics and other factors relating toidor&rade are beyond our
control. These and other issues affecting our eendould materially adversely affect our revenoe gross profit .

Many product suppliers provide us with co-operatideertising support in exchange for featuringrtpebducts in our catalogs
and on our internet sites. Certain suppliers mpi®vis with other incentives such as rebates, rawements, payment discounts,
price protection and other similar arrangementsest incentives are offset against cost of gooldsoscselling, general and
administrative expenses, as applicable. The lefveb-operative advertising support and other itiwes received from suppliers
may decline in the future, which could increase @nst of goods sold or selling, general and adrratise expenses and have an
adverse effect on results of operations and casvsfl
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. Goodwill and intangible assets may become impaiesdlting in a charge to earnings.

The acquisition of certain assets of CompUSA, GirCity and the purchase of the stock of WStoredparSA resulted in the
recording of significant intangible assets andfmodwill. We are required to test goodwill and irgdote assets annually to
determine if the carrying values of these asse&tsnapaired or on a more frequent basis if indicatdfrimpairment exist. If any of
our goodwill or intangible assets are determinedeampaired we may be required to record a sicgnifi charge to earnings in t
period during which the impairment is discoveréa the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company did rdame-time, non-cash
impairment charges of approximately $35.3 millietated to the intangible assets and goodwill of @d®A and Circuit City.

. Our substantial international operations are subjerrisks such as fluctuations in currency ratefich can adversely impact
foreign revenues and profits when translated toDd8ars), foreign regulatory requirements, politicancertainty and th
management of our growing international operati.

We operate internationally and as a result, wesabgect to risks associated with doing busineskally, such as risks related to
the differing legal, political and regulatory rerpments and economic conditions of many jurisdicdioRisks inherent to
operating internationally include:

. Changes in a country’s economic or politmahditions

. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates

. Difficulties with staffing and managing int@tional operations
. Unexpected changes in regulatory requirement

. Changes in transportation and shipping costs

. Enforcement of intellectual property rights

We conduct our business and incur costs in thd tgaency of most of the countries in which we igte. The financial
condition and results of operations of each for@garating subsidiary are reported in the relei@ral currency and then
translated to U.S. Dollars at the applicable cuoyegxchange rate for inclusion in our consoliddtedncial statements. Changes
in exchange rates between these foreign curreani@she U.S. Dollar will affect the recorded levelour assets, liabilities, net
sales, cost of goods sold and operating marginsauld result in exchange gains or losses. Thegsiraurrencies to which we
have exposure are the European Union Euro, Can&xiliar, British Pound Sterling, and the U.S. DallExchange rates betwe
these currencies and the U.S. Dollar in recentsykave fluctuated significantly and may do so mfiliture. Our operating results
and net income may be affected by any volatilitgimrency exchange rates and our ability to maedfgetively our currency
transaction and translation risks. For examplecweently have operations located in numerous e¢@smoutside the United
States, and non-U.S. sales (Europe and Canada)rdeddor approximately 37.8% of our revenue dufifd@2. To the extent the
U.S. dollar strengthens against foreign currenaasforeign revenues and profits will be reducdgewtranslated into U.S.
dollars.

. We are exposed to various inventory risks, sudhesizg unable to profitably resell excess or obsleventory and/or the loss of
product return rights and price protection from otendors; such events could lower our gross margimgsult in inventon
write-downs that would reduce reported future earnir

Our inventory is subject to risk due to technolagithange and changes in market demand for patipubducts. If we fail to
manage our inventory of older products we may hesoess or obsolete inventory. We may have limiigiats to return purchas
to certain suppliers and we may not be able toimiptace protection on these items. The eliminatié purchase return privileges
and lack of availability of price protection codtver our gross margin or result in inventory wiitewns.

We also take advantage of attractive product pgibiy making opportunistic bulk inventory purchasasy resulting excess and

obsolete inventory that we are not able to reesmild have an adverse impact on our results ofatipers. Any inability to make
such bulk inventory purchases may significantly acipour sales and profitability.
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. We depend on bank credit facilities to addresswarking capital and cash flow needs from time moeti and if we are unable to
renew or replace these facilities, or borrowing aajty were to be reduced our liquidity and capitasources may be adversely
affected

We require significant levels of capital in our mess to finance accounts receivable and inventd/g. maintain credit facilities
in the United States to finance increases in ouking capital if available cash is insufficienth& amount of credit available to
at any point in time may be adversely affectedhgydquality or value of the assets collateralizimgse credit lines. In addition, in
recent years global financial markets have expeedmiminished liquidity and lending constrain@®ur ability to obtain future
and/or increased financing to satisfy our requinet:i@s our business expands could be adversebtedfby economic and marl
conditions, credit availability and lender perceptdf our Company and industry . However, we ety have no reason to
believe that we will not be able to renew or replaar facilities when they reach maturity.

. If we fail to observe certain restrictions and co&ats under our credit facilities the lenders corgflse to waive such defat
terminate the credit facility and demand immedi&igayment, which would adversely affect our casitiom and materially
adversely affect our operatior

Our United States revolving credit agreement coistadbvenants restricting or limiting our ability ®imong other things:

. incur additional debt

. create or permit liens on assets

. make capital expenditures or investments
. pay dividends

If we fail to comply with the covenants and othequirements set forth in the credit agreement, weldvbe in default and would
need to negotiate a waiver agreement with the lsndeailure to agree on such a waiver could résuhe lenders terminating the
credit agreement and demanding repayment of arsfanding borrowings, which could adversely affaat cash position and
adversely affect the availability of financing ts, which could materially impact our operations.

. Our European employees are represented by uniomsdkers’ councils or are employed subject to Ideals that are less
favorable to employers than the laws of the |

As of December 31, 2012, we had approximately 5g8@floyees, 1,500 of which are located in Europk/Assia. We have
workers’ councils representing the employees offrance, Germany, and Netherlands operations,radd tinions representing
our employees in Italy and Sweden and elected graploepresentatives for our employees in the Uidiaddom and Spain.
Most of these European employees are employeduntdes in which employment laws provide greategbaing or other rights
to employees than the laws of the U.S. Such empdoymghts require us to work collaboratively witte legal representatives of
the employees to effect any changes to labor agraegts. For example, most of our employees in Euaop represented by
unions or workers’ councils that must approve éerthanges in conditions of employment, includiatages and benefits and
staff changes, and may impede efforts to restraaiur workforce. The establishment of our sharedses center in Hungary
regarding related reductions in force is subjedisgussion with and approval of certain of thekeos councils. We believe that
we have a generally good relationship with thesmcits and unions. We have entered into consuitgirocesses under local le
at our Germany, France, Netherlands and Italy iocatfor, among other things, restructuring ourrafiens and effecting
reductions in force in connection with implementmg shared services center in Hungary. Althouglbelgve that we have a
good working relationship with our employees, #&strwork stoppage or slowdown by our employeesigmificant dispute with
our employees could result in a significant disiepbf our operations or higher ongoing labor costs

. We operate retail stores in North America and westnadfectively manage our cost structure, sucmasritory needs, point of
sales systems, personnel and lease exp

We currently have 41 retail stores operating inthiédimerica at December 31, 2012. The Company niedffectively manage
its cost structure including the additional invegtoeeds, retail point of sales IT systems, rgtaisonnel and leased

facilities. Future growth in retail will also bependent on the ability to attract customers arild bwand loyalty. The retail
computer and consumer electronics business isyhggithpetitive and has narrow gross margins. Ifaileo manage our growth
and cost structure while maintaining high levels@fvice and meeting competitive pressures addguate business plan may
not be achieved and may lead to reduced profitabili
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. The failure to timely and satisfactorily processnufacturers’and our own rebate programs could negatively impactcustome
satisfaction level.

Similar to other companies in the technology prasliedustry, we advertise manufacturers’ mail-inates on many products we
sell and, in some cases, offer our own rebategsd hebates are processed through third party veadd in house. If these
rebates are not processed in a timely and satisfagtanner by either third party vendors or ouhduise operations, our
reputation in the marketplace could be negativelgacted.

. We may be unable to reduce prices in reaction topetitive pressures, or implement cost reductionsea product line
expansion to address gross profit and operatinggimapressures; failure to mitigate these presswmdd adversely affect our
operating results and financial conditic.

The computer and consumer electronics industrjgisiyprice competitive and gross profit margine aarrow and variable. The
Companys ability to further reduce prices in reaction ¢onpetitive pressure is limited. Additionally, gsosiargins and operatil
margins are affected by changes in factors sueedor pricing, vendor rebate and/or price protectrograms, product return
rights, and product mix. In 2012 pricing presstoatinued to be prevalent in the markets we semdewge expect this to
continue. We may not be able to mitigate thesamgipressures and resultant declines in salegi@ss profit margin with cost
reductions in other areas or expansion into newymrblines. If we are unable to proportionatelyigaite these conditions our
operating results and financial condition may suffe

. We would be exposed to liability, including substriines and penalties and, in extreme cases, tdour ability to accept crec
cards, in the event our privacy and data securdligies and procedures are inadequate to prevectisty breaches of our
consumer personal information and credit card infi@tion records

In processing our sales orders we often collecdqreal information and credit card information froor customers. The
Company has privacy and data security policiedangwhich are designed to prevent security bregdimvever, if a third party
or a rogue employee or employees are able to bypassetwork security, “hack into” our systems tr@ywise compromise our
customers’ personal information or credit card iinfation, we could be subject to liability. Thiability may include claims for
identity theft, unauthorized purchases and claillegig misrepresentation of our privacy and da&teusity practices or other
related claims. While the Company believes it comis to appropriate Payment Card Industry (“PCdQugity standards for its
various businesses, any breach involving the lbsseadlit card information may lead to PCI relatetk$ in the millions of
dollars. In the event of a severe breach, credid providers may prevent our accepting of creaiitls. Any such liability related
to the aforementioned risks could lead to redugetitpbility and damage our brand(s) and/or repatat

. Failure to protect the integrity, security and usfeour customer information could expose us to litigation and méathy damage
our standing with our customel

The use of individually identifiable consumer detaegulated at the state, federal and internaltiewals and we incur costs
associated with information security — such asdased investment in technology and the costs optiante with consumer
protection laws. Additionally, our internet opéoats and website sales depends upon the secusentission of confidential
information over public networks, including the wfecashless payments. While we have taken sggmifisteps to protect
customer and confidential information, there camb&ssurance that advances in computer capadiliteav discoveries in the
field of cryptography, the efforts of “hackers” aagber criminals or other developments will prevérg compromise of our
customer transaction processing capabilities andwstomers’ personal data. If any such compromifisair security were to
occur, it could have a material adverse effectwnreputation, operating results and financial ¢toma and could subject us to
litigation.

. Sales to individual customers expose us to credid fraud, which impacts our operations. If wd faiadequately protect
ourselves from credit card fraud, our operationsiicobe adversely impacte

Failure to adequately control fraudulent credidd@ansactions could increase our expenses. lsetdesales to individual
consumers, which are more likely to be paid fongs credit card, increases our exposure to frald.employ technology
solutions to help us detect the fraudulent useedit card information. However, if we are unataaletect or control credit card
fraud, we may suffer losses as a result of ordexsep with fraudulent credit card data, which coadlersely affect our business.
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. Our business is dependent on certain key personnel.

Our business depends largely on the efforts arii@biof certain key senior management. The @dgbe services of one or mc
of such key personnel could have a material adwafeet on our business and financial results. d&enaintain key man
insurance policies on one of our executive officeewvrence P. Reinhold.

. We are subject to litigation risk due to the natofeur business, which may have a material adveffeet on our results of
operations and busines

From time to time, we are involved in lawsuits ¢ner legal proceedings arising in the ordinary sewf our business. These may
relate to, for example, patent, trademark or othtetlectual property matters, employment law matfgroduct liability,

commercial disputes, consumer sales practicegher matters. In addition, as a public company add from time to time face
claims relating to corporate or securities law avatt The defense and/or outcome of such lawsujtsozceedings could have a
material adverse affect on our business. See “Llegaieedings”.

. Our profitability can be adversely affected by cgas in our income tax exposure due to changeirates or laws, changes in
our effective tax rate due to changes in the mixaohings among different countries, restrictiomsutilization of tax benefits and
changes in valuation of our deferred tax assets|eailities.

Changes in our income tax expense due to chandbe mix of U.S. and non-U.S. revenues and prdfitpbchanges in tax rates
or exposure to additional income tax liabilitiesittbaffect our profitability. We are subject tawome taxes in the United States
and various foreign jurisdictions. Our effectie rate could be adversely affected by changdseimtix of earnings in countries
with differing statutory tax rates, restrictions atilization of tax benefits, changes in the valabf deferred tax assets and
liabilities, changes in tax laws or by material dadsessments. The carrying value of our defameéssets, which are primarily
in the United States and the United Kingdom, isethelent on our ability to generate future taxabt®ime in those

jurisdictions. In addition, the amount of incoragés we pay is subject to audit in our varioussflidgtions and a material
assessment by a tax authority could affect ouritaitmfity.

. Changes in accounting standards or practices, dsagenew accounting pronouncements or interpretagj may require us to
account for and report our financial results in gferent manner in the future, which may be les®fable than the manner used
historically.

A change in accounting standards or practices asa h significant effect on our reported resultegérations. New accounting
pronouncements and interpretations of existing atiog rules and practices have occurred and meyrao the future. Changes
to existing rules may adversely affect our repofteancial results.

. Concentration of Ownership and Control Limits Stamlklers Ability to Influence Corporate Actions

Richard Leeds, Robert Leeds, and Bruce Leeds @aaiector and executive officer of the Companggether with trusts for the
benefit of certain members of their respective feemiand other entities controlled by them, conimaxcess of 70% of the voting
power of our outstanding common stock. Due to sailings, the Leeds brothers together with thasstdrand entities are able
determine the outcome of virtually all matters sitted to stockholders for approval, including thecgion of directors, the
appointment of management, amendment of our astafiéncorporation, significant corporate transaasi (such as a merger or
other sale of our company or our assets), the paigyd dividends on our common stock and the emgarito of extraordinary
transactions. Further, as a "controlled compamgeu NYSE rules, the Company has elected to optocertain New York
Stock Exchange listing standards that, among dttiegs, require listed companies to have a majafitypydependent directors on
their board; the Company does however currenthelavindependent Audit, Compensation CommitteeGorgdorate
Governance and Nominating Committees.

. Risk of Thin Trading and Volatility of our Commaon& Could Impact Stockholder Val

Our common stock is currently listed on the NYSH anthinly traded. Volatility of thinly traded stks is typically higher than
the volatility of more liquid stocks with highelatting volumes. The trading of relatively small qitees of shares of common
stock by our stockholders may disproportionatefijugnce the price of those shares in either dioactlhis may result in volatilit
in our stock price and could exacerbate the otbitiity-inducing factors described below. The ketrprice of our common
stock could be subject to significant fluctuati@ssa result of being thinly traded.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2. Properties.

We operate our business from numerous facilitiddarth America, Europe and Asia. These facilittedude our headquarters location,
administrative offices, telephone call centerstritigtion centers, computer assembly and retaiksto Certain facilities handle multiple
functions. Most of our facilities are leased; aartare owned by the Company.

North America

As of December 31, 2012 we have six distributiontees in North America which aggregate approxinyae0 million square feet, all of which
are leased. Our headquarters, administrativeesffand call centers aggregate approximately 38&08re feet, all of which are leased. Our
computer assembly facility is approximately 300,800are feet and is owned by the Company and isrily available for sale.

The following table summarizes the geographic locadf our North America stores at the end of 2012:

Store Openingsi

Location Stores Open-12/31/11 (Store Closings) Stores Open—12/31/12
Delaware 2 2
Florida 18 (1) 17
Georgia 1 1
lllinois 5 5
North Caroline 2 2
Puerto Ricc 1 1 2
Texas 7 (1) 6
Ontario, Canada 6 6

42 Q) 41
All of our retail stores are leased. The retales average 22,506 square feet.
Europe

As of December 31, 2012, we have five distributitenters in Europe which aggregate approximately@@®square feet. Four of these,
aggregating approximately 191,000 square feetieaised; one distribution center of approximately0@3 square feet is owned by the
Company. Our administrative offices and call centggregate approximately 330,000 square feethah 252,000 square feet are leased an
77,000 square feet are owned by the Company.

Asia
As of December 31, 2012, we leased administratifrees in Asia of approximately 58,000 square feet.

Please refer to Note 11 to the Consolidated FimduStatements for additional information about éghproperties, including aggregate rental
expense for these properties.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved hioua lawsuits, claims, investigations and procegslincluding commercial, employment,
consumer, personal injury and health and safetyntatiers, which are being handled and defenddukimtdinary course of business. In
addition, the Company is subject to various assesticlaims, proceedings and requests for indecatiéin concerning intellectual property,
including patent infringement suits involving tedtogies that are incorporated in a broad spectrijpraglucts the Company sells. The
Company is also audited by (or has initiated vaundisclosure agreements with) numerous goverrahagencies in various countries,
including U.S. Federal and state authorities, coring potential income tax, sales tax and unclaipegerty liabilities. These matters are in
various stages of investigation, negotiation antitigation, and are being vigorously defended.this regard, the Company is being audited b
the state of Texas regarding its claim that cempdithe company’s consumer electronics e-commeatzs @re subject to sales tax in Texas; the
Company is defending this matter, believes it biamg defenses, and has established reservessanétter. Results for year ended Decembe
31, 2012 were positively impacted by approxima#iyé million of which $2.6 million related to thavforable resolution of contingent
liabilities which were recorded in the second geraof 2012 and $5.0 million related to an insurarem®very relating to action taken by a
former officer and director, and negatively impachy $1.8 million of patent claim settlements witbn-practicing entities which were
recorded in the third and fourth quarter of 2012.
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Although the Company does not expect, based oeetlyravailable information, that the outcome iy afithese matters, individually or
collectively, will have a material adverse effentits financial condition or results of operatioti® ultimate outcome is inherently
unpredictable. Therefore, judgments could be rerdier settlements entered, that could adversedgitifie Company’s operating results or
cash flows in a particular period. The Companytiraly assesses all of its litigation and threatkliteggation as to the probability of ultimately
incurring a liability, and records its best estimaf the ultimate loss in situations where it asssshe likelihood of loss as probable and
estimable.

Audit Committee Investigation and Gilbert Fiorewfi®m Resignation and Settlement .

In January and February 2011 the Company receivedyanous whistleblower allegations concerning thenanys Miami Florida operatior
involving the actions of Mr. Gilbert Fiorentino,eh the Chief Executive of the Company’s TechnolBgyducts Group. In response to the
allegations, the Company commenced an internakiigagion of the whistleblower allegations, whichsaconducted by the Company’s Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors with the assise of independent counsel.

On April 18, 2011, following the independent inugation, the Company delivered a Cause Notice tomirentino pursuant to the terms of
his Employment Agreement dated October 12, 2004.C#wuse Notice advised Mr. Fiorentino that the Camgpntended to terminate him for
“Cause” (as defined in the Employment Agreemeny ateeting of its Executive Committee scheduledMfay 3, 2011, at which meeting Mr.
Fiorentino and his counsel could appear, and thaFdrentino was being placed on administratiaé&epending the outcome of that meeting.
In the Cause Notice, the Company advised Mr. Fiorerthat the Audit Committee investigation hadritiied grounds to terminate him for
Cause under his Employment Agreement, and set floetfollowing findings by the Audit Committee cditsting such grounds:

i) Mr. Fiorentino personally removed or caused ¢orémoved from the ComparsyMiami premises product inventory, and/or kej
caused others to receive at his direction such vech@roduct inventory, without payment to the Compand for his own persor
gain;

i) Mr. Fiorentino caused substantial amounts ofrfpany inventory purchases to be effected throughg@my credit cards in order
accrue and/or use “reward points” for his persdmalefit and which he improperly converted to hisiawge;

iii) Mr. Fiorentino caused his mother to be ideietif as an employee of the Company in positionsMaich she had no bona fide
responsibility or function, and caused the Compamypay her a salary and employee benefits, inctudintendedCOBRA
reimbursements; and

iv) Mr. Fiorentino engaged in fraudulent “kicklB&arrangements with certain of the Companyendors, to the detriment of
Company

The Company stated in the Cause Notice that tregfiding activities were in violation of Company eglithe Company’s Corporate Ethics
Policy, his fiduciary duties and applicable laweTAudit Committee’s independent investigation deiaed that the matters described above
did not have any material impact on our previousfyorted financial results and were limited to @@mmpany’s Miami operations.

On May 9, 2011, following several meetings of the&utive Committee and after extensive discussiattsMr. Fiorentino and his counsel,
the Company announced that it had accepted thgnagn of Mr. Fiorentino, and that it had executedagreement with Mr. Fiorentino,
effective May 6, 2011, under which Mr. Fiorentingrendered certain assets to the Company valuagpaoximately $11 million at May 9,
2011: these assets included the surrender of DABGhares of Systemax common stock and $480,08sm The shares surrendered
consisted of 580,001 shares of fully vested unésedcstock options, 2) 100,000 shares of fully egsestricted stock awards and 3) 450,000
shares directly owned by Mr. Fiorentino. The shatgsendered were valued at fair value on May 6,120 the case of the stock options and
restricted stock awards and at fair value on May2D21 in the case of the owned shares. The agreéeats® required Mr. Fiorentino to
disclose his and his immediate family’s personakts forfeit undisclosed assets discovered by tmapany; disclose information regarding
certain matters that led to his being notifiedref Company’s intent to terminate him; and to fulbpperate with the Company in the future.
Mr. Fiorentino and the Company also exchanged nhigerzeral releases and nondisparagement commitpaamasMr. Fiorentino agreed to a 5
year noncompetition obligation. The $11 milliontlhent value included a financial statement bénefihe Company related to the surrer
of shares and cash payment of approximately $8l{bmivhich was recorded in the second quarter@ff22under special (gains) charges, ni
related legal and professional fees of approxirgai&l3 million for the quarter ended June 30, 28dd $1.8 million for the first six months of
2011. The remainder of the settlement value, apprately $2.6 million, was the intrinsic value o&tfully vested unexercised stock options or
the date of the settlement agreement for whichetieeno financial statement impact. The amounhefsettiement with Mr. Fiorentino was
based on negotiation with him, and was not baseahgrspecific level or nature of damages incurngthie Company, and does not constitute
restitution.

On June 21, 2011 Systemax Inc. received noticethieaBecurities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)iliéiated a formal investigation into
the matters discovered by the Audit Committee’srimal investigation. The Company fully cooperatéthwhe SEC in its formal investigation
and in February 2013 the SEC advised the Compaatytthad concluded its investigation and would m®trecommending that any action be
taken against the Company.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable
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PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Rity Securities

Systemax common stock is traded on the NYSE Eutdheshange under the symbol “SYX.” The followirapte sets forth the high and low
closing sales price of our common stock as repartethe New York Stock Exchange for the periodscated.

High Low

2012

First Quartel $ 20571 $ 16.3¢
Second Quarte 17.71 11.41
Third Quartel 12.8( 10.6(
Fourth Quarte 12.3¢ 9.1¢€
2011

First Quartel $ 14.80C $ 12.2¢
Second Quarte 15.1¢ 12.3i
Third Quartel 17.01 11.9(
Fourth Quarte 16.97 11.6¢

On December 29, 2012, the last reported sale pfioer common stock on the New York Stock Exchawge $9.30 per share. As of
December 29, 2012, we had 186 shareholders ofdecor

On November 29, 2012, the Company’s Board of Dinectieclared a special dividend of $0.25 per shayable on December 21, 2012 to
shareholders of record on December 12, 2012. Sgsial dividend is the fourth dividend we havednce our initial public offering.

Depending in part upon profitability, the strengftour balance sheet, our cash position and the tteestain cash for the development and
expansion of our business, we may decide to desfaeeial dividends in the future, subject to avaligy limitations under our credit
facilities. See “Management’s Discussion and Asialpf Financial Condition and Results of Operatierinancial Condition, Liquidity and
Capital Resources” and Note 4 of Notes to Constl&inancial Statements.

Information regarding securities authorized fouasce under equity compensation plans and a pesfarengraph relating to the Company’s

common stock is set forth in the Company’s Proxat&hent relating to the 2013 Annual Meeting of Shalders and is incorporated by
reference herein.
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial information is djiad by reference to, and should be read in coaiion with, the Company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements and the notes thereto, andhdlglement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financialdtion and Results of Operations”
contained elsewhere in this report. The seledetéraent of operations data, excluding discontimsetations, for fiscal years 2012, 2011 anc
2010 and the selected balance sheet data as offibec2012 and 2011 are derived from the auditedal@ated financial statements which
included elsewhere in this report. The selectddro® sheet data as of December 2010, 2009 anda2@Dthe selected statement of operation
data for fiscal years 2009 and 2008 are deriveuh fitte audited consolidated financial statementh@Company which are not included in 1
report.

Years Ended December 31
(In millions, except per share data)

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Statement of Operations Date:

Net sales $ 3,544.¢ $ 3,680.t $ 3,589.. % 3,163.C $ 3,031.:
Gross profit $ 488.1 % 530t $ 489.t % 453.. % 456.:
Operating (loss) income from continuing operati $ (39.9 $ 80.6 $ 68.6 $ 80.1 $ 101.¢€
Net income from continuing operatio $ 8.0) $ 546 $ 42€ % 492 % 77.2
Per Share Amounts:

Net income (loss— diluted $ 0.22) $ 147 % 1.1z % 13z % 2.0t
Weighted average common sha— diluted 36.¢ 37.1 37.€ 37.8 37.1
Cash dividends declared per common sl $ 028 3 - % - % 0.7t 3 1.0¢
Balance Sheet Dat:

Working capital $ 360.t $ 354.¢ % 300.¢ % 250.1 % 253.]
Total asset $ 962.2 $ 889.7 $ 894.1 $ 816.¢ $ 702.t
Long-term debt, excluding current porti $ 52 $ 71 % 74 % 12 $ 14
Shareholde’ equity $ 446.5 % 454 % 409.. % 364.7 $ 334.(

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations.
Overview

Systemax is primarily a direct marketer of brantheaand private label products. Our operations egarozed in two reportable business
segments — Technology Products and Industrial Raitsdu

Our Technology Products segment sells computerspater supplies and consumer electronics whichmeamdeted in North America, Puerto
Rico and Europe. Most of these products are matwizat by other companies; however, we do offellectien of products that are
manufactured for us to our own design and marketed private label basis. Technology products aetsal for 89%, 91% and 93% of our net
sales in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The Company conducted an evaluation of its TeclgyoRroducts multbrand United States consumer strategy and thegitti@nassets used
that strategy and concluded that the Compaifyture North American consumer business wouldgiagnized by consolidating its United Ste
consumer operations under TigerDirect, its leadind largest brand. This consolidation was effetéde fourth quarter of 2012 resulting i
write off of the intangible assets and goodwillGEmpUSA and Circuit City of approximately $35.3 lioih.

The Company exited the PC manufacturing operatiomgsg the fourth quarter of 2012 after conductamgevaluation of its operations and
concluded that the Company’s North American tecbgplresults will be enhanced by exiting the compatanufacturing business. The exit
resulted in a fourth quarter of 2012 asset writeof the carrying cost of the Company’s computanafacturing facilities, related equipment
and inventory of approximately $4.6 million.

The Company is opening a shared services cenBudapest, Hungary in 2013 to facilitate the corgohigrowth of its European Technology
Products business. This new facility will provicertain administrative and back office servicestlier existing European business, will help
drive operational efficiencies and better serveGbenpany’s pan-European operating strategy, aridsanve as the sales location for future
business in Eastern Europe. Exit, severance artdugt@osts to implement the facility together watther cost reduction initiatives in Europe,
aggregated to $4.7 million in the fourth quarteR61.2.

Our Industrial Products segment sells a wide anfagdustrial products and supplies which are mittén North America. Most of these
products are manufactured by other companies. Soatkicts are manufactured for us to our own deaighmarketed under the trademarks
Global™ , Globallndustrial.com™andNexel™.Industrial products accounted for 11%, 9% amiél of our net sales in 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. In both of these product groups, fier@ur customers a broad selection of productsnpt order fulfillment and extensive
customer service.
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We exited the Software Solutions segment in Juld®2@ne customer remained being serviced by tmepaay until the second quarter of
2012 The termination of this customer has resutieadl current and prior period results have fustbusiness segment to be classified as

discontinued operations. See Note 12 to the Catetetl Financial Statements included in Item 15 of thisntkd0-K for additional financial
information about our business segments as wéfifagmation about our geographic operations.

The market for computer products and consumerrelgics is subject to intense price competition sncharacterized by narrow gross profit
margins. The North American industrial products keais highly fragmented and we compete againstipteldistribution channels.
Distribution is working capital intensive, requigius to incur significant costs associated withwlaeehousing of many products, including the
costs of maintaining inventory, leasing warehoyss, inventory management systems, and emplogrsppnel to perform the associated
tasks. We supplement our on-hand product avaitglnyi maintaining relationships with major distribts and manufacturers, utilizing a
combination of stock and drop-shipment fulfillment.

The primary component of our operating expensdsiiiglly has been employee-related costs, whicludes items such as wages,
commissions, bonuses, employee benefits and sfmaknoexpenses. We continually assess our opestiansure that they are efficient,
aligned with market conditions and responsive tst@mer needs.

In the discussion of our results of operations eferrto business to business sales, consumer dreatee and period to period constant
currency comparisons. Business to business saesabrs made direct to other businesses throughgedrbusiness relationships, outbound
call centers and extranets. Sales in the Indufriadiucts segment and Corporate and other aredawadito be business to business sales.
Consumer channel sales are sales from retail sttmasumer websites, inbound call centers andisievshopping channels. Constant
currency refers to the adjustment of the resulsusfforeign operations to exclude the effectsarfqa to period fluctuations in currency

exchange rates.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our significant accounting policies are describetllote 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statememtsided in Item 15 of this Form 10-K.
Certain accounting policies require the applicatbsignificant judgment by management in selecthrggappropriate assumptions for
calculating financial estimates. By their naturese judgments are subject to an inherent degreeceftainty, and as a result, actual results
could differ materially from those estimates. Theslyments are based on historical experiemd®servation of trends in the industry,
information provided by customers and informatieaitable from other outside sources, as appropridenagement believes that full
consideration has been given to all relevant citamces that we may be subject to, and the comasetidinancial statements of the Company
accurately reflect management’s best estimateeo€timsolidated results of operations, financialtmosand cash flows of the Company for the
years presented. We identify below a number ofcpesdithat entail significant judgments or estimaties assumptions and or judgments use
determine those estimates and the potential effecteported financial results if actual resulféedimaterially from these estimates.

Accounting policy

Assumptions and uncertainties

Quantification and analysis of effect on actual
results if estimates differ material

Revenue RecognitioWe recognize produ:
sales when persuasive evidence of an or
arrangement exists, delivery has occurre
the sales price is fixed or determinable ai
collectibility is reasonably assured.
Generally, these criteria are met at the tir
of receipt by customers when title and ris
of loss both are transferred, except in oul
Industrial Products segment where title a
risk pass at time of shipment. Sales are
presented net of returns and allowances,
rebates and sales incentives. Reserves-
estimated returns and allowances are
provided when sales are recorded, basec
historical experience and current trends.

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun
Receivable. We record an allowance for
doubtful accounts to reflect our estimate
the collectibility of our trade accounts
receivable. While bad debt allowances h:
been within expectations and the provisic
established, there can be no guarantee tl
we will continue to experience the same
allowance rate we have in the past.

Our revenue recoghnition policy contains
assumptions and judgments made by
management related to the timing and
amounts of future sales returns. Sales re
are estimated based upon historical
experience and current known trends.

Our allowance for doubtful accounts polic
contains assumptions and judgments ma
by management related to collectibility of
aged accounts receivable and chargebac
from credit card sales. We evaluate the
collectibility of accounts receivable basec
a combination of factors, including an
analysis of the age of customer accounts
our historical experience with accounts
receivable write-offs. The analysis also
includes the financial condition of a speci
customer or industry, and general econol
conditions. In circumstances where we &
aware of customer credit card charge-ba

We have not made any material changes to our
sales return reserve policy in the past three yea
and we do not anticipate making any material
changes to this policy in the future. However if
our estimates are materially different than our
actual experience we could have a material gair
or loss adjustment.

We have not made any material changes to our
allowance for doubtful accounts receivable
reserve policy in the past three years and we dc
not anticipate making any material changes to
this policy in the future. However if our
estimates are materially different than our actua
experience we could have a material gain or los
adjustment.

A change of 10% in our allowance for doubtful
accounts reserve at December 31, 2012 would
impact net income by approximately $0.6
million.



or a specific customer’s inability to meet |
financial obligations, a specific reserve fc
bad debts applicable to amounts due to
reduce the net recognized receivable to t
amount management reasonably believe
will be collected is recorded. In those
situations with ongoing discussions, the
amount of bad debt recognized is based
the status of the discussiol
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Accounting policy

Assumptions and uncertainties

Quantification and analysis of effect on actual
results if estimates differ material

Inventory valuatior. We value our
inventories at the lower of cost or market
cost being determined on the first-in, first
out method except in Europe and retail
locations where an average cost is used.
Excess and obsolete or unmarketable
merchandise are written down based on
historical experience, assumptions about
future product demand and market
conditions. If market conditions are less
favorable than projected or if technologic
developments result in accelerated
obsolescence, additional write-downs me
be required. While obsolescence and
resultant markdowns have been within
expectations, there can be no guarantee
we will continue to experience the same
level of markdowns we have in the past.

Goodwill and Intangible Asseté/e apply
the provisions of relevant accounting
guidance in our valuation of goodwill,
trademarks, domain names, client lists ar
other intangible assets. Relevant accoun
guidance requires that goodwill and
indefinite lived intangibles be reviewed af
least annually for impairment or more
frequently if indicators of impairment exis
The amount of an impairment loss would
recognized as the excess of the asset’s
carrying value over its fair value.

Our inventory reserve policy contains
assumptions and judgments made by
management related to inventory aging,
obsolescence, credits that we may obtair
returned merchandise, shrink and consut
demand.

Our impairment testing involves judgmen
and uncertainties, quantitative and
qualitative, related to the use of discount:
cash flow models and forecasts of future
results, both of which involve significant
judgment and may not be reliab
Significant management judgment is
necessary to evaluate the operating
environment and economic conditions thi
exist to develop a forecast for a reporting
unit. Assumptions related to the discount
cash flow models we use include the inpt
used to determine the Company’s weight
average cost of capital including a marke
risk premium, the beta of a reporting unit
reporting unit specific risk premiums and
terminal growth values. Critical
assumptions related to the forecast input
used in our discounted cash flow models
include projected sales growth, same sto
sales growth, gross margin percentages,
business opportunities, working capital
requirements, capital expenditures and
growth in selling, general and administral
expense. We also use our company's me
capitalization and comparable company
market data to validate our reporting unit
valuations.
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We have not made any material changes to our
inventory reserve policy in the past three years
and we do not anticipate making any material
changes to this policy in the future. However if
our estimates are materially different than our
actual experience we could have a material loss
adjustment.

A change of 10% in our inventory reserves at
December 31, 2012 would impact net income b
approximately $1.0 million.

We have not made any material changes to our
goodwill policy in the past three years and we
not anticipate making any material changes to
this policy in the future.

We recorded goodwill and intangible impairn
charges in 2012 (see below) and have
approximately $11.1 million in goodwill and
intangible assets at December 31, 2012.We do
not believe it is reasonably likely that the
estimates or assumptions used to determine
whether any of our remaining goodwill or
intangible assets are impaired will change
materially in the future. However if the inputs
used in our discounted cash flow models or our
forecasts are materially different than actual
experience we could incur impairment charges
that are material.

The Company conducted an evaluation of its
Technology Products multi-brand United States
consumer strategy and the intangible assets usi
in that strategy and concluded that the
Company’s future North American consumer
business would be optimized by consolidatin
United States consumer operations under
TigerDirect, its leading and largest brand. As a
result an impairment charge of approximately
$35.3 million related to the trademarks, domain
names and goodwill of CompUSA and Circuit
City was taken in the fourth quarter of 2012.
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Accounting policy

Assumptions and uncertainties

Quantification and analysis of effect on actual
results if estimates differ material

Long-lived AssetdManagement exercises
judgment in evaluating our lo-lived asset:
for impairment and in their depreciation a
amortization methods and lives. We belie
we will generate sufficient undiscounted
cash flow to more than recover the
investments made in property, plant and
equipment.

Vendor AccrualsOur contractual
agreements with certain suppliers providi
with funding or allowances for costs such
price protection, markdowns and advertis
as well funds or allowances for purchasir
volumes.

Generally, allowances received as a
reimbursement of identifiable costs are
recorded as an expense reduction when
cost is incurred. Sales related allowance:
generally determined by our level of
purchases of product and are deferred at
recorded as a reduction of inventory
carrying value and are ultimately include«
a reduction of cost of goods when invent:
is sold.

The impairment analysis for long lived
assets requires management to make
judgments about useful lives and to estin
fair values of long lived assets. It may als
require us to estimate future cash flows ¢
related assets using discounted cash flov
model Our estimates of future cash flows
involve assumptions concerning future
operating performance and economic
conditions. While we believe that our
estimates of future cash flows are
reasonable, different assumptions regard
such cash flows could materially affect ot
evaluations.

Management makes assumptions and
exercises judgment in estimating period ¢
funding and allowances earned under ou
various agreements. Estimates are devel
based on the terms of our vendor agreen
and using existing expenditures for whict
funding is available, determining product:
whose market price would indicate cover
for markdown or price protection is
available and estimating the level of our
performance under agreements that prov
funds or allowances for purchasing volun
Estimates of funding or allowances for
purchasing volume will include projection
of annual purchases which are develope!
using current actual purchase data and
historical purchase trends. Accruals in
interim periods could be materially differe
if actual purchase volumes differ from
projections.
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We have not made any material changes to our
long lived assets policy in the past three years
and we do not anticipate making any material
changes to this policy in the future.

We do not believe it is reasonably likely that the
estimates and assumptions used to determine
long lived asset impairment will vary materially
in the future. However if our estimates are
materially different than our actual experience
we could have a material gain or loss adjustmel

A change of 10% in the carrying value of our
long lived assets would impact net income by
approximately $6.3 million.

We have not made any material changes to our
vendor accrual policy in the past three years no
do we anticipate making any material changes t
this policy in the future.

If actual results are different from the project
used we could have a material gain or loss
adjustment.

A change of 10% in our vendor accruals at
December 31, 2012 would impact net income b
approximately $1.6 million.
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Accounting policy

Assumptions and uncertainties

Quantification and analysis of effect on actual
results if estimates differ material

Income TaxedNe are subject to taxation
from federal, state and foreign jurisdictior
and the determination of our tax provisiot
complex and requires significant
management judgment. We conduct
operations in numerous U.S. states and
foreign locations. Our effective tax rate
depends upon the geographic distributior
our pre-tax income or losses among
locations with varying tax rates and rules
As the geographic mix of our pre-tax rest
among various tax jurisdictions changes,
effective tax rate may vary from period to
period. We are also subject to periodic
examination from domestic and foreign te
authorities regarding the amount of taxes
due. These examinations include questio
regarding the timing and amount of
deductions and the allocation of income
among various tax jurisdictions. We
establish as needed, and periodically
reevaluate, an estimated income tax rese
on our consolidated balance sheet to pro
for the possibility of adverse outcomes in
income tax proceedings. While managen
believes that we have identified all
reasonably identifiable exposures and
whether or not a reserve is appropriate, i
possible that additional exposures exist
and/or that exposures may be settled at
amounts different than the amounts
reserved.

Reorganization and other charge\We
have recorded reorganization, restructuri
and other charges in the past and could i
the future commence further reorganizati
restructuring and other activities which
result in recognition in charges to income

The determination of deferred tax assets
liabilities and any valuation allowances tr
might be necessary requires managemel
make significant judgments concerning tt
ability to realize net deferred tax assets. -
realization of net deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future
taxable income. In estimating future taxal
income there are judgments and
uncertainties related to the development
forecasts of future results that may not b
reliable. Significant management judgme
is also necessary to evaluate the operatit
environment and economic conditions th:i
exist to develop a forecast for a reporting
unit. Where management has determinec
that it is more likely than not that some
portion or the entire deferred tax asset wi
not be realized, we have provided a
valuation allowance. If the realization of
those deferred tax assets in the future is
considered more likely than not, an
adjustment to the deferred tax assets wo
increase net income in the period such
determination is made.

The recording of reorganization,
restructuring and other charges may
involve assumptions and judgments abo
future costs and timing for amounts rela
to personnel terminations, stay bonuses,
lease termination costs, lease sublet
revenues, outplacement services, contra
termination costs, asset impairments and
other exit costs. Management may estim
these costs using existing contractual an
other data or may rely on third party expe
data.

22

We have not made any material changes to our
income tax policy in the past three years and w
do not anticipate making any material change
this policy in the future.

We do not believe it is reasonably likely that the
estimates or assumptions used to determine ou
deferred tax assets and liabilities and related
valuation allowances will change materially in
the future. However if our estimates are
materially different than our actual experience
we could have a material gain or loss adjustn

In 2012 we reversed approximately $15.1
million in valuation allowances against the
deferred tax assets of our French subsidiary as
result of the subsidiary no longer being in a
cumulative loss position.

A change of 5% in our effective tax rate at
December 31, 2012 would impact net income b
approximately $2.1 million.

When we incur a liability related to these
actions, we estimate and record all appropriate
expenses. We do not believe it is reasonably
likely that the estimates or assumptions used to
determine our reorganization, restructuring and
other charges will change materially in the
future. However if our estimates are materially
different than our actual experience we could
have a material gain or loss adjustment.

For the year ended December 31, 2012 the
Company recorded reorganization and other
charges of approximately $46.3 million for
reorganization, restructuring and asset
impairment and other charge
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Recently Adopted and Newly Issued Accounting Pronsicements

Public companies in the United States are subjeittd accounting and reporting requirements ofowsriauthorities, including the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) and the Se@siand Exchange Commission (“SEC”). These aufkernssue numerous
pronouncements, most of which are not applicabteécdCompany’s current or reasonably foreseealdeabipg structure. Below are the new
authoritative pronouncements that management lesliaxe relevant to the Company’s current operations

In July 2012, the FASB issued an update relatethtmal impairment testing for indefinite-lived intable assets which provides companies
with the option to perform a qualitative impairmassessment for their indefinite-lived intangibdsets that may allow them to skip the annus
fair value calculation. The qualitative assessnierimilar to the screen companies can use tardete whether they must perform the two-
step goodwill impairment test. Companies must ifgand evaluate changes in economic, industry@mdpany-specific events and
circumstances that could affect the significantispused in determining the fair value of thesetassThis ASU is effective for annual and
interim impairment tests performed for fiscal yeleginning after September 15, 2012.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011@&mprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentationah@rehensive IncomeASU 2011-05
eliminates the option to report other comprehengigeme and its components in the statement ofgdmin shareholders’ equity and requires
that all items of net income, items of other conmgresive income and total comprehensive income ésepted in either a single continuous
statement of comprehensive income or in two sepdmatt consecutive statements. The Company addped$U in the first quarter of 2012.
The adoption of this ASU did not have a materigbatt on the Company’s consolidated financial statem

Highlights from 2012

The discussion of our results of operations anariafal condition that follows will provide informian that will assist in understanding our
financial statements and information about howaieraccounting principles and estimates affecttivesolidated financial statements. This
discussion should be read in conjunction with thiesolidated financial statements included herein.

« Sales declined 3.7%, 1.9% on a constant currensig,ita $3.5 billion in 2012 compared to 2011.

« Business to business channel sales grew 5.1%, &0dtconstant currency basis, to $2.1 billion ia20ver 2011.

« Consumer channel sales declined 14.0%, 13.7% onstant currency basis, to $1.5 billion in 2012 pared to 2011.

« Movements in exchange rates negatively impactedfaan sales by approximately $57.6 million and @emasales by
approximately $7.1 million

« Special one-time asset impairment charges of $38l®n related to intangible assets and goodwilCompUSA and Circuit
City.

. Spgcial one-time asset write downs of $4.6 millielated to the exit from the PC manufacturing besm
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Results of Operations
Key Performance Indicators* (in millions):

Years Ended December 31

% %
2012 2011 Change 2011 2010 Change

Net sales by segment:
Technology Product $ 3,137t % 3,357. (6.5)% $ 3,357« $ 3,336.¢ 0.6%
Industrial Product 401.¢ 319.¢ 25.6% 319.¢ 250.( 28.(%
Corporate and other 5.1 3.3 54.5% 3.3 2.2 50.(%

Consolidated net sal $ 3,544¢ % 3,680.¢ B.N% $ 3,680t $ 3,589.: 2.5%
Net sales by channél:
Business to busine: $ 2,085.¢ $ 1,984. 51% $ 1,984.. $ 1,769.° 12.1%
Consumer 1,458.¢ 1,696. (14.0% 1,696.. 1,819. (6.6)%

Consolidated net sali $ 3544¢ % 3,680.¢ (3.7% $ 3,680.¢ 3,5689.: 2.5%
Consolidated gross marg 13.8% 14.4% (0.6)% 14.2% 13.€% 0.8%
Consolidated SG&A costs* $ 528.C $ 449.7 17.2% $ 4497 % 420.7 6.5%
Consolidated SG&A costs** as % of

sales 14.% 12.2% 2. 1% 12.2% 11.7% 0.5%
Operating income (loss) from

continuing operations by segment;**
Technology Product $ 472 $ 68.C (169.9% $ 68.C $ 65.( 4.€%
Industrial Product 29.€ 35.1 (14.9% 35.1 24.1 45.6%
Corporate and other (22.€) (22.9) (1.9% (22.%) (20.9) (9.9%
Consolidated operating income (lo.  $ (39.9 % 80.¢ (149.9% $ 80.t $ 68.¢ 17.4%
Operating margin from continuing

operations by segment :**
Technology Product (1.9% 2.C% (3.9% 2.C% 1.% 0.1%
Industrial Products 7.4% 11.(% (3.6% 11.(% 9.€% 1.4%
Consolidated operating margin from

continuing operation (1.7 2.2% (3.9% 2.2% 1.% 0.2%
Effective income tax rat 80.8% 30.9% 49.9% 30.9% 35.6% (4.7%
Net income (loss) from continuir

operations $ 8.0 $ 54.€ (114.9% $ 54¢ $ 42.¢€ 28.2%
Net margin from continuing operatio (0.2% 1.5% 1.79% 1.5% 1.2% 0.2%

* excludes discontinued operatic
** includes special charges (gains), net (See NofeNbies to Consolidated Financial Statemer

NET SALES

SEGMENTS:

The Technology Products net sales decrease iButlile to weakness in North American consumer eddyision and retail store sales which
were only partially offset by our European busintesisusiness sales growth. We have made a humisevedtments in the European market tc
better capitalize on the opportunities we see ase¢hexisting markets and we have built out our Eemo team to support anticipated

growth. On a constant currency basis, sales d=thin6% or $155.2 million.

The Industrial Products net sales increase in 20aftributable to increased product offeringstom €ompany’s websites, including the
recently opened Canadian website, and the addifibnisiness to business sales personnel to stiemgtir sales teams.
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The Technology Products net sales increase in 20dibared to 2010 is attributable to the effectsusfency movements and improved
business to business sales offset by decreasedmenshannel sales. On a constant currency tsadés declined 1.0% or $33.5 million. This
decline is due to lower sales in certain geographpeamarily North America and certain channelémgarrily unassisted web and television
shopping. The Industrial Products segment nessatgease in 2011 compared to 2010 is attribut@bheore products offered on the
Company’s website and the addition of new salesqrarel.

CHANNEL SALES:

The increase in consolidated business to busifesmel sales was driven by the Industrial Prodsetgnent’s additional products offered and
new product categories on the Company’s websiteadddion of sales personnel. On a constant cuyrbasis, worldwide business to busines:
channel sales grew 8.0%.

The decline in consolidated consumer-channel safagdted from softness in television shopping,rimé€ and retail stores in North America.
Consumer-channel sales declines were primarilyabelt of declines in sales of personal computaedstalevisions, driven by both volume and
selling price erosion. On a constant currencydasoridwide consumer channel sales declined 14.8%.

The worldwide business to business channel satesdare in 2011 resulted primarily from the Indas$tfiroducts segment’s additional product
lines and the addition of business to business smesonnel in both the Technology Products andsimniil Products segments. On a constant
currency basis, worldwide business to businessreiaales grew 9.7% in 2011. The worldwide congsuchannels, defined as revenues from
retail stores, consumer websites, inbound callessrgnd shopping channels, decline resulted priyrfapm European and North American
unassisted web and television shopping sales. é@@mstant currency basis, worldwide consumer chasalet declined 7.4% in 2011.

The Company exited the Software Solutions segnmedaime 2009. One customer remained being servdteb@ompany until the second
quarter of 2012. The termination of this custoimes resulted in all prior period results for thisimess segment to be classified as
discontinued operations in the second quarter 4220

GROSS MARGIN

The consolidated gross margin decrease in 2012egalincreased promotional freight campaigns amdpetitive pricing pressures within our
North American Technology business offset by charigehe segment and channel mix, with IndustriadBcts sales, which are typica
higher margin than Technology Products, contritgutiriarger percentage to gross profit dollars. s&roargin is dependent on variables such
as product mix, vendor price protection and otladgssincentives, competition, pricing strategy,perative advertising funds required to be
classified as a reduction to cost of sales, fredfigrtounting and other variables, any or all ofahhinay result in fluctuations in gross margin .

The consolidated gross margin increase in 2011duago changes in the segment and channel mix,Idistrial Products sales, which are
typically higher margin than Technology Productstcibuting a larger percentage to gross profitaisl Modest improvements in our freight
margin in Technology Products contributed to thprowved margin from our ongoing freight and logistikitiatives.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The selling, general and administrative expensa®ase in 2012 primarily resulted from the incredselustrial Products sales volume and
increases in facility and other operating costateel to the Industrial Products segment compar@014. Significant expense increases inc
approximately $4.5 million of increased payroll aethted costs due to additional contract laboeesps, approximately $2.3 million in
expenses related to ongoing sales tax and othelategy audits in our North American Technology ibess; additional rent and related cos
approximately $1.4 million due to the opening afeav distribution center in the Industrial Produsggment and new sales and administrative
offices in the United Kingdom, approximately $6.8lion of reduced vendor co-operative funding paliii offset by savings in catalog and
store advertising costs, and increased internegréiding of $11.4 million. The Company incurrebegximately $0.6 million of additional
depreciation and amortization compared to 2011tddke addition of our Industrial Products segnésiribution center and extensive data
storage upgrades and fabrication materials acqinrédtht segment.
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The selling, general and administrative expensa®ase in 2011 primarily resulted from the increesaes volume, increases in facility and
other operating costs related to the retail stbe#sg opened a full year compared to 2010 anddoifradditional sales personnel. Significant
expense increases include approximately $21.4amithf increased payroll, and related costs duelditianal sales personnel and additional
retail stores operating for the full year of 20binpared to 2010, additional rent and related aafsépproximately $2.8 million and $10.1
million of increased internet, store space ads diditeg and reduced cooperative advertising fundingatalogs, offset by decreased spending
on catalogs compared to 2010. The Company incapedoximately $2.8 million of additional deprectatiand amortization compared to 2(
due to significant additions to our second distiitrucenter, expenditures in our retail stores amdrtization of intangible assets.

SPECIAL CHARGES (GAINS), NET

The Company recorded net special charges of appedgly $46.3 million primarily related to asset mmpment charges of $39.9 million in the
North American Technology Products business whickudes the write off of $35.3 million of intangibassets and goodwill of CompUSA ¢
Circuit City and $4.6 million related to the cloginf the Company’s computer manufacturing locati®he North American Technology
Products business also incurred $0.5 million oksance costs related to the exit from the computerufacturing business as well as $1.8
million related to patent settlements with non-piciieg entities (see Notes 2 and 7 of the NoteSdosolidated Financial Statements). These
charges were partially offset by net recoverie$3® million for litigation costs and settlemengtated to a former officer and director of the
Company. There were also $8.0 million of severaptated charges incurred in the Technology Pradogsiness and the Industrial Products
segment.

In 2011 the Company recorded a net special ga@ippfoximately $5.6 million primarily related to threvestigation and settlement with a
former officer and director of the Company (seeeN®of the Notes to Consolidated Financial States)er special gain of approximately
$8.4 million related to the Settlement Agreemens wecorded in the second quarter of 2011. This gass partially offset by charges for
related investigative, legal and professional fefegpproximately $2.8 million for the year.

OPERATING MARGIN

The decline in Technology products operating mavgas primarily due to $39.9 million of asset impaént charges, $6.4 million of severance
and other reorganization related charges, $1.8omitf patent settlements with non-practicing ésibffset by net recoveries of $3.9 million
for litigation costs and settlements related toraner officer and director of the Company. Exchglthese net charges, Technology Products
operating margin would have declined compared tdl2fue to the soft demand for personal computetsansumer electronics, a decline in
vendor co-operative funding within the North Ameriechnology business, and lower sales and gro$s for cover fixed selling, general and
administrative expenses, partially offset by camtich strength in business to business operations.

Technology products operating margin increasedaEbstpoints in 2011 versus 2010 due to the effeatspecial gain recorded in 2011 related
to the investigation of the former officer and diar of the Company and the special charges indurr@010 for the WStore integration.
Excluding these gains and charges, Technology ptediperating margin would have declined compare2Dt0 due to continuing price
promotions offered and increased spending relat¢kiet retail stores, additional headcount andlay@édr of operation of the second distribut
center.

The decline in Industrial Products operating mawg#s due to a shift towards drop shipped produbisiwtend to lower consolidated profit
margins, a decline in freight margins, costs inedrior the new distribution and call center whigewoed in the second quarter 2012, and sale:
and other personnel costs as the segment contiogspand into newer product categories.

Industrial products operating margin increased als points in 2011 due to increased demand éosdlyment’s various products, the
availability of additional products on the Companwebsites and in its catalogs and additional ssesonnel.

The increase in Corporate and other loss primaggylted from increased overhead expenses. Coepanalt other operating costs increased

13.2% during 2011 primarily as a result of increbgersonnel costs and increased tax and accourgsgffset by savings in general
consulting fees.
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The discontinued operations of Software Solutiomsiired a loss of approximately $0.3 million, $t&®lion and $0.0 million, net of tax, for
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2&€dfkatively.

INTEREST EXPENS

Interest expense was $1.7 million, $2.2 milliond &1.8 million for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectiv&he interest expense decrease is
attributable to decreasing balances owed on the\Reg Zone Bond facility and outstanding capitalse obligations. The increase in 2011
compared to 2010 is primarily the result of a fidhar of interest on the Recovery Zone Bond entertedto finance the equipment for the
second Technology Products distribution center eden 2010.

INCOME TAXES

The Company'’s effective tax rate was an 80.8% hiime2012 as compared to a 30.9% provision in 20tke tax benefit in 2012 is primarily
due to the reversal of approximately $15.1 millafrvaluation allowances against deferred tax assfeétse Company’s French subsidiary as a
result of the subsidiary no longer being in a clatiué loss position and operating losses in thaddnbtates, including impacts of the asset
impairment charges recorded.

The effective tax rate in 2011 was 30.9% compave’dbt6% in 2010. The lower tax rate in 2011 is puiiy the result of the company’s France
operations having sufficient income to partiallilizé net operating loss carryforwards that hadlbvaluation allowance applied.

Seasonality
The Company’s fourth quarter has representedaearportion of annual sales than historically.t 8ies have historically been modestly
weaker during the second and third quarters asudtref lower business activity during those monfiftse following table sets forth the net

sales seasonality, excluding discontinued operstifam each of the quarters since January 1, 28t@unts in millions)

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 3(  December 3:
2012
Net sales $ 9136 $ 849.f $ 846.1 $ 935.2
Percentage of ye's net sale 25.8% 24.(% 23.9% 26.2%
2011
Net sales $ 929.¢ $ 8722 $ 900.z $ 978.¢
Percentage of ye's net sale 25.2% 23.1% 24.4% 26.6%
2010
Net sales $ 914.¢ $ 806.C $ 862.6 $ 1,005.¢
Percentage of ye's net sale 25.5% 22.5% 24.(% 28.(%

Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources
Selected liquidity data (in millions):

December 31,

2012 2011 $ Change
Cash $ 150.7 $ 97.2 $ 53.4
Accounts receivable, n $ 297 % 269.C $ 28.¢
Inventories $ 3672 $ 3722 $ (5.0
Assets available for sa $ 22 % - $ 2.2
Prepaid expenses and other current a: $ 212 % 182 $ 3.C
Accounts payabl $ 405.. $ 336.t $ 68.¢
Accrued expenses and other current liabili $ 83t $ 724 $ 11.1
Current portion of long term de $ 28 % 2€ $ 0.2
Working capital $ 360.t $ 354.¢ $ 6.C
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Our primary liquidity needs are to support workizapital requirements in our business, includingkivay capital for the exit from the PC
manufacturing business, opening a shared servargsrcin Hungary, reorganizing our European openatiincluding separation costs, the new
distribution and call center for our Industrial Buats segment, funding capital expenditures, inolthose related to our retail stores and
information technology systems, implementing neveirtory and warehouse functions in Europe, continoeestment in upgrading and
expanding our technological capabilities, repayontstanding debt, special dividends declared byBmard of Directors and acquisitions. We
rely principally upon operating cash flows to meetse needs. We believe that cash flows from ojpesaaind our availability under credit
facilities will be sufficient to fund our workingapital and other cash requirements for the nexivevm@onths. We believe our current capital
structure and cash resources are adequate fonteanal growth initiatives. To the extent our gtbwnitiatives expand, including major
acquisitions, we would seek to raise additionaiteapWe believe that, if needed, we can accesdigpor private funding alternatives to raise
additional capital.

Our working capital increase in 2012 is primarhye tresult of increased cash, accounts receivatdepeepaid balances offset by increased
accounts payable, accrued expenses and other tlisislities balances compared to 2011. Accouat®ivable days outstanding were at 29.0
in 2012 up from 27.0 in 2011. We expect that fureounts receivable and inventory balances wititflate with net sales and the mix of our
net sales between consumer and business customers.

Net cash provided by operating activities from awnhg operations was $75.4 million, $18.4 milli@md $64.7 million during 2012, 2011, ¢
2010, respectively. The increase in cash providedperating activities in 2012 compared to 20KLited from a $104.2 million increase in
our working capital accounts, primarily the resafltncreased payable balances at year end offsetdi#y7.2 million decrease in net income
adjusted by non-cash items, such as asset impdicharges, depreciation and provision for defemedme taxes. The decrease in cash
provided by operating activities in 2011 compa@@@10 resulted from changes in our working capitalounts which used $49.2 million
offset by a $2.9 million increase in net incomeuatiyd by other non-cash items, such as depreciatipense. Net cash used in operating
activities from discontinued operations during 2@h2l 2011 was $0.4 million and $0.2 million, resjppety and net cash provided by
discontinued operations in 2010 was $0.2 million.

Net cash used in investing activities from contiquoperations was $12.0 million for 2012 and werefarehouse racking systems for the 1
distribution center, network upgrades, fabricatguipment, expenditures for a new retail store oygupgrades and enhancements to our
information and communications systems hardwar@0Itl, net cash used in investing activities was&illion, primarily for upgrades and
enhancements to our information and communicatystesns hardware and software and expendituredai séores in North America. In
2010, net cash used in investing activities was®a4llion, primarily for capital expenditures intling expenditures for the second North
American distribution center for the Technology drots segment.

Net cash used in financing activities from contiubperations was $11.1 million in 2012, $0.5 miilin 2011 and $4.5 million in 2010.

2012, we paid a special dividend of $9.1 millionl aepaid approximately $2.8 million of capital leasbligations. Net proceeds and excess ta
benefits from stock option exercises provided $0iion. In 2011, we borrowed and repaid approxieta$10.9 million from revolving credit
and short term debt facilities. We repaid approxetya$2.5 million in capital lease obligations. Nbceeds and excess tax benefits from stoc
option exercises provided $0.5 million and we reediproceeds of approximately $1.5 million from Becovery Zone Facility Bond. In 20:
we borrowed and repaid approximately $261.7 milkgainst our credit facilities. We repaid approxieta$13.2 million in short term debt a
approximately $1.3 million in capital lease obligas and received proceeds of approximately $7IRomifrom the Recovery Zone Facility
Bond. Net proceeds and excess tax benefits frook sfption exercises provided approximately $2.liomlof cash. Net cash used in financing
activities from discontinued operations was $0iomil] $0.2 million and $0.2 million for 2012, 20142010, respectively.

The Company maintains a $125.0 million (which mayiricreased to $200.0 million, subject to certainditions) secured revolving credit
agreement with a group of financial institutionsiethprovides for borrowings in the United StateseTredit facility has a five year term and
expires in October 2015. Borrowings are securedupstantially all of the Company’s assets, inclgdiecounts receivable, inventory and
certain other assets, subject to limited exceptidhe credit agreement contains certain operatingncial and other covenants, including
limits on annual levels of capital expendituresaikbility tests related to payments of dividendd atock repurchases and fixed charge
coverage tests related to acquisitions. The rengleredit agreement requires that a minimum lefabvailability be maintained. If such
availability is not maintained, the Company will tegjuired to maintain a fixed charge coverage i@sodefined). The borrowings under the
agreement are subject to borrowing base limitataing to 85% of eligible accounts receivable apdai40% of qualified inventories. The
interest rate under this facility is computed gtlagable market rates based on LIBOR or the PriraeRplus an applicable margin. The
applicable margin varies based on borrowing basédability. As of December 31, 2012, eligible cdélleal under this agreement was $110.6
million, total availability was $104.6 million, tak outstanding letters of credit were $6.0 millermd there were no outstanding advances. The
Company was in compliance with all of the covenamtder this facility as of December 31, 2012.
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The Company’s WStore subsidiary maintained a remgleredit agreement with a financial institutiondrance which was secured by WStore
accounts receivable balances. This credit facilifg terminated by the Company on June 9, 201ail&ble amounts for borrowing under this
facility included all accounts receivable balansesover 60 days past due reduced by the greatt.0fmillion or 10% of the eligible accou
receivable.

The Company (through a subsidiary) has an outstgri8ond financing with the Development AuthorityJeffferson, Georgia (the

“Authority”). The Bonds were issued by the Authigrand initially purchased by GE Government Finalmme, and mature on October 1,
2018. The proceeds from the Bonds were used amdia capital equipment purchased for the Compatigtebution facility located in
Jefferson, Georgia. The purchase and installatidhe equipment for the facility was completedycember 31, 2011. Pursuant to the
transaction, the Company transferred to the Autipdiér consideration consisting of the Bonds pemt® ownership of the equipment and the
Authority leased the equipment to the Company’sgliliry pursuant to a capital equipment lease mgiDctober 1, 2018. Under the capital
equipment lease the Company has the right to azguwnership of the equipment at any time for a lpase price sufficient to pay off all
principal and interest on the Bonds, plus $1.08.aAesult of the capital lease treatment forttaissaction, the leased equipment is included il
property, plant and equipment in the Company’s cbaated balance sheet. As of December 31, 20E2Company had $5.9 million
outstanding against this financing facility.

Our earnings and cash flows are seasonal in natitiethe fourth quarter of the fiscal year genieighigher earnings and cash flows than the
other quarters. Levels of earnings and cash floeslapendent on factors such as consolidated graggn and selling, general and
administrative costs as a percentage of salesuptocix and relative levels of domestic and foresges. Unusual gains or expense items,
as special (gains) charges and settlements, maacingarnings and are separately disclosed. We etli@ast performance may not be
indicative of future performance due to the contpetinature of our Technology Products segment eitee need to adjust prices to gain or
hold market share is prevalent.

Macroeconomic conditions, such as business andiocwgrssentiment, may affect our revenues, cash faviimancial condition. However, we
do not believe that there is a direct correlatietwieen any specific macroeconomic indicator andewenues, cash flows or financial
condition. We are not currently interest rate games as we have significant cash balances andnmaiindebt.

The expenses and capital expenditures describack atith require significant levels of liquidity, wwth we believe can be adequately funded
from our currently available cash resources. In2@#& anticipate capital expenditures of approximge&5.6 million, though at this time we
are not contractually committed to incur these exiiteires. Over the past several years we havegedga opportunistic acquisitions, choos
to pay the purchase price in cash, and may do geifuture as favorable situations arise. Howeaeteep and prolonged period of reduced
consumer and/ or business to business spendind adukrsely impact our cash resources and forte eigher forego future acquisition
opportunities or to pay the purchase price in shaf@ur common stock, which could have a dilug¥fect on our earnings per share. In
addition we anticipate cash needs for implemematfcthe financial systems. We believe that owhdaalances, future cash flows from
operations and our availability under credit fai@B will be sufficient to fund our working capitahd other cash requirements for at least the
next twelve months.

We maintain our cash and cash equivalents primaritgoney market funds or their equivalent. As ecBmber 31, 2012, all of our
investments had maturities of less than three nsonféttcordingly, we do not believe that our invesints have significant exposure to interest
rate risk.

We are obligated under non-cancelable operatirggkefor the rental of most of our facilities andaia of our equipment which expire at

various dates through 2032. We have subleaseragrds for unused space we lease in the United Kimgdn the event the sub lessee is
unable to fulfill its obligations, we would be resysible for rents due under the leases.
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Following is a summary of our contractual obligagdor future principal payments on our debt, mmimrental payments on our non-
cancelable operating leases and minimum paymentsioother purchase obligations as of Decembe@12 (in millions):

Less than More than
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years

Contractual Obligations
Capital lease obligatior $ 9.7 3 6.2 0.2 -
Non-cancelable operating leases, net o

sublease 233.% 28.4 75.% 59.: 70.2
Purchase & other obligations 46.¢ 28.2 9.€ 9.C -
Total contractual obligatior $ 289.¢ 59.¢ 91.1 68.t 70.2

Our purchase and other obligations consist primafilcertain employment agreements and servicesaggats.
In addition to the contractual obligations notedwah we had $6.0 million of standby letters of dredtstanding as of December 2012.

We are party to certain litigation, the outcomewvbich we believe, based on discussions with legahsel, will not have a material adverse
effect on our consolidated financial statements.

Tax contingencies are related to uncertain taxtioos taken on income tax returns that may resudtdditional tax, interest and penalties being
paid to taxing authorities. As of December 31, 2ah2 Company had no material uncertain tax postio

In January 2013, the Company entered into a leashé European Technology Products segrsesitared services center. The facility, loc
in Budapest, Hungary, is approximately 52,000 sgjdeet and is leased through March 2023. Thewafig table details the contractual
obligations related to this lease (in millions):

Payments due by perioc
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 After 2017
Shared services center operating le ~ $ 0. 11 ¢ 1.1 $ 1.1 $ 5.5

8]
&+
&
(e}
&+

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not created, and are not party to, anyiapaarpose or off-balance sheet entities for thgppse of raising capital, incurring debt or
operating our business. We do not have any arraegenor relationships with entities that are notstdidated into the financial statements
are reasonably likely to materially affect our lidjty or the availability of capital resources.

The Company currently leases its facility in Por@shington, NY from Addwin Realty Associates, antgrdwned by Richard Leeds, Bruce
Leeds, and Robert Leeds, senior executives, Direatad controlling shareholders of the Company.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosuresAbout Market Risk.

We are exposed to market risks, which include chamg U.S. and international interest rates as agtihanges in currency exchange rates
(principally British Pounds Sterling, European Umiburos and Canadian Dollars) as measured aghm&t.6. Dollar and each other.

The translation of the financial statements of @perations located outside of the United Statémpmcted by movements in foreign currency
exchange rates. Changes in currency exchangeastaesasured against the U.S. dollar may positimehegatively affect income statement,
balance sheet and cash flows as expressed in bll&sd Sales would have fluctuated by approxinya$dl40.0 million and pretax income
would have fluctuated by approximately $4.0 millibaverage foreign exchange rates changed by 1h02012. We have limited involvement
with derivative financial instruments and do no¢ isem for trading purposes. We may enter intoigoreurrency options or forward exchange
contracts aimed at limiting in part the impact eftain currency fluctuations, but as of December2812 we had no outstanding forward
exchange contracts.

30




Table of Content

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interatss relates primarily to our variable rate dé€hir variable rate debt consists of shertr
borrowings under our credit facilities. As of Dedmn 31, 2012, there were no outstanding balancderusur variable rate credit facility.
hypothetical change in average interest rates efp@mncentage point is not expected to have a rahtdfect on our financial position, results
operations or cash flows over the next fiscal year.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by Item 8 of Part Il i€amporated herein by reference to the Consolidatedncial Statements filed with this report;
see Item 15 of Part IV.

Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountason Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participationh&f Company’s management, including the Compa@iief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, the Company carried out an eatiin of the effectiveness of the design and ommratf the Company’s disclosure controls
and procedures as of December 31, 2012. Basedthgosvaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive @dfiand Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controtsoncedures are effective.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Controls over Fina ncial Reporting

The Company’s internal control over financial repay is designed to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statet:éor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. The
Company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures thatg(idgin to the maintenance of records that, ir
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiiansactions and dispositions of the Companysstas(ii) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepagation of financial statements in accordanch generally accepted accounting principles
and that the Company’s receipts and expenditueebging made only in accordance with authorizatafrthe Company’s management and
directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assurarganding prevention or timely detection of unautet acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company'’s assets that could have a material effethe Company’s financial statements.

Management, including the Company’s Chief Execu@icer and Chief Financial Officer, does not espthat the Company’s internal
controls will prevent or detect all errors andfedlud. A control system, no matter how well desijaed operated, can provide only reasonabls
not absolute, assurance that the objectives afdh&rol system are met. Further, the design ofrdrobsystem must reflect the fact that there
are resource constraints, and the benefits of alsntnust be considered relative to their costsaBse of the inherent limitations in all control
systems, no evaluation of internal controls carvideabsolute assurance that all control issuesrestances of fraud, if any, have been
detected. Also, any evaluation of the effectiveradfgontrols in future periods are subject to tisk that those internal controls may become
inadequate because of changes in business corgitiothat the degree of compliance with the pedi@r procedures may deteriorate.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for estabfj and maintaining adequate internal controf éimancial reporting. Under the
supervision and with the participation of the Compa management, including the Chief Executive €ffiand Chief Financial Officer, the
Company evaluated the effectiveness of the desigroperation of its internal control over finandiaporting based on the framework
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framewssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgaitiratof the Treadway Commission.
Based on that evaluation, the Company’s Chief Etveefficer and Chief Financial Officer conclud#tht the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting was effective as of Decem®l, 2012.
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The Company'’s independent registered public ac@ogifirm, Ernst & Young LLP, has issued an attdstateport on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2012, a copy of which is inetuh this report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in the Company’s inteong&rols over financial reporting for the quaréerded December 31, 2012 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenally affect, the Company’s internal control o¥i@ancial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART IlI
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.

The information required by Item 10 of Part lllhereby incorporated by reference to the CompamgsyPStatement for the 2013 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders. (the “Proxy Statement”).

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by Item 11 of Part lllhereby incorporated by reference to the Proxy Stete.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Mattet
The information required by item 12 of Part lllhereby incorporated by reference to the Proxy Sieaite.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa&ns, and Director Independence

The information required by Item 10 of Part lllhereby incorporated by reference to the Proxy Stete.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by Item 14 of Part Illhsreby incorporated by reference to the Proxy Btate.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) 1. Consolidated Financial Statements ofeSgak Inc. Reference

Reports of Ernst & Young LLP Independent Registd?alllic Accounting Firn

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&012011

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yemded December 31, 2012, 2011 and
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomiéoyears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yerailed December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol Equity for the Years ended December 31, 2012, 201t1201(
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem

2. Financial Statement Schedul

The following financial statement schedule is filesipart of this report and should be read togetiterour consolidate
financial statement:

Schedule I— Valuation and Qualifying Accoun

Schedules not included with this additional ficiahdata have been omitted because they are ptitaple or the
required information is shown in the consolidatieéficial statements or notes ther:
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Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

3. Exhibits.

Exhibit

No. Description

3.1 Composite Certificate of Incorporation of Registraas amended (incorporated by reference to thep@ogis annual report on
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 20

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of Registrant (effeais of December 29, 2007, incorporated by referémthe Company’s
annual report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

3.3 Amendment to the Bylaws of the Registrant (incogped by reference to the Comp’s report on Form-K dated March 3, 200¢

4.1 Stockholders Agreement (incorporated by refereatdbhé Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q lfar quarterly period ended
September 30, 199!

10.1 Form of 1995 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan* (inmorated by reference to the Company’s registragtatement on Form S-1)
(Registration No. 33-1852)

10.2 Form of 1995 Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directdiistorporated by reference to the Company’s regfisin statement on
Form &-1) (Registration No. 3:-1852)

10.3 Form of 1999 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan as atedn (incorporated by reference to the Company®reon Form 8-K dated
May 20, 2003

10.4 Form of 2006 Stock Incentive Plan for Non-Employseectors* (incorporated by reference to the Cony@annual report on
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 20

10.5 Form of 2005 Employee Stock Purchase Plan* (inc@teal by reference to the Company’s annual repoFaym 10K for the yeal
ended December 31, 20C

10.6 Lease Agreement dated September 20, 1988 betwed&Potinpany and Addwin Realty Associates (Port Wagbmfacility)
(incorporated by reference to the Comf’s registration statement on Forr-1) (Registration No. -92052)

10.7 First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated SepteBthel998 between the Company and Addwin Realty édiases (Port
Washington facility) (incorporated by referencalie Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for tharyended December 31,
1998)

10.8 Second Amendment to Lease Agreement dated Sept@0pe888 between the Company and Addwin Realtypéiases (Port
Washington facility) (incorporated by referencalie Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for tharyended December 31,
2007)

10.9 Build-to-Suit Lease Agreement dated April, 1995 amthe Company, American National Bank and Trush@any of Chicago
(Trustee for the original landlord) and Walsh, Higg& Company (Contractor) (“Naperville lllinois Eitity Lease”) (incorporated
by reference to the Compe's registration statement on Fori-1) (Registration No. --92052)

10.10 First Amendment, dated as of February 1, 200&hed\taperville lllinois Facility Lease between thenGpany and Ambassador
Drive LLC (current landlord) (incorporated by reface to the Company’s annual report on Form 10+KHe year ended
December 31, 200!

10.11 Lease Agreement dated September 17, 1998 betwgen Direct, Inc. and Keystone Miami Property Hofgli@orp. (Miami facility
(incorporated by reference to the Comf’s quarterly report on Form -Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 1

10.12 First Amendment, dated as of September 5, 200Betbease Agreement between Tiger Direct, Inc.keybstone Miami Property
Holding Corp. (Miami facility) (incorporated by mfence to the Company’s annual report on Form I6rkhe year ended
December 31, 201(

10.13 Second Amendment, dated March 22, 2007, to thed_Agseement between Tiger Direct, Inc. and Keystdiemi Property

Holding Corp. (Miami facility) (incorporated by mience to the Company’s annual report on Form I6rkhe year ended
December 31, 201(
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10.14

10.15

10.16

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

14
21
23
31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2

Third Amendment, dated as of June 26, 2009, th.&zse Agreement between Tiger Direct, Inc. and Maisociates Limited
Partnership (successor in interest to landlord ke Miami Property Holding Corp.) (Miami facilitg)ncorporated by reference
the Compan’s annual report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Lease agreement, dated December 8, 2005, betwe&vothpany and Hamilton Business Center, LLC (Byf@eorgia facility)
(incorporated by reference to the Com’'s annual report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

First Amendment, dated as of June 12, 2006, th¢ase Agreement between the Company and HamiltsmBss Center, LLC
(Buford, Georgia facility) (incorporated by refeoento the Company’s annual report on FornKlifor the year ended December
2005)

Employment Agreement, dated as of October 3, 26&tlyeen Systemax Inc. and David Sprotsy* (incorjgardy reference to the
Compan’s annual report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Executive Directors Service Agreement, dated Deaerhb, 2011, between Misco UK Limited and Permirdale* (incorporated
by reference to the Compé's annual report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Employment Agreement, dated as of January 17, 288tWween the Company and Lawrence P. Reinhold*(parated by reference
to the Compar’s annual report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Amendment No.1, dated December 30, 2009, to thel@®myent Agreement between the Company and LawrBnéeinhold*
(incorporated by reference to the Comg’s report on Form-K dated December 30, 200

Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dateflOctober 27, 2010, by and among Systemaxah@tcertain affiliates
thereof and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as U.S. Adtnative Agent, J.P. Morgan Europe Limited, as Rdninistrative Agent,
J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc. as Sole Bookrunner&old Lead Arranger, and the lenders from timénte tparty thereto
(incorporated by reference to the Comf’'s report on Form-K dated November 2, 201

Amendment No. 1 and Waiver, dated as of Decembge20Hl, to the Second Amended and Restated Crgdiefnent by and
among Systemax Inc. and certain affiliates theagf JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as U.S. Adminiseatigent, J.P. Morgan
Europe Limited, as UK Administrative Agent and terders from time to time party thereto (incorpecaby reference to the
Compan’s annual report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Lease Agreement, dated as of September 1, 201tgbBevelopment Authority of Jefferson, Georgia, G&/ernment Finance
Inc. and SYX Distribution Inc. (incorporated by eegnce to the Compa’s report on Form-K dated September 24, 201
Corporate Guaranty and Negative Pledge Agreemateddas of September 1, 2010, among Systemaxdagglopment Authority
of Jefferson, Georgia and GE Government Finance(imcorporated by reference to the Company’s repof-orm 8-K dated
September 24, 201(

Escrow Agreement, dated as of September 1, 201namarshall & lisley Trust Company, N.A. (as eseragent), GE
Government Finance Inc., Development Authorityeffekson, Georgia and SYX Distribution Inc. (incorated by reference to the
Compan’s report on Form-K dated September 24, 201

Lease Agreement, dated February 27, 2012 betwediNrRBhington Township NJ, LLC as Landlord and GldBquipment
Company Inc. as Tenant (Robbinsville, NJ faciliigcorporated by reference to the Company’s quigrteport on Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended March 31, 20

Form of 2010 Long Term Incentive Plan* (incorpothby reference to the Company’s Definitive Proxgt8inent filed April 29,
2010)

Corporate Ethics Policy for Officers, Directors dhahiployees (revised as of August, 2012) (filed vitie

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (filed herew

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking (filed herewith]

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewitt
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewitr
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuido Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewitt
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewitr
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101.INS XBRL Instance Documer
101.SCF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutr
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent
* Management contract or compensatory plan @rgement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

SYSTEMAX INC.

By: /s/ RICHARD LEEDS

Richard Leed:
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

Date: March 14, 201

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bbiothe following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ RICHARD LEEDS Chairman and Chief Executive Officer March 2@13
Richard Leed: (Principal Executive Officer
/s/ BRUCE LEEDS Vice Chairman and Director March 14, 2013
Bruce Leed:
/s/ ROBERT LEED¢S Vice Chairman and Director March 14, 2013

Robert Leed:

Executive Vice President, Chief Financ
/s/ LAWRENCE P. REINHOLL Officer March 14, 2013

Lawrence P. Reinhol and Directol
(Principal Financial Officer

/sl THOMAS AXMACHER Vice President and Controller March 14, 2013
Thomas Axmache (Principal Accounting Officer
/s/ ROBERT D. ROSENTHAI Director March 14, 2013
Robert D. Rosenth:
/s STACY DICK Director March 14, 2013
Stacy Dick
/s/ MARIE ADLER-KRAVECAS Director March 14, 2013

Marie Adle-Kravecas
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Systeimax

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Systemax Inc. and subsidiaries (“trafany”) as of December 31, 2012

and 2011, and the related consolidated stateménfseoations, comprehensive income (loss), shadehnslequity and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 3. Z0ur audits also included the financial statensehedule listed in the Index at Item 15
(a). These financial statements and financial stat¢ schedule are the responsibility of the Comijsamanagement. Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these financial statememtseimedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finataieiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenenelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecbove present fairly, in all material respedts, tonsolidated financial position of Systel
Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2012 and,28d the consolidated results of their operatanmd their cash flows for each of the tt
years in the period ended December 31, 2012, ifoomity with U.S. generally accepted accountingipiples. Also, in our opinion, the rela
financial statement schedule, when considered latioa to the basic financial statements taken aghale, presents fairly in all matel

respects the information set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), Systemax Inc.’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2012, based on criteria establishedt@mrial Control-Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission and our report dated Marct?@43 expressed and unqualified
opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
March 14, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Systeimax

We have audited Systemax Inc. and subsidiaries @bmpany”) internal control over financial repogias of December 31, 2012, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrakedmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirga@izations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company’s manant is responsible for maintaining effective in& control over financial reporting,
and for its assessment of the effectiveness offriatecontrol over financial reporting included hetaccompanying Management’s Report. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Canys internal control over financial reporting bdson our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d&/nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corax@r financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and etinagutihe design and operating effectiveness ofiiralecontrol based on the assessed risk, anc
performing such other procedures as we considezedssary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis for ou
opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (&ajmeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettfansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely detecfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Systemax Inc. and subsidiaries aaed, in all material respects, effective intégantrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2012, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Systemax Inc. and subsidiarie@scember 31, 2012 and 2011 and the relatecbtidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income (loss), shareholders' equaifycash flows for each of the three years in thimgeended December 31, 2012 and our
report dated March 14, 2013 expressed an unquhbifiénion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
March 14, 2013
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SYSTEMAX INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except for share data)

December 31

2012 2011
ASSETS:
Current asset:
Cash $ 150.7 $ 97.c
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $15.5%h4 7 297.¢ 269.(
Inventories 367.2 372.2
Assets available for sa 3 -
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 21.2 18.2
Deferred income taxes 13.€ 9.€
Total current asse 852.4 766.:
Property, plant and equipment, | 63.C 70.%
Deferred income taxe 30.2 -
Goodwill and intangible 11.1 47.¢
Other assets 5.€ 4.¢
Total assets $ 962.2 $ 889.1
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 405.2 % 336.t
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 83.t 72.2
Current portion of long term debt 2.8 2.€
Total current liabilities 491 .¢ 411.%
Long term deb 5.3 7.1
Deferred income taxe - 2.3
Other liabilities 19.1 14.F
Total liabilities 516.( 435.¢
Commitments and contingenci
Shareholder equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share, aumbd million shares; issued nc
Common stock, par value $.01 per share, authofis@dnmillion shares; issued 38,861,992 and 38,8&1,
shares; outstanding 36,554,972 and 36,398,523 0.4 0.4
Additional paic-in capital 183.( 180.t
Treasury stock at co—2,307,020 and 2,463,496 sha (28.6) (30.5
Retained earning 290.t 307.¢
Accumulated other comprehensive gain (loss) 1.C (4.0)
Total shareholders’ equity 446.: 454.:
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 962.2 $ 889.1

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SYSTEMAX INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in millions, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Net sales $ 3544.¢ $ 3,680.t $ 3,589.:
Cost of sales 3,056.! 3,150.. 3,099.¢
Gross profit 488.1 530.t 489.-
Selling, general and administrative exper 481.7 455.2 416.¢
Special (gains) charges, net 46.: (5.6) 4.2
Operating income (loss) from continuing operati (39.9 80.¢ 68.¢
Foreign currency exchange Ic 0.2 1.C 1.7
Interest and other income, r (0.3 (1.9 (0.¢)
Interest expense 1.7 2.2 1.E
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxe: (41.¢) 79.C 66.1
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes (33.6) 24.4 23.t
Income (loss) from continuing operatic (8.0 54.¢ 42.¢
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax (0.9 (0.2) (-)
Net income $ 8.3 $ 54.£ 3 42.€
Income (loss) from continuing operations per comrsloare:
Basic $ 0.229) $ 14¢ % 1.1t
Diluted $ 0.22) $ 147 % 1.1
Net income (loss) per common she
Basic $ (0.22) $ 14t $ 1.1t
Diluted $ 0.229) $ 147 $ 1.1
Weighted average common and common equivalent st
Basic 36.¢ 36.¢ 37.C
Diluted 36.¢ 37.1 37.€
Dividends declare $ 0.2t - -

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SYSTEMAX INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

(in millions)
Year Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010
Net income (loss $ 8.3 $ 544 % 42.¢
Other comprehensive income (los
Foreign currency translation 5.C (2.8) (2.6)
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ (3.9 % 51.¢ $ 40.(

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SYSTEMAX INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Income (loss) from continuing operatic

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Asset impairment chargs
Provision for deferred income tax
Provision for returns and doubtful accou
Compensation expense related to equity compenspaltois
Return of common sto-special gair
Excess tax benefit from exercises of stock opt
Loss on dispositions and abandonn

Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Income taxes payable (receivak
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other tliakitities

Net cash provided by operating activities from @auihg operations

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activitiesn discontinued operations

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipn
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant andpeqgent
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Borrowings on credit facility and short term di

Repayments of borrowings on credit facility andrsiberm deb

Proceeds from recovery zone bc

Repayments of capital lease obligatir

Dividends paic

Proceeds from issuance of common sl

Excess tax benefit from exercises of stock options
Net cash used in financing activities from contirgubperations
Net cash used in financing activities from disconéd operations
Net cash used in financing activities

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATES ON CASH

NET INCREASE IN CASF
CASH — BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH — END OF YEAR

Supplemental disclosure
Interest paic
Income taxes pai

Supplemental disclosures of r-cash investing and financing activitit
Acquisitions of equipment through capital lea

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(8.0 $ 54.€ 42.¢
18.C 17.5 14.F
39.¢ - -
(36.6) 0.2 4.€
5.C 3.2 3.2
4.1 1. 2.E

- (7.9 -
(0.5) (0.2) (1.1)
0.2 0.1 0.1
(25.4) (0.4) (45.1)
5.C (4.2) (5.
(18.7) (4.5 6.4
12.¢ 4.8 (3.9
79.¢ (46.€) 46.1
75.2 18. 64.7
(0.4) (0.2) 0.2
75.C 18.2 64.¢
(12.1) (12.9) (24.7)
0.1 - -
(12.0 (12.9) (24.7)

- 10.¢ 261.7

- (10.9 (274.9)

- 1.5 7.¢
(2.9) (2.5) (1.9)
(9.1) - -

2 2 1.C
0.E 0.2 1.1
(11.1) (0.5) (4.5)

- (0.2) (0.2)
(11.1) (0.7) (4.7)
1. - (1.7)
53.2 5.2 33.¢
97.: 92.1 58.:
150.7 $ 97.2 92.1
14 $ 1.7 1.2
1124 $ 19.2 21.7
1.2 $ 2.4 9.4
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SYSTEMAX INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in millions, except share data in thousands)

Common Stock

Accumulated

Number Additional Treasury Other
of Shares Paid-in Stock, Retained Comprehensive
Outstanding Amount Capital At Cost Earnings Income (Loss)
Balances, December 31, 20 36,45, % 04 $ 180 $ (28.5) $ 210.¢ $ 14
Stocl-based compensation expel 2.4
Issuance of restricted sto 10€ (0.9 1.2
Restricted stock withheld for
employee taxe (36) (0.9 (0.9
Exercise of stock optior 234 (1.8 2.€
Income tax benefit on stock-based
compensatiol 1.2
Change in cumulative translation
adjustmen (2.6)
Net income 42.€
Balances, December 31, 20 36,75¢ $ 04 $ 181t % (249 $ 253t % (1.2
Stocl-based compensation expel 1.€
Issuance of restricted sto 12¢€ (1.9 1.t
Exercise of stock optior 68 (0.5 0.€
Return of Common Stoc (550 (7.9
Surrender of fully vested optiol (1.9
Income tax benefit on stock-based
compensatiol 0.2
Change in cumulative translation
adjustmen (2.8
Net income 54.4
Balances, December 31, 20 36,39¢ $ 04 $ 1805 $ (305 $ 307.¢ $ 4.0
Stoclk-based compensation expel 4.C
Issuance of restricted sto 47 (0.9 0.€
Exercise of stock optior 10¢ (2.0 1.2
Surrender of fully vested optiol (0.7
Income tax benefit on stock-based
compensatiol 0.€
Change in cumulative translation
adjustmen 5.C
Dividends Paic (9.9
Net income (loss) (8.9
Balances, December 31, 2012 36,55¢ $ 04 $ 183.( $ (28.6) $ 290.F $ 1.C

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SYSTEMAX INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidatior— The accompanying consolidated financial statem@riude the accounts of Systemax Inc. and itsiywho
owned subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company™8ystemax”). All significant intercompany accouaisd transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Reclassifications— Certain prior year amounts were reclassifiedaiofarm to current year presentation.

Use of Estimates In Financial StatementsThe preparation of financial statements in camiity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requirasagement to make estimates and assumptions theit e amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and accompambes. Actual results could differ from those esti@s.

Fiscal Year— The Company'’s fiscal year ends at midnight onShaurday closest to December 31. For clarity eépntation herein, all
fiscal years are referred to as if they ended oceber 31. The fiscal year will be divided intofféiscal quarters that each end at
midnight on a Saturday. Fiscal quarters will tyflicanclude 13 weeks, but the fourth quarter wiltiude 14 weeks in a 53 week fiscal
year. For clarity of presentation herein, all fisgaarters are referred to as if they ended orrdditional calendar month.

Foreign Currency Translatior— The Company has operations in numerous foreigmtcies. The functional currency of each foreign
country is the local currency. The financial staats of the Company’s foreign entities are traadlénto U.S. dollars, the reporting
currency, using year-end exchange rates for aaadttiabilities, average exchange rates for thezistant of operations items and
historical rates for equity accounts. Translatiaing or losses are recorded as a separate compuirgdareholders’ equity.

Cash— The Company considers amounts held in money madaunts and other short-term investments, imetudvernight bank
deposits, with an original maturity date of threenths or less to be cash. Cash overdrafts aref@ass accounts payable.

Inventories— Inventories consist primarily of finished goodwlaare stated at the lower of cost or market valost is determined by
using the first-in, first-out method except in Epecand retail locations where an average costd.us

Assets available for sale- Assets available for sale consist of our ISO-9@@D8 certified PC manufacturing facility located
Fletcher, Ohio, including land and land improverserithe cost of the land, land improvements antflimgi has been adjusted to fair
market value.

Property, Plant and Equipment Property, plant and equipment is stated at ¢ashiture, fixtures and equipment, including equémi
under capital leases, are depreciated using thigstrine or accelerated method over their esinhaiseful lives ranging from three to
ten years. Buildings are depreciated using thég$tidine method over estimated useful lives of 30 to/8@rs. Leasehold improveme
are amortized over the shorter of the useful lmethe term of the respective leases.

Evaluation of Londived Assets— Long-lived assets are evaluated for recovergbitienever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that an asset may have been impaired:diuating an asset for recoverability, the Compastymates the future cash flows
expected to result from the use of the asset aedteal disposition. If the sum of the expectedfeittash flows (undiscounted and
without interest charges) is less than the carrgimgunt of the asset, an impairment loss, equalt@xcess of the carrying amount ovel
the fair market value of the asset is recognized.

Goodwill and intangible assets- Goodwill represents the excess of the cost ofiiaed assets over the fair value of assets acquiites
Company tests goodwill and intangibles for impaintrennually or more frequently if indicators of iaipnent exist. The Company
assesses the carrying value of its definite-livedrigible assets if circumstances indicate thaggh@lues may not be recoverable. In
addition, goodwill is required to be tested for mmment after a portion of the goodwill is allocate a business targeted for disposal.
The Company’s identifiable intangible assets camdisrademarks, trade and domain names, technptetgil leases and customer lists
(See Note 2). The Company conducted an evaluafids dechnology Products multi-brand United Statessumer strategy and the
intangible assets used in that strategy and coadltitat the Company’s future North American consupusiness would be optimized
by consolidating its United States consumer opamatunder TigerDirect, its leading and largest 8rafis a result an impairment charge
of approximately $35.3 million related to the treeks, domain names and goodwill of CompUSA andutiiCity was taken in the
fourth quarter of 2012.
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Accruals— Management makes estimates and assumptionsfiibett @mounts reported in the consolidated findrst@ements and
accompanying notes. These estimates are basedrapons factors such as the number of units sastiptical and anticipated results
and data received from third party vendors. Actaalilts could differ from these estimates. Our msagtificant estimates include those
related to the costs of vendor drop shipmentsssaleirns and allowances, cooperative advertisitigcastomer rebate reserves, and
other vendor and employee related costs.

Income Taxes— Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recoghfoe the effect of temporary differences betwdsntiook and tax bases
of recorded assets and liabilities and for tax sy forwards. The realization of net deferreddasets is dependent upon our ability to
generate sufficient future taxable income. Wherg iihore likely than not that some portion or thére deferred tax asset will not be
realized, we have provided a valuation allowantthd realization of those deferred tax assethaftiture is considered more likely tt
not, an adjustment to the deferred tax assets woatdase net income in the period such deterntinasi made.

The Company provides for uncertain tax positiors i@tated interest and penalties based upon maragsnassessment of whether a
tax benefit is more likely than not to be sustaiopdn examination by tax authorities. To the exteatCompany prevails in matters for
which a liability for an unrecognized tax beneditdstablished or is required to pay amounts inssxoéthe liability, the Company’s
effective tax rate in a given financial statemestigpd may be affected.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivahlehe Company recognizes sales of products, inetudhipping revenue, when
persuasive evidence of an order arrangement egisisery has occurred, the sales price is fixedaterminable and collectibility is
reasonably assured. Generally, these criteria ateatrthe time the product is received by the eusts when title and risk of loss have
transferred except in our Industrial Products segmiaere title and risk pass at time of shipmetiowances for estimated subsequent
customer returns, rebates and sales incentivggraveled when revenues are recorded. Costs incéwrdtie shipping and handling of
its products are recorded as cost of sales. Reviemueextended warranty and support contracts erCthmpany’s assembled PCs is
deferred and recognized over the contract peribd. Gompany evaluates collectibility of accounterezble based on numerous fact
including past transaction history with customenrd their credit rating and provides a reserve émoants that are potentially
uncollectible. Trade receivables are generallytemipff once all collection efforts have been exdtad. Accounts receivable are shown
in the consolidated balance sheets net of allowsafuredoubtful collections and subsequent custamteirns.

Advertising Costs— Expenditures for internet, television, local mdnd newspaper advertising are expensed in thedpthe
advertising takes place. Catalog preparation, ipdrand postage expenditures are amortized ovepdtied of catalog distribution
during which the benefits are expected, generally to four months.

Net advertising expenses were $57.7 million, $40il2on and $31.7 million during 2012, 2011 and R0fespectively, and are included
in the accompanying consolidated statements ofadpeis. The Company utilizes advertising programnsupport vendors, including
catalogs, internet and magazine advertising, acgives payments and credits from vendors, includomsideration pursuant to volume
incentive programs and cooperative marketing progra he Company accounts for consideration frondeeas a reduction of cost of
sales unless certain conditions are met showinghiesfunds are used for specific, incrementahiidi@ble costs, in which case the
consideration is accounted for as a reductionérréiated expense category, such as advertisirenegpThe amount of vendor
consideration recorded as a reduction of selliegegal and administrative expenses totaled $471Bmi$59.4 million and $65.6
million during 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Prepaid expenses as of December 2012 and 201 Hendkferred advertising costs of $1.5 million atid7$nillion, respectively which
are reflected as an expense during the periodditezheypically the subsequent fiscal quarter.

Stock based compensatien The Company recognizes the fair value of shasetb@ompensation in the consolidated statement of
operations over the requisite employee servicogeBtock-based compensation expense includediematsfor forfeitures and is
recognized over the expected term of the award.

Net Income Per Common Shar@&let income per common share - basic was calcllzsed upon the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the respectivedgsepresented using the two class method of cangpearnings per share. The two
class method was used as the Company has outgianedinicted stock with rights to dividend partafion for unvested shares. Net
income per common share - diluted was calculateddapon the weighted average number of commoeslatstanding and included
the equivalent shares for dilutive options outstagdiuring the respective periods, including unedsiptions. The dilutive effect of
outstanding options and restricted stock issuethéyCompany is reflected in net income per shaikited using the treasury stock
method. Under the treasury stock method, optiofisoniy have a dilutive effect when the average keaprice of common stock during
the period exceeds the exercise price of the optidhe weighted average number of stock optionstauding included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share was fmrthe year ended December 31, 2012 and 0.3 mi#lied 0.6 million for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectivelywElghted average number of restricted stock awiadsded in the computation
diluted earnings per share was 0.0 million forykar December 31, 2012 and 0.1 million and 0.2ionilfor the years ended December
31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The weighted @eenumber of stock options outstanding excludeoh filee computation of diluted
earnings per share was 1.1 million for the yealedrDecember 31, 2012 and 0.8 million and 0.7 omilfor the years ended December
31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, due to their datide effect.

Employee Benefit PlanrsThe Company’s U.S. subsidiaries participate infindd contribution 401(k) plan covering substaryiaill
U.S. employees. Employees may invest 1% or motkeif eligible compensation, limited to maximumamts as determined by the
Internal Revenue Service. The Company providesi@imning contribution to the plan, determined agrgntage of the employees’
contributions. Aggregate expense to the Compangdotributions to such plans was approximatel@$iillion, $1.0 million and $0.9
million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Fair Value MeasurementsFinancial instruments consist primarily of invesits in cash, trade accounts receivable debt@uiats
payable. The Company estimates the fair valuéahtial instruments based on interest rates a&laila the Company and by
comparison to quoted market prices. At DecembefB12 and 2011, the carrying amounts of cash,uatsaeceivable and accounts
payable are considered to be representative afridxgpective fair values due to their short-terrurea The Company’s debt is
considered to representative of its fair value heeaof its variable interest rate.

The fair value of goodwill and non-amortizing inggiles is measured on a non-recurring basis in @ction with the Company’s annual
impairment testing. For goodwill, the fair valuktloe reporting unit to which the goodwill has beessigned is determined using a
discounted cash flow model. A discounted cash fiewdel is also used to determine fair value of fimite-lived intangibles using
projected cash flows of the intangible. Unobsergabputs related to these discounted cash flow isadelude projected sales growth,
same store sales growth, gross margin percentageshusiness opportunities, working capital requeats, capital expenditures and
growth in selling, general and administrative exqgeand are classified in accordance with ASC 8R8ir*Value Measurements and
Disclosures”, within Level 3 of the valuation hieshy.

Significant Concentrations Financial instruments that potentially subject@@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consistasth,
and accounts receivable. The Company’s excesshedahces are invested with money center banksic&drations of credit risk with
respect to accounts receivable are limited dukddarge number of customers and their geograpspecsion comprising the
Company’s customer base. The Company also perfomming credit evaluations and maintains allovesrfor potential losses as
warranted.

We purchase substantially all of our products asdmonents directly from manufacturers and largeledade distributors. In 2012, no
vendor accounted for 10% of more of our purcha$&se vendor accounted for 11.5% and 10.0% of otch@ses in 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The loss of these vendors, or ahgrdtey vendors, could have a material adverseteffe us.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Public companies in the United States are subjeitte accounting and reporting requirements ofowariauthorities, including the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) ahd Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). &laeghorities issue
numerous pronouncements, most of which are notcaige to the Company’s current or reasonably feable operating structure.
Below are the new authoritative pronouncementsrtiatagement believes are relevant to Company’euoperations.

In July 2012, the FASB issued an update relatethtmial impairment testing for indefinite-lived intable assets which provides
companies with the option to perform a qualitatimpairment assessment for their indefinite-livethingible assets that may allow them
to skip the annual fair value calculation. Thelgative assessment is similar to the screen comegaran use to determine whether they
must perform the two-step goodwill impairment teGbmpanies must identify and evaluate changesananmic, industry and company-
specific events and circumstances that could affecsignificant inputs used in determining the falue of these assets. This ASU is
effective for annual and interim impairment testsfprmed for fiscal years beginning after Septenitier2012.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011@&mprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentationah@ehensive IncomeThis
ASU eliminates the option to report other compraihenincome and its components in the statemechafges in shareholders’ equity
and requires that all items of net income, itemstbér comprehensive income and total comprehemsdzane be presented in either a
single continuous statement of comprehensive incomie two separate but consecutive statementsChmepany adopted this ASU in
the first quarter of 2012. The adoption of this A8d not have a material impact on the Companyisobdated financial statements.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES
The Company conducted an evaluation of its Teldgy Products multi-brand United States consurtrategy and the intangible
assets used in that strategy and concluded th&dhepany’s future North American consumer busimessld be optimized by
consolidating its United States consumer operatimaker TigerDirect, its leading and largest braAd.a result an impairment charge

of approximately $35.3 million related to the tradeks, domain names and goodwill of CompUSA anduiiiCity was taken in the
fourth quarter of 201z

Goodwill :
The following table provides information relatedthe carrying value of goodwill (in millions):

December 31 December 31

2012 2011
Balance January $ 38 % 3.2
Impairment charges (0.9) -
Balance December 31 $ 24 3 8.e

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coyripanrred one-time impairment charges relatedomdgvill of approximately $0.9
million. This impairment charge was recorded ia @onsolidated Statements of Operations as spdates within the Technology
Products segmer

I ndefinite-lived intangible assets:

The following table summarizes information relatedndefinite-lived intangible assets (in millions)

Gross Carrying Gross Carrying

Amount: Amount:
Trademarks Domain Names
Balance January $ 241 % 147
Impairment charges (18.7) (14.7)
Balance December 31 $ 54 % -
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For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Companyred one-time impairment charges related tofinie-lived intangible assets
of approximately $33.4 million. This impairmentacbe was recorded in the Consolidated Statemer@pefations as special charges
within the Technology Products segment.

Definite-lived intangible assets:

The following table summarizes information relatedlefinite-lived intangible assets (in millions):

December 31 December 31
2012 2011

Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Retail store lease $ 34 $ 13 % 34 $ ilC
Client lists 2.€ 1.7 5.¢ 3.1
Technology 1.C 0.7 1.C 5
Total $ 7.C $ 3.7 % 10.2 $ 4.6

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coyripaarred one-time impairment charges relatedefinite-lived intangible assets
approximately $1.0 million. This impairment changas recorded in the Consolidated Statements ofafipes as special charg
within the Technology Products segm

The aggregate amortization expense for these iittlrsgvas approximately $1.4 million in 2012. Thetimated amortization for futu
years ending December 31 is as follows (in milljons

2013 $ 1.C
2014 0.6
2015 0.2
2016 and after 1.2
Total $ 3.2

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment, net consist of ¢tlewing (in millions):

December 31

2012 2011
Land and building: $ 194 % 27.7
Furniture and fixtures, office, computer and othguipment and softwal 133.] 131.€
Leasehold improvements 30.€ 27.2
183.1 186.t
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 120.1 115.¢
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 63.C $ 70.7

Included in property, plant and equipment are aaseder capital leases, as follows (in thousands):

2012 2011
Furniture and fixtures, office, computer and otbguipmen $ 174 % 17.2
Less: Accumulated amortization 9.4 7.8
$ 8C § 9.4

Depreciation charged to operations for propertgnpand equipment including capital leases in 22021, and 2010 was $16.6 million,
$15.9 million and $12.9 million, respectively.
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4,

5.

CREDIT FACILITIES

The Company maintains a $125.0 million (which mayirzreased to $200.0 million, subject to certainditions) secured revolving
credit agreement with a group of financial instdns which provides for borrowings in the Unitedtgs. The credit facility has a five
year term and expires in October 2015. Availabiktgubject to a borrowing base formula that takisaccount eligible receivables and
eligible inventory. Borrowings are secured by sabgally all of the Company’s assets, includingaats receivable, inventory and
certain other assets, subject to limited excepti®he credit agreement contains certain operatingncial and other covenants,
including limits on annual levels of capital expéacks, availability tests related to paymentsigfdi&nds and stock repurchases and
fixed charge coverage tests related to acquisitibhs revolving credit agreement requires that@imim level of availability be
maintained. If such availability is not maintain¢le Company will be required to maintain a fixéduge coverage ratio (as defined).
The borrowings under the agreement are subjeatrimling base limitations of up to 85% of eligilalecounts receivable and up to 4
of qualified inventories. The interest rate unds facility is computed at applicable market rdtased on LIBOR or the Prime Rate,
plus an applicable margin. The applicable margiiegabased on borrowing base availability. As o€&uaber 31, 2012, eligible
collateral under this agreement was $110.6 milliotgl availability was $104.6 million, total ousiding letters of credit were $6.0
million and there were no outstanding advances.ddmpany was in compliance with all of the coveramtder this facility as of
December 31, 2012.

The Company’s WStore subsidiary maintained a remgleredit agreement with a financial institutionfrance which was secured by
WStore accounts receivable balances. This credilitfawas terminated by the Company on June 9220Available amounts for
borrowing under this facility included all accounéseivable balances not over 60 days past dueeeduy the greater of €4.0 million or
10% of the eligible accounts receivable.

The weighted average interest rate on short-temmoings was 4.3%, 4.5%, and 3.5% in 2012, 2011 and 2010, réiseéc

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities isbrs the following (in millions):

6.

December 31

2012 2011

Payroll and employee benef $ 29.7 $ 32.t
Freight 4.0 3.1
Advertising 9.0 7.€
Sales and VAT tax payab 9.7 5.3
Income taxes payab 5.1 4.7
Other 26.C 19.2

$ 83t $ 72.4

LONG-TERM DEBT

The Company (through a subsidiary) has an outstgri8ond financing with the Development AuthorityJeffferson, Georgia (the
“Authority”). The Bonds were issued by the Authgrand purchased by GE Government Finance Inc.n@atdre on October 1,

2018. The proceeds from the Bond were used tod@aapital equipment purchased for the Compangtsiaution facility located in
Jefferson, Georgia. The purchase and installatidhe equipment for the facility was completediscember 31, 2011. Pursuant to the
transaction, the Company transferred to the Autioior consideration consisting of the Bond pratsewnership of the equipment &
the Authority leased the equipment to the Compasylssidiary pursuant to a capital equipment leape&iag October 1, 2018. Under
the capital equipment lease, the Company hasgheto acquire ownership of the equipment at amg tior a purchase price sufficient
to pay off all principal and interest on the Bonplsis $1.00. As of December 31, 2012, there wa8 $fllion outstanding against this
financing facility.
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Long-term debt consists of (in millions):

December 31

2012 2011
Capitalized equipment lease obligatic $ 81 $ 9.7
Less: current portion 2.8 2.€
$ 53 § 7.1

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt outstendt December 31, 2012 are as follows (in mikipn

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Maturities $ 28 % 2E % 22 % 06 $ -

7. SPECIAL CHARGES (GAINS), NET

The Companys Industrial Products segment incurred severaneesopnel and other exit costs related to the plrsiesing an
relocation of one of our smaller distribution ceatéo a new, significantly larger distribution aadll center in the second quarte
2012. These costs were recorded as special chaities the Industrial Products segment. The bedaof the restructuring reserve
included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet witliorged expenses and other current liabilities ath@roliabilities. The Compal
anticipates incurring minimal additional costs tethto this facility closing and relocation.

The following table details the associated lialgifitincurred related to this plan (in millions):

Severance anc  Other Exit

Personnel Cost: Costs Total
Balance January 1, 20: $ - $ = G =
Charged to expens 0.2 1.¢ 2.2
Paid or otherwise settled (0.7) (0.3 (0.9
Balance December 31, 2012 $ 0.2 $ 1€ $ 1.8

The Company’s North America Technology Productsrsag incurred $35.3 million of one-time impairmehtrges related to certain
intangible assets and goodwill of CompUSA and Gir€ity in the fourth quarter of 2012 (See NotefNotes to Consolidated Financ
Statements), costs associated with senior staffimgges for which no future services will be reedeand additional legal and
professional fees related to the previously dismdosompleted investigation and settlement withrenéw officer and director and in
pursuing related matters. The legal and professi@es and restructuring costs, for the year efmbmber 31, 2012, were
approximately $2.2 million and were offset by adillion insurance recovery relating to actiondalby a former officer and
director. The Company also incurred $1.8 millidrpatent settlements with ngracticing entities. These costs were recordezpasia
charges in the Technology Products segment.

The Company’s North America Technology Productsresg also incurred severance and other exit costsisset write downs of
approximately $0.5 million and $4.6 million, respeely, related to the exit from the PC manufactgrbusiness in the fourth quarter of
2012. These costs were recorded as special chartfes Technology Products segment. The balantieeoéxit costs of $0.5 million is
included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet witkizr@ed expenses and other current liabilities. Tompany anticipates incurring
minimal additional costs related to this facilitpsing.

The Company’s European Technology Products segmeuntred severance and other exit costs relatet&force reductions in order
to implement the shared services center in Eurdpese costs, incurred in the fourth quarter of2®dere approximately $4.7 million
and were included as special charges. The batafrtbe restructuring reserves is included in thesadidated Balance Sheet within
accrued expenses and other current liabilities. Gtvpany anticipates incurring additional costates to this restructuring..
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The following table details the associated lialgifitincurred related to this plan (in millions):

Severance anc
Other Exit Costs

Balance January 1, 20: $ =
Charged to expen: 4.7
Paid or otherwise settled (0.9)
Balance December 31, 2012 $ 3.8

8. SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
Audit Committee Investigation and Gilbert Fioremtim Resignation and Settlement.

In January and February 2011 the Company receivedyanous whistleblower allegations concerning then@any’s Miami Florida
operations involving the actions of Mr. Gilbert Féatino, then the Chief Executive of the Compaigshnology Products Group. In
response to the allegations, the Company commeartéternal investigation of the whistleblower gidions, which was conducted by
the Company’s Audit Committee of the Board of Diogs with the assistance of independent counsel.

On April 18, 2011, following the independent inugation, the Company delivered a Cause Notice toRrentino pursuant to the
terms of his Employment Agreement dated Octobe0@4. The Cause Notice advised Mr. Fiorentino thatCompany intended to
terminate him for “Cause” (as defined in the Emph@nt Agreement) at a meeting of its Executive Cottemischeduled for May 3,
2011, at which meeting Mr. Fiorentino and his caliesuld appear, and that Mr. Fiorentino was b@ilaged on administrative leave
pending the outcome of that meeting. In the Caustichl, the Company advised Mr. Fiorentino thatAleit Committee investigation
had identified grounds to terminate him for Causdear his Employment Agreement, and set forth tiieviing findings by the Audit
Committee constituting such grounds:

i) Mr. Fiorentino personally removed or caused ¢orémoved from the ComparsyMiami premises product inventory, and/or kej
caused others to receive at his direction such veth@roduct inventory, without payment to the Compand for his own persor
gain;

i) Mr. Fiorentino caused substantial amounts ofrfpany inventory purchases to be effected throughg@my credit cards in order
accrue and/or use “reward points” for his persdaealefit and which he improperly converted to hisiawge;

iii) Mr. Fiorentino caused his mother to be ideietif as an employee of the Company in positionsmuch she had no bona fide
responsibility or function, and caused the Compamypay her a salary and employee benefits, incudintended COBR
reimbursements; and iv) Mr. Fiorentino engageftandulent “kickback” arrangements with certaintled Companys vendors, to tt
detriment of the Company

The Company stated in the Cause Notice that tregfang activities were in violation of Company pglithe Company’s Corporate
Ethics Policy, his fiduciary duties and applicalale. The Audit Committee’s independent investigatitetermined that the matters
described above did not have any material impa@usrpreviously reported financial results and wiaméted to the Company’s Miami
operations.

On May 9, 2011, following several meetings of the&utive Committee and after extensive discussigtis Mr. Fiorentino and his
counsel, the Company announced that it had accéiptetksignation of Mr. Fiorentino, and that it leakcuted an agreement with Mr.
Fiorentino, effective May 6, 2011, under which Miorentino surrendered certain assets to the Coynypalned at approximately $11
million at May 9, 2011: these assets included threemider of 1,130,001 shares of Systemax commak stad $480,000 in cash. The
shares surrendered consisted of 580,001 share#iyofiésted unexercised stock options, 2) 100,0@0es of fully vested restricted stc
awards and 3) 450,000 shares directly owned byFMrentino. The shares surrendered were valueairatdlue on May 6, 2011 in the
case of the stock options and restricted stock @svand at fair value on May 12, 2011 in the cagdé®bwned shares. The agreement
also requires Mr. Fiorentino to disclose his arglimmediate family’s personal assets; forfeit uddised assets discovered by the
Company; disclose information regarding certainteratthat led to his being notified of the Compariptent to terminate him; and to
fully cooperate with the Company in the future. Miorentino and the Company also exchanged mutram@l releases and
nondisparagement commitments, and Mr. Fiorentineedjto a 5 year noncompetition obligation. The §illion settlement value
included a financial statement benefit to the Comyp@lated to the surrender of shares and cash gratyofi approximately $8.4 million
which was recorded in the second quarter of 20HEugpecial (gains) charges, net of related legailpgofessional fees of
approximately $1.3 million for the quarter endedel30, 2011 and $1.8 million for the first six mesbf 2011. The remainder of the
settlement value, approximately $2.6 million, wias intrinsic value of the fully vested unexercissack options on the date of the
settlement agreement for which there is no findretatement impact. The amount of the settlemetit Wr. Fiorentino was based on
negotiation with him, and was not based on anyiipdevel or nature of damages incurred by the @any, and does not constitute
restitution.
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On June 21, 2011 Systemax Inc. received noticetileaBecurities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)ihgicted a formal
investigation into the matters discovered by theliRGommittee’s internal investigation. The Compdnlfy cooperated with the SEC in
its formal investigation and in February 2013, 8tC advised the Company that it had concludedvtsstigation and would not be
recommending that any action be taken against tdmepany.

9. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Stock based compensation plans

The Company currently has five equity compensatians which reserve shares of common stock foaisseito key employees,
directors, consultants and advisors to the Compaing .following is a description of these plans:

The 1995 Londerm Stock Incentive PlanThis plan, adopted in 1995, allowed the Companigsue qualified, non-qualified and
deferred compensation stock options, stock appieniaghts, restricted stock and restricted umérgs, performance unit grants and
other stock based awards authorized by the Compens2ommittee of the Board of Directors. Optioasued under this plan expire ten
years after the options are granted. The abilityrémt new awards under this plan ended on DeceBIhe&t005 but awards granted prior
to such date continue until their expiration. Aataif 25,359 options were outstanding under thas @ls of December 31, 2012.

The 1995 Stock Option Plan for N&@mployee Directors This plan, adopted in 1995, provides for automatvards of non-qualified
options to directors of the Company who are notlegges of the Company or its affiliates. All optsogranted under this plan will have
a ten year term from grant date and are immediabedycisable. A maximum of 100,000 shares may aetgd for awards under this
plan. The ability to grant new awards under thempgnded on October 12, 2006 but awards grantedtprsuch date continue until their
expiration. A total of 12,250 options were outstagdinder this plan as of December 31, 2012.

The 1999 Longterm Stock Incentive Plan, as amendetoQ9 Plari) - This plan was adopted on October 25, 1999 witistgntially
the same terms and provisions as the 1995 Long-$ock Incentive Plan. The Company increased tineben of shares that may be
granted under this plan to a maximum of 7,500,0060f5,000,000 shares. The maximum number of shypeeged per type of award to
any individual may not exceed 1,500,000 in anyrdde year and 3,000,000 in total. The ability tarymew awards under this plan
ended on December 31, 2009 but awards grantedtprgrch date continue until their expiration. ofat of 607,950 options were
outstanding under this plan as of December 31, 2012

The 2006 Stock Incentive Plan For NBmployee Directors This plan, adopted by the Company’s stockholder®ciober 11, 2006,
replaces the 1995 Stock Option Plan for Non-Empdy&ectors. The Company adopted the plan so tlwatid offer directors of the
Company who are not employees of the Company angfentity in which the Company has more than a 8qty interest
(“independent directors”) an opportunity to pagte in the ownership of the Company by receiviptioms to purchase shares of
common stock at a price equal to the fair markbtevat the date of grant of the option and restdattock awards. Awards for a
maximum of 200,000 shares may be granted undeplduis A total of 15,000 options were outstandinder this plan as of
December 31, 2012.

The2010Longterm Stock Incentive Plafi 2010 Plari) - This plan was adopted on April 23, 2010 with subsly the same terms al
provisions as the 1999 Long-term Stock IncentianPThe maximum number of shares granted per tiypeard to any individual may
not exceed 1,500,000 in any calendar year. Restrigtiock grants and common stock awards reduck spaions otherwise available f
future grant. Awards for a maximum of 7,500,000rebanay be granted under this plan. A total of 832 ,0ptions and 420,000
restricted stock units were outstanding underplas as of December 31, 2012.
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Shares issued under our share-based compensatimhagk usually issued from shares of our comnuuk $teld in the treasury.
The fair value of employee share options is recgphin expense over the vesting period of the aptiasing the graded attribution
method. The fair value of employee share optisrdeiermined on the date of grant using the Blazhoeks option pricing model. The
Company has used historical volatility in its esttmof expected volatility. The expected life resarets the period of time (in years) for
which the options granted are expected to be mdstg. The risk-free interest rate is based orl.tt& Treasury yield curve.
Compensation cost related to non-qualified stodioop recognized in operating results (selling,agahand administrative expense) for
2012, 2011 and 2010 was $2.5 million, $1.0 milliand $1.5 million respectively. The related futimeome tax benefits recognized for
2012, 2011 and 2010 were $1.4 million, $0.6 millaord $0.6 million, respectively.
Stock options

The following table presents the weighted-averagaimptions used to estimate the fair value of aptgranted in 2012, 2011 and 2010:

2012 2011 2010
Expected annual dividend yie 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rat 1.1(% 2.02% 1.3%
Expected volatility 57.%% 59.8% 61.1%
Expected life in year 6.3 8.C 4.8

The following table summarizes informati@mncerning outstanding and exercisable options:

Weighted Average
2012 2011 2010
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding at beginning of ye 1,285,11' $ 13.3¢ 1,900,69: $ 10.6(C 2,102,45' $ 9.8i
Grantec 772,500 $ 15.0( 277,000 $ 12.61 40,00 $ 14.1¢
Exercisec (209,46¢) $ 3.12 (67,759 $ 4.1¢ (234,01) $ 4.3¢
Cancelled or expired (595,090 $ 11.71 (824,82) ¢ 7.4t (7,750 $ 19.3¢
Outstanding at end of year 1,353,05 ¢ 15.8¢ 1,285,111 ¢ 13.3¢ 1,900,691 ¢ 10.6(¢
Options exercisable at year € 682,80 914,36! 1,559,87.
Weighted average fair value per optic

granted during the ye: $ 7.9C $ 7.81 $ 7.2¢

The total intrinsic value of options exercised as4 million, $0.7 million and $3.2 million respaaly, for 2012, 2011 and 2010.

The following table summarizes information aboutiaps vested and exercisable or nonvested thabgrected to vest (nonvested
outstanding less expected forfeitures) at Decer@beP012:

Weighted Weighted Aggregate

Average Average Intrinsic

Number Exercise Remaining Value (in

Range of Exercise Price Exercisable Price Contractual Life millions)
$ 1.7¢ to $ 5.0C 24,000 $ 2.07 0.2z $ 0.2
$ 5.01 to $ 15.0( 522,00 $ 12.4( 7.31 0.1
$ 15.0] to $ 20.0¢ 624,40 $ 18.4: 6.97 -
$ 20.01 to $ 20.1°F 100,000 $ 20.1¢ 4.0t -
$ 1.7€ to $ 20.1¢ 1,270,40! $ 15.7¢ 6.7¢ $ 0.2
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The aggregate intrinsic value in the tables abepeasents the total pretax intrinsic value (théed#hce between the closing stock price
on the last day of trading in 2012 and the exengigee) that would have been received by the optioiders had all options been
exercised on December 31, 2012. This value wilhgeabased on the fair market value of the Compargrismon stock.

The following table reflects the activity for alhuested stock options during 2012:
Weighted

Average Grant-
Shares Date Fair Value

Unvested at January 1, 20 370,75( $ 8.2¢
Grantec 772,50( $ 7.9C
Vested (123,25() $ 8.5¢4
Forfeited (349,750 $ 5.9¢
Unvested at December 31, 2012 670,25( ¢ 9.01

At December 31, 2012, there was approximately $fliBon of unrecognized compensation costs relateginvested stock options,
which is expected to be recognized over a weigatedlage period of 2.87 years. The total fair valugtock options vested during 2012,
2011 and 2010 was $1.1 million, $2.2 million ande®@iillion, respectively.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

In October 2004, the Company granted 1,000,00@ictd stock units under the 1999 Plan to a forafficer and director (See Note 8
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Aimstl stock unit represents the right to receigbare of the Company’s common
stock. The restricted stock units have none ofitjigs as other shares of common stock, other tiights to cash dividends, until
common stock is distributed. The restricted statik award was a non-performance award which vestélde rate of 20% on May 31,
2005 and 10% per year on April 1, 2006 and eachtyeseafter. The share-based expense for restrstoek awards was determined
based on the market price of the Company’s stotkeatlate of the award. Compensation expensedeiatthe restricted stock award
was $0 in 2012, $0.1 million in 2011 and $0.6 naillin 2010. As part of the settlement agreemesd [$ote 8 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements), no less than 300,000 sloanesits of restricted stock were terminated andmfurther force and effect.

In August 2010, the Company granted 175,000 résttistock units under the 2010 Plan to a key ensglayho is also a Company
director. A restricted stock unit represents tigatrio receive a share of the Company’s commorksildte restricted stock units have
none of the rights as other shares of common stiblker than rights to cash dividends, until comratmek is distributed. The restricted
stock unit award was a non-performance award wiidlts in ten equal annual installments of 17,50& dreginning May 15, 2011 and
each May 15, thereafter. The share-based expensestocted stock awards was determined basedemarket price of the Compasy’
stock at the date of the award. Compensation expetated to the restricted stock award was apprataly $0.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012.

In October 2011 and November 2011, the CompanytenatD0,000 restricted stock units under the 2046 #® two key employees, o
of whom is a Company director. A restricted stook tepresents the right to receive a share oDhimpany’s common stock. The
restricted stock units have none of the rightsthsrashares of common stock, other than rightash dividends, until common stock is
distributed. The restricted stock unit award wasa-performance award which vests in ten equal aringtallments of 10,000 units
beginning October 3, 2012 and November 14, 20kheawtively, and each October 3 and November 1geotisely, thereafter. The
share-based expense for restricted stock awarddetasmined based on the market price of the Cogipatock at the date of the
award. Compensation expense related to thesectedtstock awards was approximately $0.7 milliontfi@ year ended December 31,
2012.

In January 2012 and March 2012, the Company gré@g@DO0 restricted stock units under the 2010 Riawo key employees. A
restricted stock unit represents the right to nexaishare of the Company’s common stock. Theict=drstock units have none of the
rights as other shares of common stock, other tiigéuts to cash dividends, until common stock idgriisited. The restricted stock unit
award was a noperformance award which vests in ten equal anmstdliments of 10,000 units beginning January 3328hd March 1
2013, respectively, and each January 3 and Martttefieafter. The share-based expense for restistoek awards was determined
based on the market price of the Company’s stotieatlate of the award. Compensation expense ddiatthese restricted stock awards
was approximately $0.5 million for the year endezt&@mber 31, 2012.

55




Table of Content

Share-based compensation expense for restrictekl iskued to Directors was $0.1 million in eact2012, 2011 and 2010.
10. INCOME TAXES

The components of income (loss) from continuingrapens before income taxes are as follows (iniamh):

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
United State: $ (66.5) $ 435 % 43.t
Foreign 24.€ 35.5 22.€
Total $ (41.¢) $ 79.C $ 66.1

The (benefit) provision for income taxes consigtthe following (in millions):

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Current:

Federal $ (54 $ 136 $ 9.t

State 0.3 2.2 2.2

Foreign 8.1 8.4 7.1

Total current 3.C 24.2 18.¢
Deferred:

Federal (16.5) 0.t 4.7

State (3.9 0.4 (0.2

Foreign (16.€) (0.7) 0.1

Total deferred (36.6) 0.2 4.€
TOTAL $ (33.6) $ 244 $ 23.t

Income taxes are accrued and paid by each foreitity & accordance with applicable local regulaioThe Company recorded tax
(benefit) expense of $(0.2) million, $0.1 millionca$0.0 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivadlated to discontinued operatio

A reconciliation of the difference between the immtax expense and the computed income tax expaseel on the Federal statutory
corporate rate is as follows (in millions):

Year Ended December 3;,

2012 2011 2010
Income tax at Federal statutory r $ (149 (35.0% $ 27.€ 35.(% $ 23.1 35.(%
Foreign taxes at rates different from the U.S. (3.9 (8.9 (0.9 (1.9 (1.9 (2.0
State and local income taxes, net of federal tavefik (2.2 (5.0 1.3 .€ A4 .C
Changes in valuation allowanc (13.9) (31.9 (3.7 (4.7 (0.7 (0.2
Non-deductible item: 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.7 11
Other items, ne (0.2 (0.2 - - (0.2 (0.3
Income tax at Federal statutory r $ (33.6) 80.8% $ 24.2 30.9% $ 23.t 35.6%
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The deferred tax assets and liabilities are coragredf the following (in millions):

December 31

2012 2011
Assets:
Current:
Accrued expenses and other liabilit $ 121 $ 13.€
Inventory 6.2 2.€
Valuation allowances (2.2) (1.5)
Total current assets $ 16.1 $ 147
Non-current:
Net operating loss and credit carryforwa $ 257 $ 23.2
Depreciatior 2.€ 3.€
Intangible & othel 22.4 7.€
Valuation allowances (8.9 (28.9)
Total non-current assets $ 416 $ 6.2
Liabilities :
Current :
Deductible assel $ 25 $ 0.8
Other - .3
Total current liabilities $ 25 % 5.1
Non-current:
Amortization $ 6.2 $ 8.C
Depreciatior 5.4 -
Other - 0.5
Total non-current liabilities $ 116 $ 8.5

The Company has not provided for federal incomesapplicable to the undistributed earnings dbitsign subsidiaries of
approximately $127.4 million as of December 31,2&ince these earnings are considered indefinigghwested. The Company has
foreign net operating loss carryforwards which exphrough 2030. The Company records these bemreafitsssets to the extent that
utilization of such assets is more likely than mathierwise, a valuation allowance has been recorieel Company has also provided
valuation allowances for certain state deferredassets and net operating loss carryforwards whiraot likely they will be realized.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company has approgigndt.2 million in foreign tax credit carryforwar@xpiring in years through
2022 and various amounts of state and foreign petading loss carryforwards expiring through 20B2e company has recorded
valuation allowances of approximately $11.1 millioamcluding valuations against foreign tax credit$1.2 million, tax effected net
operating loss carryforwards in foreign and statesglictions of $5.0 million and $4.2 million, resgively, and deductible temporary
differences of $0.7 million for state deductiblenporary differences.

The Company is routinely audited by federal, stetté foreign tax authorities with respect to itoime taxes. The Company regularly
reviews and evaluates the likelihood of audit essesits. The Company’s federal income tax returme baen audited through 2009.
The Company has not signed any consents to extenstatute of limitations for any subsequent yeBns. Company’s significant state
tax returns have been audited through 2006. Thep@aognconsiders its significant tax jurisdictiondaneign locations to be the United
Kingdom, Canada, France, Italy and Germany. The fiamy remains subject to examination in the Unitagthgom for years after 201
in Canada for years after 2006, in France for yafies 2007, in Italy for years after 2007, in Natands for years after 2005 and in
Germany for years after 2007.

In accordance with the guidance for accountingufazertainty in income taxes the Company recogrtizesax benefits from an
uncertain tax position only if it is more likelyah not that the tax position will be sustained wangination by the taxing authorities
based on the technical merits of the position. fBlxeébenefit of an uncertain tax position that mele¢smore-likely-than-not recognition
threshold is measured as the largest amount tiga¢ader than 50% likely to be realized upon seitiet with the tax authority. To the
extent we prevail in matters for which accrualsehbeen established or are required to pay amounietsciess of accruals, our effective
tax rate in a given financial statement period ddaé affected. As of December 31, 2012 the Companiyno uncertain tax positions.
There were no accrued interest or penalty chagjated to unrecognized tax benefits recorded ionmetax expense in 2012 or 2011.
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11.

COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND OTHER MATTERS

Leases - The Company is obligated under operating leaseemgents for the rental of certain office and watete facilities and
equipment which expire at various dates througi 20B0. The Company currently leases its headgsasféice/warehouse facility in
New York from an entity owned by the Company’s thpgincipal shareholders and senior executive efficThe Company believes that
these payments were no higher than would be paid unrelated lessor for comparable space. The @oynalso acquires certain
computer, communications equipment, and machinedyeguipment pursuant to capital lease obligations.

At December 31, 2012, the future minimum annuaddegaayments for capital leases and related andhghity operating leases were
follows (in millions):

Capital Operating

Leases Leases Total

2013 $ 32 % 28t $ 31.¢
2014 2.6 26.2 29.1
2015 2.t 25.€ 28.1
2016 0.8 23.t 24.:
2017 0.2 23.C 23.2
201¢-2022 63.2 63.2
202:-2027 26.1 26.1
Thereafter 17.2 17.2
Total minimum lease paymer 9.7 233.¢ 243.1
Less: sublease rental income 0.1 0.1
Lease obligation net of subleases 9.7 $ 233.8 243.(
Less: amount representing interest 1.€

Present value of minimum capital lease paymentdu@iing current portion of $2. $ 8.1

Annual rent expense aggregated approximately $88liédn, $30.8 million and $31.1 million in 2012021 and 2010, respectively.
Included in rent expense was $0.9 million, $0.9iariland $0.9 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respely, to related parties. Rent
expense is net of sublease income of $0.2 milk®2 million and $0.2 million for 2012, 2011 andlPQrespectively.

Other Matters

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved noua lawsuits, claims, investigations and prodagslincluding commercial,
employment, consumer, personal injury and healthsafiety law matters, which are being handled aidndied in the ordinary course
of business. In addition, the Company is subdefarious assertions, claims, proceedings and stg|fiér indemnification concerning
intellectual property, including patent infringenbenits involving technologies that are incorpodatea broad spectrum of products the
Company sells. The Company is also audited by gsrihitiated voluntary disclosure agreements witltherous governmental agencies
in various countries, including U.S. Federal aradesauthorities, concerning potential income talestax and unclaimed property
liabilities. These matters are in various stageiswdstigation, negotiation and/or litigation, aare being vigorously defended. In this
regard, the Company is being audited by the stafexas regarding its claim that certain of the pamy’s consumer electronics e-
commerce sales are subject to sales tax in Texagampany is defending this matter, believesstdieong defenses, and has
established reserves for this matter. AlthoughGbempany does not expect, based on currently availaformation, that the outcome in
any of these matters, individually or collectivelyi]l have a material adverse effect on its finahcondition or results of operations, the
ultimate outcome is inherently unpredictable. Efere, judgments could be rendered or settlemeané&sexd, that could adversely affect
the Company’s operating results or cash flows pawicular period. The Company routinely asseafiex its litigation and threatened
litigation as to the probability of ultimately inging a liability, and records its best estimateahaf ultimate loss in situations where it
assesses the likelihood of loss as probable aidase.
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12.

SEGMENT AND RELATED INFORMATION

The Company operates and is internally managedadroperating segments, Technology Products andstriduProducts. The
Company’s chief operating decision-maker is the gany’s Chief Executive Officer. The Company evatsatiegment performance
based on income from operations before net intei@&ign exchange gains and losses, special (gelr@gges and income taxes.
Corporate costs not identified with the disclosegrsents are grouped as “Corporate and other expéfides chief operating decision-
maker reviews assets and makes significant capifnditure decisions for the Company on a conataiibasis only. The accounting
policies of the segments are the same as those @ampany described in Note 1.

Financial information relating to the Company’s gi@ns by reportable segment was as follows (ilfions):

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Net Sales
Technology Product $ 3,137¢ $ 3,357« $ 3,336.¢
Industrial Product 401.¢ 319.¢ 250.(
Corporate and other 5.1 3.3 2.2
Consolidated $ 3,544.¢ $ 3,680.t $ 3,589.:
Depreciation and Amortization Expen:
Technology Product $ 151 $ 15C $ 12.1
Industrial Product 1.¢ .3 1.€
Corporate and other 1.C 1.2 .8
Consolidated $ 18.C $ 175 3 14.F
Operating Income (Loss
Technology Product $ 47.2) $ 68.C $ 65.(
Industrial Product 29.¢ 35.1 24.1
Corporate and other expenses (22.6) (22.%) (20.3)
Consolidated $ (39.9 $ 80.t $ 68.¢
Total Assett
Technology Product $ 564.. $ 546.71 $ 574.(
Industrial Product 157.7 127.2 136.¢
Corporate and other 240.2 215.¢ 183.2
Consolidated $ 962.: $ 889.i $ 894.1

Financial information relating to the Company’s gi®ns by geographic area was as follows (in onili):

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Net Sales
United State! $ 2,203 $ 2,353.0 $ 2,328.¢
United Kingdom 491.7 442k 418.¢
Other Europ 635.( 657.: 628.1
Other North America 214.. 227.F 213.t
Consolidated $ 3,544¢ $ 3,680.¢ $ 3,589.;
Long-lived Assets
United State: $ 42.C $ 50.7 $ 51.t
United Kingdom 16.€ 15.4 16.C
Other Europe and As 2.E 2.t 3.4
Other North America 1.€ 2.1 2.C
Consolidated $ 63.C $ 707 $ 73.€

Net sales are attributed to countries based otitwcaf selling subsidiary.
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Financial information relating to the Company’signtvide product category sales was as followsnfitlions):

Product Categor

Year Ended December 31

Computers

Computer accessories & softwi
Consumer electronic

Computer componen

Industrial product:

Other

Consolidated

13.

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

2012:

Net sales

Gross profit

Net income

Net income per common sha
Basic
Diluted

2011:

Net sales

Gross profit

Net income

Net income per common sha
Basic

2012 2011 % 2010 %
1,048. 29.6% 1,047.¢ 28.5% 878.¢ 24.5%
970.¢ 27.2% 1,025.( 27.&% 982.¢ 27.2%
619.7 17.5% 746.t 20.2% 856.: 23.8%
407.¢ 11.5% 453.¢ 12.2% 551.( 15.2%
401.¢ 11.2% 319.¢ 8.7% 250.( 7.C%
96.2 2.7% 87.€ 2.4% 70.€ 2.C%
3,544.¢ 10(% $ 3,680.¢ 10(% 3,5689.. 10(%

Quarterly financial data, excluding discontinue@i@tions, is as follows (in millions, except for ghare amounts):

First Quarter Second Quartel Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

$ 913¢ $ 849.t $ 846.2 $ 935.2

$ 130.7 $ 118.C $ 119.C $ 120.2

$ 739 22 % 13¢ $ (27.0

$ 0.2C $ (0.06) $ 0.3¢ $ (0.79)

$ 0.2( $ (0.06) $ 03¢ $ (0.79)

$ 929.¢ $ 872.2 $ 900.2 $ 978.¢

$ 130« $ 128.¢ $ 1312 $ 139.¢

$ 136 $ 15€ $ 10.€ $ 14.¢

$ 037 $ 04z $ 0.2¢ $ 0.4C

$ 0.3¢ $ 04z $ 0.2¢ $ 0.4C

Diluted
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SYSTEMAX INC.
SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

For the years ended December:

(in millions)
Balance at
Beginning of  Charged to Balance at
Description Period Expenses Write-offs Other End of Period
Allowance for sales returns and doubtful accol
2012 $ 147 $ 5C $ 4.2 $ - $ 15.5
2011 $ 17¢ $ 32 $ (6.4 $ - $ 14.7
2010 $ 225 % 32 % (6.8 $ 11y)o s 17.¢
Allowance for deferred tax asst
2012
Current $ 15 $ 07 $ - % - $ 2.2
Noncurrent $ 282 $ (19.5) $ - $ - $ 8.9
2011
Current $ 15 $ - % - 3 $ 1.5
Noncurrent $ 270 % 06 $ - $ 0.1 $ 28.4
2010
Current $ 1t $ - % - % - $ 1.5
Noncurrent $ 28.2 $ - $ - 8 o6 3 27.1

(1) WStore opening balance sheet adjustment.
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION UNDER SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXL EY ACT OF 2002
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Richard Leeds, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKSystemax Inc. (the “registrant”);
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorny untrue statement of a material fact or dméttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by

this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this | report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedortes designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgistant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over fgiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegi$'s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s most recen
fiscal quarter( the registrant’s fourth fiscal ggaiin the case of an annual report) that has madieaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comaer financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitibthe registrant’'s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadges in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are reasong
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilttyrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiaimation; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 14, 201

/s/ RICHARD LEEDS
Richard Leeds, Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION UNDER SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXL EY ACT OF 2002
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Lawrence P. Reinhold, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKSystemax Inc. (the “registrant”);
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorny untrue statement of a material fact or dméttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by

this | report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedortes designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgistant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over fgiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegi$'s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s most recen
fiscal quarter ( the registrant’s fourth fiscal deain the case of an annual report) that has madlteaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comaer financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’'s board of directors (or pessperforming equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadges in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are reasong
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilttyrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiaimation; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 14, 201

/s/ LAWRENCE P. REINHOLL
Lawrence P. Reinhold, Chief Financial Offic




Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION UNDER SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXL EY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, the Chief Executive Officer oft€gsax Inc., hereby certifies that Systemax Incoa10-K for the Year Ended
December 31, 2012 fully complies with the requiratseof Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Seéi@sriExchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.
78m or 78 (0)(d)) and that the information contdiimesuch Form 10-K fairly presents, in all materespects, the financial condition and
results of operations of Systemax Inc.

Dated: March 14, 201

/s/ RICHARD LEEDS
Richard Leeds, Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION UNDER SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, the Chief Financial Officer of Systemax Inc., hereby certifies that Systemax Inc.’s Form 10-K for the Year Ended
December 31, 2012 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.
78m or 78 (0)(d)) and that the information contained in such Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of Systemax Inc.

Dated: March 14, 2013

/s/ LAWRENCE P. REINHOLD
Lawrence P. Reinhold, Chief Financial Officer
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Financial Summary
(In millions except Diluted Net Income Per Share)
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Net sales $3,031.2 $3,163.0 $3,589.0 $3,680.6 $3,544.6
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations $ 101.6 $ 80.1 $ 688 $ 80.8 $ (39.9
Net income from continuing operations $§ 773 $ 492 § 426 §$ 546 §$ (8.0)
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ 205 $ 132 $ 113 $ 147 $ (22

Forward-Looking Statements: Certain statements in this Annual Report constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements include known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors as set forth
within the Form 10K forming a part of this document.
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